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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION  
GRANT FUNDING SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, NOVEMBER 9, 2022 – 6:00 PM  
San Marcos Room – 2nd Floor 
           

Cell Phones:  As a courtesy to others, please silence your cell phone or pager during the meeting and engage in conversations 
outside the meeting room.  
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary 
at (760) 744-1050, ext. 3137. Notification 48 hours in advance will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Assisted listening devices are available for the hearing impaired. Please see the Board Secretary if you 
wish to use this device.  
 
Public Comment:  If you wish to address the Board on any agenda item, please complete a “Request to Speak” form.   Be sure to 
indicate which item number you wish to address.  Comments are limited to FIVE minutes. 
 
The Oral Communication segment of the agenda is for the purpose of allowing the public to address the Board on any matter NOT 
listed on the agenda.  The Board is prohibited by state law from taking action on items NOT listed on the Agenda.  However, they 
may refer the matter to staff for a future report and recommendation.  If you wish to speak under “Oral Communications,” please 
complete a “Request to Speak” form as noted above. 
 
Meeting Schedule:  Regular San Marcos Community Foundation Board meetings are generally held on the third Tuesday in the 
month of February, May, August and November.  The Agenda’s are posted on the City website at:  www.san-marcos.net.  
 
Agendas:  Agenda packets are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to scheduled meetings at the Administration 
Department located on the second floor of City Hall, 1 Civic Center Drive, San Marcos, during normal business hours.  Any agenda-
related writings or documents provided to a majority of the San Marcos Community Foundation after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection at the same time at the Administration Department. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
WAIVER OF TEXT – This item is to waive the reading of the text of all Resolutions and Policies adopted at 
this meeting.  Resolutions and Polices shall be adopted by title.   
Recommendation:  WAIVE 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

1. MINI GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSALS – Consider one proposal from non-profit organization 
requesting Foundation funds. 

1 Burn 
Institute Fire Safe Kids 250 

Fire Safe Kids program, a 30-minute interactive presentation by a 
Burn Institute staff member 

 $  
1,500  

http://www.san-marcos.net/
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2. REGULAR GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSALS – Consider eight proposals from non-profit organizations 

requesting Foundation funds.  

 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS –  

2 
ESCOKIDOS 

Family 
services 20 

Assist families needs for trauma-informed care, food and housing 
security, and medical and mental health support 

 $  
1,500  

3 Boys & Girls 
Club SM 

Gameroom 
Refresh 800 upgrade the games and activities available at its main Clubhouse $  1,500 

4 The 
Escondido 

Creek 
Conservancy Photo Contest 30,000 

funds to have each category’s winner professionally printed to 
properly display their art for the entire community to enjoy as they 
visit the Elfin Forest Interpretive Center $  1,500  

1 

BIPOC Support 
Foundation 

Explore Next Door Youth 
Enrichment Summer 
Camp San Marcos 50 

Explore Next Door Youth Enrichment 
Programs provide underserved youth ages 
8-14 with behavioral health tools, personal 
development 

$9,775 

2 
Casa de Amparo Casa Kids Campus 94 

enhanced prosocial and therapeutic 
activities $10,000 

3 Interfaith Community 
Services 

TrueCare (San Marcos) 
Program Manager 21 

Supporting an Interfaith Case Manager 
Position 

$10,000 

4 

Jacob and Cushman North 
County Food Bank Emergency Food Relief 5000 

Purchase of approximately 16,000 pounds 
of nutritious fresh produce 

$3,000 

5 

San Diego Children’s 
Discovery Museum 

Virtual Education 
Workshops for Low-
Income Schools and 

Children in San Marcos 800 

Mobile Children’s Museum educational 
workshops to five schools in need of 
supplemental STEM programming support 
identified by San Marcos Unified School 
District (SMUSD.) 

$6,675 

6 
North County Health 

Project, Inc., d.b.a 
TrueCare Uncompensated Care 111 

Uncompensated Care program therefore 
covers these bundled visits so low-income, 
uninsured individuals and families can 
receive the care they seek 

$5,000 

7 

Twin Oaks Elementary 
School PTO STEM l Programs 627 

STEM-based learning opportunity to bring 
‘Mad Science’ events into our school to 
showcase science to our TK, K, and 1st thru 
5th grade students 

$10,000 

8 Urban Corps of San Diego 
County Ice Machine and Stove 20 

To pay an ice machine and stove to finish 
up the Corps member kitchen 

$4,598 
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Speakers are limited to five minutes.  According to Board policy, FIFTEEN minutes has been established 
during this portion of the Agenda to allow citizens to speak on any matter NOT listed.  The Board is 
prohibited by state law from taking action on items NOT listed on the Agenda.  However, they may refer 
the matter for a future report and recommendation.   

 
ITEMS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE –The next meeting of the SMCF Board is scheduled for Tuesday, November 15, 2022.   
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) ss.        
CITY OF SAN MARCOS    )   
 
I, Phil Scollick, hereby certify that I caused the posting of this Agenda in the glass display case at the north 
entrance of City Hall and on the City website on Thursday, November 3, 2022, prior to 5:30 pm.  

 
 
           _____________ 
       Phil Scollick, Recording Secretary  



 
 
 
DATE:   October 12, 2022 
 
DELIVER TO:  Phillip Scollick 
 
Email: PScollick@san-marcos.net; cityclerk@san-marcos.net; 

accounting@san-marcos.net; 
  

FROM:   JCF Finance Department 
 
# OF PAGES:  3, including cover 
 
SUBJECT: San Marcos Community Foundation (SANM) and  

S.M. Community Found – Now & Forever (SANMA) 
 

MESSAGE: Fund Activity Reports for September 2022  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us at finance@jcfsandiego.org.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

mailto:PScollick@san-marcos.net
mailto:cityclerk@san-marcos.net
mailto:finance@jcfsandiego.org


 10/10/2022             FIMS - Fund Activity Report                   Page  163
  4:22 PM

 San Marcos Community Foundation             Beginning Balance:   1,377,486.66

Apply Date Descr.                                 Expense/DR          Income/CR
---------- ------------------------------  -----------------  -----------------
09/30/2022 Dividends                                   0.00           1,651.27
09/30/2022 Realized Gain                               0.00           1,103.66
09/30/2022 Unrealized Loss                        56,541.00               0.00
09/30/2022 Unrealized Loss                        42,702.65               0.00
09/30/2022 Custodian Fee                              68.87               0.00
09/30/2022 Consultant Fee                            133.72               0.00
09/30/2022 Foundation Fee                            503.87               0.00

                                          -----------------  -----------------
                                                  99,950.11           2,754.93

  San Marcos Community Foundation             Ending Balance:     1,280,291.48
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 S.M. Community Found - Now & Forever        Beginning Balance:       5,708.51

Apply Date Descr.                                 Expense/DR          Income/CR
---------- ------------------------------  -----------------  -----------------
09/30/2022 Dividends                                   0.00               5.45
09/30/2022 Realized Gain                               0.00               0.28
09/30/2022 Unrealized Loss                           467.51               0.00
09/30/2022 Custodian Fee                               0.29               0.00
09/30/2022 Consultant Fee                              0.61               0.00
09/30/2022 Foundation Fee                              2.10               0.00

                                          -----------------  -----------------
                                                     470.51               5.73

  S.M. Community Found - Now & Forever        Ending Balance:         5,243.73



$1,449,833
993 ‐ $72,491

17,000$        
14,498$        
18,123$        

Nonprofit Program

# San Marcos 
Residents 
Served Summary Lead Request Recommend Approved

Mini‐grants

Burn Institute Fire Safe Kids 250

Fire Safe Kids program, each child will attend a 30‐minute 
interactive presentation by a Burn Institute staff member, 
SDSU Public Health intern, or a Fire Prevention Officer  $         1,500 

ESCOKIDOS

Culturally Competant, Trauma‐
Informed wraparound SM 

family services 20

Assist families to address needs for trauma‐informed care, 
food and housing security, and medical and mental health 
support Ambreen  $         1,500 

Boys & Girls Club SM Gameroom Refresh 800
upgrade the games and activities available at its main 
Clubhouse  $         1,500 

The Escondido Creek Conservancy Photo Contest 30,000
funds to have each category’s winner professionally printed 
to properly display their art for the entire community to 
enjoy as they visit the Elfin Forest Interpretive Center  $         1,500 

Regular‐grants

BIPOC Support Foundation

Explore Next Door Youth 
Enrichment Summer Camp San 

Marcos 50

Explore Next Door Youth Enrichment Programs are free 
afterschool and summer programs that provide underserved 
youth ages 8‐14 of San Diego County with multicultural 
experiences, behavioral health tools, personal development, 
and community engagement Ambreen $9,775

Casa de Amparo Casa Kids Campus 94 enhanced prosocial and therapeutic activities Claudia $10,000

Interfaith Community Services
TrueCare (San Marcos) 
Program Manager 21 Supporting an Interfaith Case Manager Position $10,000

Jacob and Cushman North County 
Food Bank Emergency Food Relief 5000

Purchase of approximately 16,000 pounds of nutritious fresh 
produce $3,000

San Diego Children’s Discovery 
Museum

Virtual Education Workshops 
for Low‐Income Schools and 
Children in San Marcos 800

Mobile Children’s Museum educational workshops to five 
schools in need of supplemental STEM programming 
support identified by San Marcos Unified School District 
(SMUSD.) $6,675

North County Health Project, Inc., 
d.b.a TrueCare Uncompensated Care 111

Uncompensated Care program therefore covers these 
bundled visits so low‐income, uninsured individuals and 
families can receive the care they seek $5,000

Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO STEM l Programs 627

STEM‐based learning opportunity to bring ‘Mad Science’ 
events into our school to showcase science to our TK, K, and 
1st thru 5th grade students Claudia $10,000

Urban Corps of San Diego County Ice Machine and Stove 20
To pay an ice machine and stove to finish up the 
Corpsmember kitchen $4,598

San Marcos Bands Band Trip 220 Travel costs of band to competition in St. George Utah $10,000
$75,048 $0 $0

Total Funds Available for Quarter if Awarding Grants at 5% of Assets:

Fall Quarter Grant Requests 2022‐23
 Asset Balance on 6/30/2022:

Total Available for Distribution for FY 2022‐23:
Total FY 2022‐23 Distributions Year to Date:

Total Funds Available for Quarter if Awarding Grants at 4% of Assets:
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(Choose one)~ MINI-GRANT (Choose one) 0 REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Fire Safe Kids 

Date Submitted: 10-5-22 

Total # of people served: 250 

Total # of San Marcos 
residents served: 250 

Amount 
Requested: $1,500 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
Burn Institute 
8825 Aero Drive #200 
San Diego, CA 92123 
burninstitute. org 

Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 
Susan Day, Executive Director 
858-541-2277 
grants@burninstitute.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 

The Burn Institute respectfully requests funding to support the Fire Safe Kids program at elementary schools in 
San Marcos. This semester we have had great success implementing the program at Joli Ann Leichtag, San Marcos 
Elementary among others. We have received requests from additional San Marcos schools and educators to scale 
the Fire Safe Kids to an additional 250 students in 2023 January-June semester. Through the Fire Safe Kids 
program, each child will attend a 30-minute interactive presentation by a Burn Institute staff member, SDSU 
Public Health intern, or a Fire Prevention Officer. To reinforce learning at home, each student receives a bag of 
fire and burn prevention literature in English and Spanish and a home escape plan to develop with their families. 
A mini-grant, $1,500, will be used to suppmi the curriculum and assists the Burn Institute with the expenses 
related to the program including: Fire Safe Kids coloring workbooks, pencils, stickers, Letter to Parents/Family 
Home Escape Plan, Fire Safety Checklist and Fire Safe Kids Activity Books. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 

Research has shown a link between elevated fire and burn injury risk and low-income households. The schools 
identified to participate in this program have a high percentage of families identified as low-to moderate income. 
Fire Safe Kids meets this need in serving the San Marcos community by teaching children how to avoid burns in 
the home, the risks of playing with fire, and how to prepare for and respond to a fire emergency. 

Please attach the following items. 
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 

4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 

5. Regular Grants Only: 
a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including any 

management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: 1-1-23 

Date by which funds will be expended: 6-30-23 

Sigrn1ture of Pre;,ident or Authorized Officer 
l . . •J 

\ . r• t 
/'\ /1 >:/t. . ! )i 1,1/ / / 

Narn.e, Title I I 
/ j 

I I 
Date 

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): citvclerk(cvsan-rnarcos.net 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax = $561.60) 

$1,500 request will assist in supporting the cuniculum and materials specifically for 250 students 
in San Marcos; cost per student is $6.00. 

Fire Safe Kids Coloring Books & Activity Books 

Fire Safe Kids Pencils, Stickers, and Bags 

Letters to Parents/Home Escape Plan, Safety Checklist, Family Fire 

& Burn Prevention in the Home Materials and Brochures in English and Spanish 

Total budget for this PROJECT: 

$275.00 

$100.00 

$1,125.00 

$1,500.00 

** Please note: This budget is to scale the program in San Marcos. The total Fire Safe Kids 
budget for San Diego County is $103,072. 

Grant Request Amount: $1,500 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

The following funders support the Fire Safe Kids Program in North San Diego County to 
support the overall $103,072 project budget. 

$5 000 -Nordson Foundation ** C ~~----------------------------
$ l 0 000 - Rincon ** C 

$ (Name of source) 
------ -------------------

$ (Name of source) 
-------------------

** 

** 



Burn 
Institute .. 

Burn Institute 
2022 Agency Operations Budget 

Revenues 
Contributions 

Grants 
Special Events 
Employee Giving 
Interest 

Total Revenues: 

Expenses 
Salaries/Taxes/Benefits 

Burn Survivor Support Programs 

Fire & Burn Prevention/Community Outreach 

Occupancy /Uti I ities 

Special Events 

Office Supplies/Technology 

Insurance/ Accounting 

Marketing/Publications/Volunteers 

Investment Fees 

Automobile/Travel 

Total Expenses: 

$322,750 
$555,166 
$512,350 

$30,000 
$20,000 

$1,440,266 

$795,200 

$153,400 

$147,335 

$142,376 

$96,225 

$34,450 

$29,750 

$16,350 

$14,000 

$7,500 

$1,436,586 



'y&\'I IRS Dopartment of the Treanury ~t!IP// Intc1·nal Revenue Service 

0288'10 

P.O. Box 2508, Room 4010 
Cincinnati OH 45201 

BURN INSTITUTE 
8825 AERO DR STE 200 
SAN DIEGO CA 92123-2269 

In reply refer to: 4077552422 
May 02, 2014 LTR 4168C O 
23-7260718 000000 00 

00039334 
BODC: TE 

Employer Identification Number: 23-7260718 
Person to Contact: R MOLLOY 

Toll Free Telephone Number: l-877-829-5500 

Dear Taxpayer: 

This is in response to your Apr. 03, 2014, request for information 
regarding your tax-exempt status, 

Our records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under 
section 50l(c)C03) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination 
letter issued in September 1973. 

Our records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within 
the meaning of section 509Ca> of the Code because you are described in 
section(s) 509Ca)(l) and 170(b)(lJCA)(vi). 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of 
the Code, Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or 
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes 
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 
2522 of the Code. 

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding 
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code 
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three 
consecutive years results in revocati~n of tax-exempt status as of 
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to 
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt 
status was revoked under section 6033Cj) of the Code on our website 
beginning in early 2011. 



BURN INSTITUTE 
8825 AERO DR STE 200 
SAN DIEGO CA 92123-2269 

4077552422 
May 02, 2014 LTR 4168C 0 
23-7260718 000000 OD 

00039335 

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number 
shown in the heading of this letter. 

Sincerely yours, 

Tamera Ripperda 
Director, Exempt Organizations 



Chairman of the Board 
Gerald Davee, Esq., Burn Sutvivor 
Retired Attorney 

VP Governance 
Jeff Berend 
Red Flash Media 

VP/Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Robert Pfohl 
Viejas Fire Dept 

Directors 

Jorge Balvaneda 
SDG&E 

Jim Boland 
Community Volunteer 

Jesse Conner 
San Diego City Fire Fighters Local 145 

Jim Cunningham, Esq. 
Law Offices of James J. Cunningham 

Burn 
Institute~ 

2022 Board of Directors 

President 
David Ott 
UC Irvine 

VP Programs 
Brennon Hope, Burn Sutvivor 
Owner, Coastal Contracting, Inc. 

Secretary 
Dolores Juditz 
Community Volunteer 

Christina Figone 
Mother of a Burn Sutvivor, Poway School District 

Christopher Graham 
National University 

Dr. Jeanne Lee 
UCSD Regional Burn Center 

Chief Colin Stowell 
San Diego Fire-Rescue Department 

Mitch Villalpando 
Retired Chief, Sycuan Fire Dept 



  
(Choose one)   MINI-GRANT     (Choose one)  REGULAR GRANT  

Project Name: ESCOKIDOS Culturally 
competent, trauma-informed wrap-
around San Marcos family services 

 

Date Submitted:10/4/2022 

Total # of people served: 40 

Total # of San Marcos 
 residents served: 20 

Amount  
Requested: $ 1,500 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
ESCOKIDOS 
P.O. Box 461641 
Escondido, CA 92046 
www.escokidos.org 

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email 
Tatiana Rosenborg, Executive Director 
(442) 777-3506 
tati@escokidos.org 
 
 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
Founded in 2021, ESCOKIDOS provides culturally sensitive, trauma-informed child abuse prevention 
services to under-served and marginalized children, youth, and families residing in North San Diego County, 
especially the Hispanic population. Our goal is to prevent abuse before it happens and to assist families with 
protective parents that may have already experienced some level of abuse, by providing services, parent 
education, and resources to decrease child maltreatment in the San Marcos Hispanic population. We receive 
referrals from the Family Justice Center/One Safe Place in San Marcos where we have an office, and from our 
strong collaborations with San Diego nonprofits, government, and law-enforcement agencies who refer 
eligible families with young children and teens. All services are evidence/strength-based and tailored to the 
family according to their needs, with an emphasis on acculturation and providing hands-on assistance in 
navigating complex systems, such as legal, social services, mental health, immigration, and schools. All 
services thus far have been provided by volunteers and interns but it has become apparent that the need for our 
services is great and we already have a waiting list that includes many San Marcos residents so we will soon 
need to hire full-time case managers to meet this growing need. Funds needed at this time will be used to 
continue paying Intern Stipends and for gift cards for San Marcos families with school-related and/or 
extracurricular expenses.   
  
We assist San Marcos families using our evidence-based curriculum to address families’ multi-tiered needs as 
the foundation for trauma-informed care, food and housing security, and medical and mental health support. 
Our program aims to prevent and overcome abuse in four ways: 1) assess families’ needs and provide case 
management to create service plans informed by their needs, strengths, protective factors, and resilience; 2) 
provide parent education to equip parents with the skills needed to build healthier relationships with their 
children and overcome family stressors as they transition into the United States; 3) link families to our 
network of fifteen community resource partners to provide support and meet their specific needs; and 4) 
provide parent and family advocacy at the school and partner with the family to create a school plan. 
Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
ESCOKIDOS seeks to partner with the San Marcos Community Foundation to close the gap of social services 
targeting child abuse prevention and assisting children in the San Marcos Hispanic population when children 
are at-risk or experience maltreatment. 
 
According to the County of San Diego Child Welfare Services Data Unit, there was a reported increase of San 
Marcos Hispanic child maltreatment cases, from 33 cases in 2019 to 43 cases in 2021. There is empirical 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 



research proving that child maltreatment is repeated from one generation to the next and it is vital for the 
circle to be broken, to stop the continued risk of child maltreatment in families. ESCOKIDOS is working 
diligently to equip parents with solid parenting skills and basic knowledge on navigating complex systems and 
how to overcome the stressors they face on a daily basis, in order to create a healthy family environment.  

Please attach the following items.  
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1–2-page narrative 
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 
c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 
d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 
e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: Begin 
1/1/2023; End 12/31/2023 

Date by which funds will be expended:1/31/2023 
 
Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

 
______________________     ____________ 
Name, Title                                    Date 
Tatiana Rosenborg, Executive Director 10/4/2022 
 
Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA  92069 
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-marcos.net  

 

mailto:jcadima@san-marcos.net


 
 
Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 
 
Intern Stipends: $100 a month for 12 months = $1,200.00               $1,200.00 

Gift cards for school-related and/or extracurricular enrichment expenses:  

Six cards x $50.00 per gift card = $300.00          $300.00 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

 
Total budget for this PROJECT:               $  1,500.00_ 

 

Grant Request Amount:          $_ 1.500.00_ 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 
 
 
Is this a challenge grant? No     Could it be? No 
 
 
Please list any other funding sources for this project.  
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 
 
$10,000_______ Escondido Community Foundation____________________________ **_(C)_ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

 



Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Expected
 Jan 2022  Feb 2022  Mar 2022  Apr 2022  May 2022  Jun 2022  July 2022  Aug 2022  Sep 2022  Oct 2022  Nov 2022  Dec 2022  Total 2022 

Revenue

   Fundraiser - Go fund me  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $           1,392.13  $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $                     -    $               1,500.00  $                           -    $                2,892.13 
   Misc Fund Raising  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $         125.00  $              175.00  $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            250.00  $                           -    $                  400.00  $                   950.00 
   Total Fundraising Revenue  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            800.00  $                  800.00  $               1,000.00  $                2,600.00 
   Corporate Donations  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $                     -    $                           -    $                           -    $                            -   
   Grant Income  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -   $10,000  $               5,000.00  $             10,000.00  $             25,000.00 
   Individual Donations  $         279.97  $                   -    $                        -    $             175.00  $         930.05  $           5,000.00  $           683.01  $                     -    $                    -    $                     -    $               5,000.00  $                           -    $             12,068.03 
   In-kind donations  $   10,340.20  $     10,227.95  $          13,703.25 11,007.40$      12,495.95$ 13,316.55$       $     12,371.75  $      11,923.00  $     12,300.00  $         2,360.45  $               2,360.45  $               2,360.45  $           114,767.40 
Total Revenue 10,620.17$ 10,227.95$   13,703.25$       11,182.40$      13,551.00$ 19,883.68$      13,054.76$   11,923.00$    12,300.00$   13,410.45$    14,660.45$          13,760.45$          158,277.56$         

Expenditures
Quickbooks  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $              12.50  $             12.50  $              12.50  $                     12.50  $                     12.50  $                     62.50 
   Advertising  $                  -    $             35.00  $                        -    $                35.00  $                  -    $                       -    $           423.67  $              45.00  $             45.00  $              45.00  $                     45.00  $                     45.00  $                   718.67 
   Background Checks  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $           100.00  $            100.00  $                  100.00  $                  100.00  $                   400.00 
   Mileage  $                  -    $                   -    $                 70.00  $                80.00  $           50.00  $              200.00  $             70.00  $            200.00  $           200.00  $            200.00  $                  200.00  $                  200.00  $                1,470.00 
   Digital tools (zoom, texting)  $           50.00  $             50.00  $                 50.00  $                50.00  $           50.00  $                 50.00  $             50.00  $              50.00  $             50.00  $              50.00  $                     50.00  $                     50.00  $                   600.00 
   Charity Tracker Software  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -   40.00$                40.00$           40.00$                 40.00$             80.00$              80.00$             80.00$               80.00$                     80.00$                     520.00$                   
   Dues & Subscriptions  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $            100.00  $           100.00  $            100.00  $                  100.00  $                  100.00  $                   500.00 
   Client Gift Cards  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            100.00  $                  100.00  $                  100.00  $                   300.00 
   Intern Stipends  $         100.00  $          100.00  $               100.00  $             100.00  $         100.00  $              100.00  $           100.00  $            100.00  $           100.00  $            100.00  $                  100.00  $                  100.00  $                1,200.00 
   Grant Writing  $         750.00  $          750.00  $                        -    $                      -    $         500.00  $              350.00  $           350.00  $                     -    $           350.00  $            350.00  $                  350.00  $                  350.00  $                4,100.00 
   Information Technology  $           24.00  $             31.85  $                    6.00  $                  6.00  $         390.00  $                   6.00  $               6.00  $              96.00  $                    -    $              96.00  $                           -    $                     96.00  $                   757.85 
   Liability Insurance  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $         325.00  $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $                     -    $                           -    $                           -    $                   325.00 
   Insurance-Worker comp  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            721.50  $                  721.50  $                  721.50  $                2,164.50 
   Laptops -$             -$               -$                   -$                  -$             600.00$            -$               -$                -$               -$                -$                      -$                       $                   600.00 
   Legal & Professional Fees 500.00$         600.00$           600.00$                 $             600.00  $         900.00  $              900.00  $           900.00  $            900.00  $           900.00  $            900.00  $                  900.00  $                  900.00  $                9,500.00 
   Medical  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            110.00  $                  110.00  $                  110.00  $                   330.00 
   Office Expenses  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -   -$                    -$                -$                     -$                  100.00$            100.00$           200.00$            200.00$                   200.00$                    $                   800.00 
   Office Supplies  $                  -    $               9.57  $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                 60.10  $                    -    $              50.00  $             50.00  $              50.00  $                     50.00  $                     50.00  $                   319.67 
   Printing  $           17.00  $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $              96.00  $                    -    $                     -    $                     96.00  $                           -    $                   209.00 
   Payroll Expenses  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            100.00  $                  100.00  $                  100.00  $                   300.00 
   Peer to Peer Training  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -   100.00$           100.00$            100.00$                    $                   300.00 
   Payroll Taxes  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $         1,034.25  $               1,034.25  $               1,034.25  $                3,102.75 
   Postage And Delivery  $           11.10  $             17.90  $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $              15.00  $             15.00  $              15.00  $                     15.00  $                     15.00  $                   104.00 
   Promotional  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $              50.00  $             50.00  $              50.00  $                     50.00  $                     50.00  $                   250.00 
   Salaries  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $         9,620.00  $               9,620.00  $               9,620.00  $             28,860.00 
   Office Rental  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            800.00  $                  800.00  $                  800.00  $                2,400.00 
   Cell Phones  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            320.00  $                  320.00  $                  320.00  $                   960.00 
   Training Expense  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $           250.00  $                    -    $            250.00  $                           -    $                  250.00  $                   750.00 
   School Supplies  $                  -    $                   -    $                        -    $                      -    $                  -    $                       -    $                    -    $                     -    $                    -    $            200.00  $                  200.00  $                  200.00  $                   600.00 
Total Expenditures  $     1,452.10  $       1,594.32  $               826.00  $             911.00  $     2,355.00  $           2,306.10  $       1,939.67  $        2,132.00  $       2,240.00  $      15,491.75  $             15,241.75  $             15,391.75  $             62,441.44 
Net Operating Revenue  $     9,168.07  $       8,633.63  $         12,877.25  $        10,271.40  $   11,196.00  $         17,577.58  $     11,115.09  $        9,791.00  $     10,060.00  $       (2,081.30)  $                (581.30)  $             (1,631.30)  $             95,836.12 

ESCOKIDOS
Annual Budget

January - December 2022





STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942857 
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540

Entity Status Letter 
Date: 

ESL ID: 

Why You Received This Letter

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 

Entity Name:  

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701

4. We do not have current information about the entity.

5. The entity was administratively dissolved/cancelled on  through the Franchise Tax Board 
Administrative Dissolution process.

Important Information
• This information does not necessarily reflect the entity's current legal or administrative status with any other

agency of the state of California or other governmental agency or body.
• If the entity's powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or if the

entity did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in
California, this information does not reflect the status or voidability of contracts made by the entity in
California during the period the entity was suspended or forfeited (R&TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5,
23305a, 23305.1).

• The entity certificate of revivor may have a time limitation or may limit the functions the revived entity can
perform, or both (R&TC Section 23305b).

Connect With Us 

Web: 
Phone:   

 ftb.ca.gov 
800-852-5711 from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays, except state holidays
916-845-6500 from outside the United States

California
Relay Service: 711711 or 800-735-2929 (For persons with hearing or speech impairments) 

FTB 4263A WEB (REV 12-2019) 



 
 
ESCOKIDOS 
P.O. Box 461641 
Escondido, CA 92046 
T: 442-777-3506 
www.escokidos.org 

 
 

2022 ESCOKIDOS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 

Tatiana Rosenborg, Executive Director  

Richard Rosenborg, Treasurer 

Juanita Venegas, Secretary - County of San Diego, Adult 
Protective Services Investigator 
 
Mercedes Aguilar, Director – Escondido Elementary School 
District, ESL Navigator 
 
Amy Sorenson, Director –Human Trafficking Shelter for 
Minors, Manager (Retired)/Currently Active Community 
Volunteer 

http://www.escokidos.org/


II 
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

Grant Cover Page 

(Choose one ~ MINI-GRANT (Choose one O REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Gamesroom Refresh 
Project 

Date Submitted: 10/27/2022 

Total # of people served: 800 

Total # of San Marcos 
residents served: 800 

Amount 
Requested: $1,500.00 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 

Boys & Girls Club of San Marcos (BGCSM) 
1 Positive Place, San Marcos, CA 92069 
www.boysgirlsclubsm.org 

Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 

Erin Radclyffe, Grants Manager 
760-539-3317, erin@boysgirlsclubsm.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
BGCSM respectfully requests a $1,500 grant to support its Gamesroom Refresh Project. BGCSM offers traditional 
afterschool programming, providing members with access to the lively Gamesroom with activities that improve 
critical thinking and teamwork and Specialty Clubs to pursue their areas of interest. BGCSM launched its 
Gamesroom Refresh Project in 2021 to upgrade the games and activities available at its main Clubhouse, the 
Jennifer Loscher Branch. Since 1995, this Clubhouse has offered a safe, fun space for thousands of youth to 
cultivate friendships and improve their knowledge and skills. As a result, the game equipment has worn from many 
members enjoying the friendly competition. Support from San Marcos Community Foundation would allow 
BGCSM to continue upgrading game equipment and add an Exergame T-Wall64, which includes an interactive 
board of 64 multi-colored LED lights and touch buttons. Players can play and program various games that test their 
a ilit , memor , and teamwork as the find and touch the multi-colored Ii hts in a s ecific order and attern. 
Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
The Gamesroom is a foundational fixture of every Clubhouse, a place for Club members to challenge their skills in 
a range of tournament and trivia style games. Club members are able to compete in games such as traditional pool, 
bumper pool, carpet ball, air hockey, and arcade games. These games integrate logic, knowledge, and strategic 
thinking with varying difficulty, encouraging members to explore their creativity and enhance their critical 
thinking skills. Through these activities, members engage in healthy competition in a safe environment, allowing 
them to learn and grow. 

Please attach the following items. 
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 

4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 

5. Regular Grants Only: 
a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: 11/1/22-

9/30/23 

Date by which funds will be expended: 9/30/23 

it e 
aur, President & CEO 

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
I Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): cit clerk san-marcos.net 



 
 
Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 
 
Exergame T-Wall64         $12,995.00  

Freight           $1,000.00  

Installation & Training        $1,500.00  

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

 
Total budget for this PROJECT:               $15,495.00 

 

Grant Request Amount:         $1,500.00 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 
 
 
Is this a challenge grant? No     Could it be? No 
 
 
Please list any other funding sources for this project. 
 
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 
 
$5,000.00      Boys and Girls Foundation              **P  

$1,500.00      San Diego County Employees’ Charitable Organization           **P  

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

 



Total
Revenue
Contributions $525,500
Grants $1,860,716
Fee Based $964,490
Special Events $305,000
Total Revenue $3,655,706

Expenditures
Personnel Expenses $2,692,684
Operating Expenses $738,872
Fundraising Expenses $122,000
Program Expenses $102,150
Total Expenditures $3,655,706

Net Income $0

Boys & Girls Club of San Marcos
FY2022‐23 Organizational Budget Summary

BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
OF SAN MARCOS 
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P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati OH 45201 

BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF SAN MARCOS 
1 POSITIVE PL 
SAN MARCOS CA 92069-2875 

In reply refer to: 0248564843 
Apr. 17, 2009 LTR 4168C EO 
95-3330218 000000 00 000 

00014978 
BODC: TE 

Employer Identification Number: 95-3330218 
Person to Contact: Ms. Osborne 

Toll Free Telephone Number: l-877-829-5500 

Dear Taxpayer: 

This is in response to your request of Apr. 08, 2009, regarding your 
tax-exempt status. 

Our records indicate that a determination letter was issued in 
June 1982, that recognized you as exempt from Federal income tax, 
and discloses that you are currently exempt under section 50l(c) (3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Our records also indicate you are not a private foundation within the 
meaning of section 509Ca) of the Code because you are described in 
section(s) 509(a)(l) and 170Cb)Cl)CA)(vi). 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of 
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or 
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes 
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 
2522 of the Code. 

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number 
shown in the heading of this letter. 

Sincerely yours, 

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr. 
Accounts Management Operations I 

erin
Highlight



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942857 

• SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540 

Entity Status Letter 

Why You Received This Letter 

Date: 6/27/2022 

ESLID: 4910654164 

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 0882077 

Entity Name: BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF SAN MARCOS 

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

~ 

• 
~ 3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701 d. 

• 
• 

4. We do not have current information about the entity. 

5. The entity was administratively dissolved/cancelled on 
Administrative Dissolution process. 

Important Information 

through the Franchise Tax Board 

• This information does not necessarily reflect the entity's current legal or administrative status with any other 
agency of the state of California or other governmental agency or body. 

• If the entity's powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or if the 
entity did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in 
California, this information does not reflect the status or voidability of contracts made by the entity in 
California during the period the entity was suspended or forfeited (R& TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5, 
23305a, 23305.1 ). 

• The entity certificate of reviver may have a time limitation or may limit the functions the revived entity can 
perform, or both (R&TC Section 23305b). 

Connect With Us 

Web: 
Phone: 

California 

ftb.ca.gov 
800-852-5711 from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays, except state holidays 
916-845-6500 from outside the United States 

Relay Service: 711 or 800-735-2929 (For persons with hearing or speech impairments) 

FTB 4263A WEB (REV 12-2019) 

erin
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Board of Directors 2022-2023 
 

Executive Committee 
 

Paul Malone 
Chair, Auction Committee 
Owner, EvCon Associates 

 
 
 

Debbie Thompson 
Secretary 

Vice President and Relationship Banker,  
California Bank & Trust 

 
 

 

Jason Simmons 
Immediate Past Chair, Safety Committee Chair 

Vice President of Operations,  
 Consultants Collaborative, Inc. 

 
 

Gary Levitt 
Treasurer 

Principal, Sea Breeze Properties 
 
 
 
 

Joe El-Maasri 
Executive Committee Member 

President, Firestone Builders, Inc. 
 

 
General Body 

 
Spencer Bemus 
Board of Director 

Vice President of Tree Care, 
Bemus Landscape 

 
 

Maria Gomez 
Board of Director 

Customer & Community Relations 
EDCO Waste & Recycling Services 

 
 

Warren Gorowitz 
Board of Director 

Director of Corporate Social Responsibility, 
Hunter Industries 

 
 

Michael Harris 
Board of Director 

Vice President, Business Development/Retention 
Motivational Systems, Inc. 

 
 

Dr. Andy Johnsen 
Board of Director 
Superintendent 

San Marcos Unified School District 
 
 
 

Darius Khayat, Esq. 
Board of Director 

Principal, Darius Khayat, A Professional Law 
Corporation 

 
 

Stacy Moskowitz 
Board of Director 

Sr. Sales Executive, California Sales-San Diego  
Kaiser Permanente 

 
 

Dr. Star Rivera-Lacey 
Board of Director 

Superintendent & President 
Palomar College 

 
 

John Seymour 
Board of Director 

Vice President of Acquisitions,  
National Community Renaissance 

 
 

Leon Wyden 
Board of Director 

Vice President of Finance & Administrative Services 
California State University, San Marcos 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Grant Cover Page

(Choose one) ✅  MINI-GRANT     (Choose one) ☐ REGULAR GRANT

Project Name: 16th Annual Elfin Forest
Recreational Reserve Amateur Photo
Contest

Date Submitted: October 31, 2022

Total # of people served: 130,000
annually

Total # of San Marcos
residents served: 30,000+

Amount
Requested: $ 1,500

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website

The Escondido Creek Conservancy
P.O. Box 460791
Escondido, CA 92046-0791
www.econdidocreek.org

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email

Ariel Reed
Education Manager
(256) 221-6634
ariel@escondidocreek.org

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant):

The Elfin Forest Recreational Reserve hosts an annual amateur photo contest. Photos taken at the Elfin Forest
Recreational Reserve can be submitted in several categories between Thanksgiving and Earth Day including
animals, plants, scenic view, water scenery, youth, people’s choice, and best in show. The winner of each category
will receive a prize donated by multiple community sponsors and have their photo printed up to 36x48 to be
displayed inside of the Interpretive Center from May 2023 – December 2023. We are asking for the funds to have
each category’s winner professionally printed to properly display their art for the entire community to enjoy as they
visit the Elfin Forest Interpretive Center.

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community:

This photo contest facilitates the awareness and importance of the protected areas of nature we have surrounding
the San Marcos area. It encourages people of the community to get outside and appreciate nature while providing
an opportunity for local amateur photographers to showcase their skills. Not only do participants of the photo
contest gain an added appreciation of nature, but everyone who visits the Elfin Forest Interpretive Center will also
be inspired by the photography that originated within Elfin Forest Recreational Reserve. It is our goal to inspire
more citizens of San Diego County to appreciate the open spaces we have preserved and become stewards of the
environment in their day-to-day lives. Additionally, many San Marcos community members give their time as
volunteer docents at the Elfin Forest Interpretive Center. These people are the reason that we can keep our doors
open. On average, ⅓ of that group of individuals live in the San Marcos community.

Please attach the following items.
Both Mini-Grant & Regular:
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet)
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations
5. Regular Grants Only:

a. 1-2 page narrative
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990

Expected date project will begin/end: May 1,
2023/December 31, 2023

Date by which funds will be expended: June 1, 2023

Signature of President or Authorized Officer

DocuSign Envelope ID: 352B2F87-AC8E-4DB0-98AF-87CDAF89B565



c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including
any management letters associated with Audit.

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on
Application

e. Optional: letters of support

___________________________________ 10/31/2022
Name, Title                                         Date

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to:
San Marcos Community Foundation
c/o City of San Marcos
1 Civic Center Drive
San Marcos, CA  92069
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-marcos.net

Additional Information:

Annual Operating Budget of the Escondido Creek Conservancy: $1,773,495.38

Tax identification number: 33-0497525
501(c)(3) nonprofit number: 7269095587

List of Board of Directors with Affiliations:
Leonard Wittwer, President
Christina Simokat, Vice-President
Richard Murphy, Treasurer
Lisa Ruder, Secretary
Steve Barker, Member-at-Large
Betsy Keithley, Board Member
Kevin Barnard, Board Member
Ron Forster, Board Member

DocuSign Envelope ID: 352B2F87-AC8E-4DB0-98AF-87CDAF89B565

Executive Director

mailto:jcadima@san-marcos.net


SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project:
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60)

8 – 36x48 inch prints at $177.50 each including tax $ 1,420.00

8 – 6x8 inch photo information labels at $10 each including tax $ 80.00

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

____________________________________________________________ $___________

Total budget for this PROJECT: $ 1,500

Grant Request Amount: $ 1,500
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.)

Is this a challenge grant? No. Could it be? No.

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$ 100 (Name of source) EFRR Donations ** CD

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUl'iDA TlON 
Grant Co\'er Page 

(Choose one) 0 i\lINI-GRANT (Choose one) l2$J REGULAR GRANT 

Total# of people served: 50 Project Name: Explore Next Door Youth 
Enrichment Summer Camp, San Marcos 

Total II of San Marcos 

Amount 
Requested: S9,775 

Date Submitted: l 012/2022 resicknts served: 50 
Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 
BIPOC Support Foundation 
1507 E. Valley Parkway DcMilo Young 
Suite 3 #120 Founder & Executive Director 
Escondido CA 92027 dcmilo(iibipocsupportfoundation.org 
Bi ocsu ortfoundation.org I-760-504-9725 (Cell) 

Brieflv describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
BSF is requesting funds for execution of our Explore Next Door Youth Enrichment summer camp program_ in San 
Marcos. Erpfore Next Door programs provide marginalized students in underserved areas of our county with 
opportunities to engage with their community and build brighter futures. The curriculum encourages hands-on 
learning, artistic expression, in-depth multicultural understanding, exposure to new careers and mentors, . 
opportunities for mindful self-reflection and growth, and locally relevant ethnic experiences. We are requestmg 
funding in the amount of S9,775 to help cover the costs of camp facilities, transportation for field trips, and for 
purchase of student entrance tickets for our various educational field trips-including trips to Cal State San 
Marcos, as Batiquitos Lagoon, Heritage Pond, Jack's Pond Nature Center, Agua Hcdionda 's Environmental 
Stcwardshi Program, and to Torrey Pines State Park. 
Brieflv describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
BSF's Explore Next Door Summer Camp helps San Marcos youth engage with their community and build a 
brighter future via locally-relevant multicultural education, personal development activities, outdoor experiences, 
career infonnation, and perfonning arts. The camp explores the roots and the future potential of San Marcos, 
creating connections with their city and those who share it with them. Explore Next Door not only serves to bridge 
the cultural and financial differences of San Marcos youth, it provides support for low income families during the 
summer months when schools are closed. 
We provide our camp in economically disadvantaged schools, as designated by HUD's Qualified Census Tract, in 
which participants earn less than 60% of the median for the metropolitan area. The pandemic has 
disproportionately impacted low income families, and it is critical that children have quality educational 
experiences no matter their financial status. No San Marcos organizations currently offer free summer youth 
services. Our Explore Next Door camp aims to fill that gap and provide in-depth multicultural exploration of the 
community, as well as crsonal develo ment ex eriences. 
Please attach the following items. 
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
I. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 
Application 

c. Or,tional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end:{.~1-~~3 
Date by which funds will be expended:S,, , / ;m: 

President or Authorized Officer 

Submit Via Mai l, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): citvclcrk(a s;:m-m;~rcos,.!lct 
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888-695-BIPOC (2476) 
www.bipocsupportfoundation.org 

1507 E. Valley Parkway, Suite 3 #120 I Escondido, CA. 92027 

To the Grant Committee of the San Marcos Community Foundation, 

We respectfully submit our application for the 2022/2023 Endowment Fund Regular Grant. 
Under the current application we are requesting grant funding in the amount of $9,77S.OO total 
for execution of our Explore Next Door Youth Enrichment Program in San Marcos. 

BIPOC Support Foundation (BSF) is committed to breaking down the racial, social, and 

economic barriers that prevent our communities from thriving. BSF works to stabilize 
communities by providing economic assistance, education, and targeted programs. With care 

and focus we are making the necessary adjustments to the systems in place for long-term 
change toward equity for all. We operate by the key principle that success is interconnected. By 
improving the placement of adults, we improve the education of children; by improving the 
education of children, we improve the future of individuals and communities across the US. We 
empower the community with tools to sustain itself via donations, resources, and mentorship. 

BSF's Explore Next Door Youth Enrichment Programs are free afterschool and summer 
programs that provide underserved youth ages 8-14 of San Diego County with multicultural 

experiences, behavioral health tools, personal development, and community engagement. BSF 
currently offers these innovative educational programs for marginalized students that are 
primarily Black, Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC) in San Diego's Valencia Park 
neighborhood, with plans to expand to San Marcos, Paradise Hills, and City Heights next year. 
The curriculum is designed to encourage hands-on learning, in-depth multicultural 
understanding, opportunities for mindful self-reflection and growth, exposure to locally relevant 

ethnic experiences, and conservation-focused education on the unique environmental features 
of San Diego's coast and outdoor spaces. In each of our programs we ensure a diversity of 

participants at all levels of outreach and education, enabling students to see themselves 

represented in a wide variety of dynamic roles. 

Our 2022 program curriculum included: 
• Cultural history of Egypt, South America, Mexico, MesoAmerica, and North America. 
• Behavioral health tools such as mindfulness exercises, mediation, yoga, and journaling. 

• Engaging interactive activities such as themed escape rooms, cultural dance, arts and 
crafts, mural creation, and team building. 

• Exposure to a variety of ethnic foods, art, crafts, music, and dance. 
• Outdoor experiences and conservation education. 

• Career education with local community professionals such as artists, authors, volunteers 

from lllumina to speak about careers in STEM, and tradespeople in the areas of welding 
and electronics. 

Scanned with CamScanner 



The 2023 San Marcos Explore Next Door Summer Camp will consist of two 1-week camps 
during the summer, serving at least 50 local students. The focally-focused curriculum develops 
children's connection with their community, which fosters deeper relationships and raises the 
likelihood of children remaining in school and successfully beginning a career. This inclusion 
decreases feelings of societal isolation for students from low-income and minority households. 
By increasing awareness of diverse cultures and the contributions they bring to our community, 
we encourage our youth to become more compassionate community members. This diverse 
multicultural curriculum with a focus on mindfulness-based behavioral health is not only novel 
for the San Marcos students, it is a unique and much-needed offering for San Diego County. 

Our quality partnerships have enabled the success of the Explore Next Door programs. We 
have a strong working relationship with the San Marcos Boys and Girls Club, a staple of San . 
Marcos. BSF has donated 210 backpacks filled with school supplies for their students, and this 
year we are working together for family and community outreach, and curation of locally 
impactful Explore Next Dor curriculum. Other partners include Vista Boys and Girls Club, 
Valencia Park Elementary School, Perry Elementary, Chefs de Cuisine Association of San . 
Diego, Inner City Athletics Program, Social Advocates for Youth (SAY) San Diego, Words Alive, 
lllumina Inc., and HandsOn San Diego. Together we work to ensure our programs are 
responsive to local needs, diverse in topics ranging from arts to environmental conservation, 

and foster the success of our community partners. 

Under the current San Marcos Community Foundation Endowment Fund grant application, we 
are requesting $9,775.00 in funding to support our organization in expanding Explore Next Door 
Youth Enrichment Programs in North County San Diego for the 2023 year. Specifically, the 
funds will be used for educational field trips - including for facilities costs at Cal State San 
Marcos, and for transportation and entrance fees for destinations such as Batiquitos Lagoon, 
Heritage Pond, Jack's Pond Nature Center, Agua Hedionda's Environmental Stewardship 
Program, and to Torrey Pines State Park. 

Thank you for your consideration of our application. We look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 
DeMiloYoung 
Founder & Executive Director 
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project:
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60)

Camp/Grant Administrator: 2 staff at $40/hr for 100 hrs___________________ $  8,000.00

Camp Leaders/Instructors: 10 staff at $25/hr for 60 hrs____________________ $15,000.00

Camp Educators/Contractors: 10 contractors at $450 per session____________ $  4,500.00

Food Truck/Catering: $12/person, 60 people, 5 days _________________ $  3,600.00

(1) Field Trip Tickets: $25/person, 60 people, 2 days____________________ $  3,000.00

T-Shirts and Lanyards: $20/person, 60 people______________________ $  1,200.00

Hand Sanitizer/Cleaning Supplies___________________________ $     300.00

(2) Camp supplies, backpacks and yoga mats: 50 at $100/each_______________ $  5,000.00

Workbooks: 50 at $8/ea__________________________________________ $     400.00

(3) Books: 50 sets at $50/ea__________________________________________ $  2,500.00

(4) Food & Snacks: 60 at $35 each_____________________________________ $  2,100.00

(5) Camp Facilities/Transportation__________________________________ $  6,000.00

INDIRECT EXPENSE: 15% of direct expense $   1,275.00

Total budget for this PROJECT: $59,340.00

Grant Request Amount: $9,775.00
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.)

Is this a challenge grant? No

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$24,785.00 San Diego Foundation Opening the Outdoors Grant **C

$5,000.00 Alaska Airlines Grant **C

$5,850.00         Harris Foundation    **C

$13,930.00 Donations, Board commitment **P



BIPOC Support Foundation
Budget Overview:  FY 2022

January - December 2022

  Wednesday, June 29, 2022 10:13 AM GMT-07:00   1/1

TOTAL

Revenue

Donations

Corporate Donations 18,466.30

Individual Donations 62,335.00

Total Donations 80,801.30

Grants

Restricted 347,495.00

Unrestricted 42,743.85

Total Grants 390,238.85

Total Revenue $471,040.15

GROSS PROFIT $471,040.15

Expenditures

Bank Charges & Fees

PayPal Fees 575.00

Total Bank Charges & Fees 575.00

Business Support Related Costs 572.00

Contractors 28,094.00

Grant Payment 20,000.00

Insurance 2,000.00

Job Supplies 58,405.36

Legal & Professional Services 3,000.00

Mailbox Rental 120.00

Meals & Entertainment 35,132.00

Membership Fees 1,239.00

Office Supplies & Software 1,282.00

Payroll Expenditures 266,730.00

Rent & Lease 14,900.00

Transportation 16,800.00

Utilities 150.00

Total Expenditures $448,999.36

NET OPERATING REVENUE $22,040.79

NET REVENUE $22,040.79



BIPOC Support Foundation
Statement of Activity

January - December 2021

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, October 5, 2022 07:37 AM GMT-07:00   1/1

TOTAL

Revenue

Donations

Corporate Donations 15,373.76

Individual Donations 24,254.64

Total Donations 39,628.40

Grants 11,905.00

Restricted 26,100.00

Total Grants 38,005.00

Total Revenue $77,633.40

GROSS PROFIT $77,633.40

Expenditures

Advertising & Marketing 2,271.60

Bank Charges & Fees 630.58

Contractors 11,911.36

Food & Snacks 900.95

Fundraising Related 1,000.00

Grant Payment 9,000.00

Insurance 1,428.00

Legal & Professional Services 5,904.21

Mailbox Rental 37.97

Meals & Entertainment 402.56

Membership Fees 1,533.00

Office Supplies & Software 1,541.17

Postage 575.61

Program Supplies 7,624.89

Uncategorized Expense 125.00

Utilities 148.16

Total Expenditures $45,035.06

NET OPERATING REVENUE $32,598.34

Other Expenditures

Other Miscellaneous Expenditure 377.36

Total Other Expenditures $377.36

NET OTHER REVENUE $ -377.36

NET REVENUE $32,220.98



Short Form
OMB No. 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Form 990-EZ

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code 2021(except private foundations)

G Do not enter social security numbers on this form, as it may be made public. 
Open to Public

Department of the Treasury G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990EZ for instructions and the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

A For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2021, and ending ,
Check if applicable:B C D Employer identification number

Address change

Name change
Telephone numberE

Initial return

Final return/terminated

Amended return Group ExemptionF
Application pending GNumber

Accounting Method: Cash Accrual Other (specify)G G CheckH if the organization is notG
GI Website: required to attach Schedule B

(Form 990).501(c)(3) 501(c) ( ) (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527J HTax-exempt status (check only one) '

Corporation Trust Association OtherK Form of organization:

Add lines 5b, 6c, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if totalL
G$assets (Part II, column (B)) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I)Part I
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Program service revenue including government fees and contracts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2
Membership dues and assessments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Investment income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4
Gross amount from sale of assets other than inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 a 5 a
Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 5 b

5 cGain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (subtract line 5b from line 5a). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c
Gaming and fundraising events:6
Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than $15,000) . . . . a 6 a

$Gross income from fundraising events (not including of contributionsb
from fundraising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the sum
of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 b
Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 6 c

Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a andd
6b and subtract line 6c). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 d
Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a 7 a
Less: cost of goods sold. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7 b
Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (subtract line 7b from line 7a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 7 c
Other revenue (describe in Schedule O) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8

G9 Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5c, 6d, 7c, and 8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

10Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Benefits paid to or for members. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 11
Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 12
Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13
Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14
Printing, publications, postage, and shipping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15
Other expenses (describe in Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 16

G17 Total expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Excess or (deficit) for the year (subtract line 17 from line 9). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 18

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with end-of-year19
figure reported on prior year's return). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20

GNet assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 21

BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990-EZ (2021)

TEEA0812L    09/27/21

85-2617598

888 695 2476

BIPOC SUPPORT FOUNDATION
1507 E VALLEY PARKWAY, STE 3 #120
ESCONDIDO, CA 92027

X
WWW.BIPOCSUPPORTFOUNDATION.ORG

X
X

77,613.

X
77,613.

77,613.
9,000.

18,394.

614.
17,400.
45,408.
32,205.

654.

32,859.

SEE SCHEDULE O
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Form 990-EZ  (2021) Page 2

Part II Balance Sheets (see the instructions for Part II)
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) Beginning of year (B) End of year
Cash, savings, and investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 22
Land and buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 23
Other assets (describe in Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 24

25 Total assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25
26 Total liabilities (describe in Schedule O) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26
27 Net assets or fund balances (line 27 of column (B) must agree with line 21). . . . . . . . . . 27

ExpensesStatement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the instructions for Part III)Part III
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (Required for section 501

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose? (c)(3) and 501(c)(4)
organizations; optionalDescribe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as
for others.)measured by expenses. In a clear and concise manner, describe the services provided, the number of persons

benefited, and other relevant information for each program title.
28

G(Grants ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 a$
29

G(Grants ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 a$
30

G(Grants ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 a$
Other program services (describe in Schedule O) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31

G(Grants ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 a$
G32 Total program service expenses (add lines 28a through 31a). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

(list each one even if not compensated ' see the instructions for Part IV)List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key EmployeesPart IV
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(d) Health benefits,(c) Reportable compensation(b) Average hours per contributions to employee (e) Estimated amount of(Forms W-2/1099-MIS/(a) Name and title week devoted to benefit plans, and deferred other compensation1099-NEC)position compensation(if not paid, enter -0-)

TEEA0812L   09/27/21BAA Form 990-EZ (2021)

85-2617598

9,294.

28,181.

BIPOC SUPPORT FOUNDATION

18,887.

654.

654.
0.

654.

32,918.

32,918.
59.

32,859.

X

X

BUSINESS SUPPORT FOR UNDERSERVED COMMUNITIES OF BLACK, INDIGENOUS
AND PERSONS OF COLOR - PROVIDE SUPPORT IN THE FORM OF GRANTS, MEDIA
PROMOTION, BUSINESS RESOURCES, AND REFERRALS.

DEMILO YOUNG
CHAIR 40 0. 0. 0.
KERRY-ANN MADDOX
SECRETARY 2.5 0. 0. 0.
ABBY HIDALGO REYNOLDS
TREASURER 15 0. 0. 0.
STARMESHIA JONES
DIRECTOR 10 0. 0. 0.
EMILY DRAGON
DIRECTOR 25 0. 0. 0.
BRANDI SASORE
DIRECTOR 1 0. 0. 0.

SEE SCHEDULE O

SEE SCHEDULE O

SEE SCHEDULE O
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~ Department of the Treasury f_m Internal Revenue Service 

IRS Tax Exempt and Government Entities 
P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati, OH 4520 I 

BIPOC SUPPORT FOUNDATIO 
C/O DEMILO YOUNG 
4231 BALBOA AVENUE UMBER 1284 
SA DI EGO CA 9211 7-0000 

Dear Applicant: 

Date: 

12/13/2020 
Employer ID number: 

85-2617598 
Person to contact: 
Name: Customer Service 
ID number: 31954 
Telephone: (877) 829-5500 

Accounting period ending: 

December 31 
Public charity status: 

170(b)(1 )(A)(vi) 
Form 990 / 990-EZ / 990-N required: 

Yes 
Effective date of exemption: 

August14, 2020 
Contribution deductibility: 

Yes 
Addendum applies: 

No 
DLN: 

26053675001740 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code 
([RC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also 
qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under Section 2055 , 2106, or 2522. This 
letter could help resolve questions on your exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 50 I (c)(3) are further classified as either public charities or private 
foundations. We determined you're a public charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

Jf we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show 
you're required to file an annual information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 
990-N, thee-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three consecutive years, your exempt 
status wi ll be automatical ly revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of 
this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. 
Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar to view Publication 4221 -PC, Compliance Guide for 50 I ( c)(3) Public 
Charities, which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Sincerely, 

~ (L. ~ 

Stephen A. Martin 
Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 (Rev. 2-2020) 
Catalog Number 35152P 



OFFICERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DeMilo Young - Founder / Executive Director
Co-owner of SoCal Green Screen/Student of USD Continuing & Professional Education
in Nonprofit Leadership and management
Email: demilo@bipocsupportfoundation.org
760-504-9725

Abby Reynolds - Treasurer
Homeschooling parent/Board member of Center Stage Productions
Email: abby@bipocsupportfoundation.org
760-224-4140

Brandi Sasore - Director
Owner of Buzzworthy Branding
Email: Brandi@bipocsupportfoundation.org or brandi@buzzworthybranding.com

Emily Dragon - Director / Copywriter
Owner/Editor of Reflective Publishing
edragon@bipocsupportfoundation.org
760-500-8783

Starmeshia Jones - Director /Social Media Coordinator
School psychologist
starmeshia@bipocsupportfoundation.org
585-627-3790

Kerry-Ann Maddox - Board Secretary
Government employee
Kerry-Ann@bipocsupportfoundation.org
843-263-9033



 

 

Jennifer Loscher Branch & 
Administrative Offices 
1 Positive Place 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Tel. 760.471.2490 
Fax 760.539.3324  
www.boysgirlsclubsm.org 
 
Walter J. & Betty C.  
Zable Foundation Branch 
413 Autumn Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
 
School Campus Programs 
Double Peak K-8 School 
Joli Ann Leichtag Elementary School 
La Mirada Academy 
San Elijo Middle School 
San Marcos Middle School 
Woodland Park Middle School 
 
Affordable Housing Sites 
Copper Creek Apartments 
Melrose Villas Apartments 
Paseo del Oro Apartments 
Westlake Village Apartments 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Paul Malone, Chair  
Jason Simmons, Immediate Past Chair 
Debbie Thompson, Secretary 
Gary Levitt, Treasurer 
Joe El-Maasri 
 
Board of Directors 
Spencer Bemus 
Maria Gomez 
Warren Gorowitz 
Michael Harris 
Dr. Andy Johnsen 
Darius Khayat 
Stacy Moskowitz 
Dr. Star Rivera-Lacey                                
John Seymour 
Leon Wyden 
 
 
President & CEO 
Cathy Carothers Baur 
 

September 26, 2022 
Ref: BIPOC Support Foundation Letter of Support 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
It is my absolute honor to write this letter of support on behalf of the BIPOC Support 
Foundation. Boys & Girls Club of San Marcos (BGCSM) is proud to partner with a fellow 
community organization whose mission to support, uplift, and advocate for historically 
marginalized communities closely aligns with our own.  
 
The BIPOC Support Foundation strives to positively impact those who experience barriers 
to high-quality programs, and equip these individuals with the tools and resources 
necessary to ensure self-sufficiency and enhanced access to supportive services and 
opportunities. BGCSM aims to further the physical, socio-emotional, and intellectual 
growth and wellness of school-aged youth in San Marcos, offering impactful programs 
that encourage healthy relationships with mentors and peers, access to technology, and 
new learning opportunities. BGCSM’s membership base is primarily composed of Club 
members who have limited access to extracurricular activities and programs that 
promote learning and growth beyond the classroom.  
 
With support from the BIPOC Support Foundation, BGCSM was able to encourage 
academic success by providing Club members with new backpacks and school supplies, 
allowing them to begin the new school year feeling refreshed and prepared for another 
successful year. Through this partnership, both organizations are able to significantly 
impact the youth and families in the North County San Diego community. The BIPOC 
Support Foundation offers invaluable programs and services to youth that promote 
academic success, positive social connections, and equitable access to supportive 
resources.  
 
I have no doubt that the BIPOC Support Foundation Summer Camp Program will enrich 
the lives of San Diego youth and provide them with hands-on learning experiences that 
furthers their worldview, encourages self-confidence, and provides opportunities to 
pursue their creative interests. We look forward to learning of the rewarding experiences 
that this organization offers to youth as they realize their full potential and become the 
future leaders in our community.  
 
Should you need further information, please feel free to reach out to me at 760-539-
3304 or cathy@boysgirlsclubsm.org. Thank you for your consideration and commitment 
to the success of these inspiring youth.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Cathy Baur 
President & CEO 
Boys & Girls Club of San Marcos  



  
(Choose one)   MINI-GRANT     (Choose one)  REGULAR GRANT  

Project Name: Casa Kids Campus 

Date Submitted: 10/5/22 

Total # of people served: 94 

Total # of San Marcos 
 residents served: 94 

Amount  
Requested: $10,000 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
 
Casa de Amparo 
325 Buena Creek Road 
San Marcos, CA 92069-9679 
https://www.casadeamparo.org 

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email 
 
Heather Jenkins, M.A., CFRE 
Director of Donor Relations 
760-566-3582 
hjenkins@casadeamparo.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
 
Casa de Amparo is grateful for the opportunity to request a $10,000 grant to support our programs at our Casa Kids 
Campus. We are specifically requesting support to provide enhanced prosocial and therapeutic activities this year. 
Recently, the Annie E. Casey Foundation reported, “More than seven million children in the United States are 
struggling with anxiety, depression, and related mental health challenges in what amounts to a mental health crisis 
across race, ethnicity, economics, and sexual identity” (Candid, Philanthropy News Digest, 9 August 2022). 
Society is experiencing an escalating mental health crisis and at-risk foster children—youths we serve—are among 
the most vulnerable. Additional prosocial and therapeutic activities are an important component to healing. 
Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
 
Since 1978, Casa de Amparo has been an oasis in San Marcos for foster youths who have experienced significant 
traumas, such as domestic violence, gang activity, exposure to substance abuse and/or violence. We also treat 
medically vulnerable children, youths with special needs, and pregnant and/or parenting foster girls and their 
infants. Many of the girls we serve have been removed from their homes due to involvement in Commercial 
Sexual Exploitation of Children (CSEC) and are still regularly victimized. Without Casa de Amparo, San Marcos 
could see an escalation in detrimental behaviors, an increase in homelessness, and a further spiral of generational 
disfunction. We help youths heal so they can have a successful and healthy life and improve their families’ future 
outcomes. 
Please attach the following items.  
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 
c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 
d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 
e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: 

Date by which funds will be expended: 
 
Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

 
Name, Title                                    Date 10-5-22 
Katherine M. Karpé, Director of Development 
 
Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA  92069 
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-marcos.net  

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 
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Narrative to the San Marcos Foundation | Regular Grant Cycle 
 
Casa de Amparo Overview 
 
The mission of Casa de Amparo is to support those affected by and at risk of child abuse and 
neglect, through a range of programs and services that promote healing, growth, and healthy 
relationships.  
 
Casa de Amparo provides 1) short-term residential care for foster youths who have been 
removed from their homes due to significant abuse and/or neglect, gang activity, exposure to 
substance abuse and/or violence, and 2) transitional services beyond short-term residential care. 
This population includes medically vulnerable children, youths with special needs, and pregnant 
or parenting foster girls and their infants. But the support does not end with a safe place to sleep, 
healthy food, and medical care; we also provide extensive counseling, educational support, and 
therapeutic programs designed to begin to heal the children who come to the Casa Kids Campus. 
This is a challenging population to serve due to their traumatic experiences, but we are 
committed unconditionally – empowering youths to establish connections with trusted adults. 
For many of these kids, it is their first introduction to a healthy and safe relationship.  
 
Residential Services Program | Casa Kids Campus 
 
Casa de Amparo’s Residential Services Program at our Casa Kids Campus is a Short-Term 
Residential Therapeutic Program (STRTP) that provides licensed residential care and intensive 
therapeutic treatment services in a safe, welcoming environment to foster youth, ages 12-18, who 
have been traumatized by severe child abuse or neglect. Residential Services has improved the 
quality of care for children and teens in the foster care system through the combined efforts of 
our health care staff, clinical therapists, and residential counselors who implement individualized 
treatment plans to enhance each resident’s recovery and provide them the necessary resources to 
become successful, healthy young adults. 
 
The youth stay in welcoming, home–like cottages that have kitchens, common living areas, 
patios, and laundry facilities. This is the setting where some of these young participants have 
their first experience of feeling safe while they sleep. The property also has outdoor play areas, 
gardens, library, and activities room, which create healthy social encounters in a safe 
environment. Each Casa Kid receives comprehensive trauma-informed care tailored to their 
individual physical, social, emotional, developmental, and educational needs, while also ensuring 
they get to experience healthy childhood experiences. It is a place where children who have 
suffered neglect can begin to process their feelings in a way that feels safe and allows them to 
take their first steps toward healing. 24/7 care is provided at the campus, including: nutritious 
meals, medical care, transportation, counseling and group therapy with licensed clinicians, 
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educational support, parenting curriculum for young mothers, supervised family visitation, and 
recreational / therapeutic activities.  
 
We have a need to establish and grow our prosocial and therapeutic activities to make an 
impact on our ability to provide life-enriching experiences.  
 
The goals of this project are to: 
 
1. Provide an increased variety of therapeutic social and emotional activities for youth and staff 

to boost morale during challenging times, celebrate their accomplishments, and help them 
feel more connected to each other.  

2. Increase youth’s willingness to participate in therapeutic activities and engage with staff and 
peer residents. 

3. Increase trust between youth and staff. 
4. Increase appreciation for staff through catered lunches, treats in the break room, and 

opportunities to receive gift cards to local restaurants, gasoline, movies, etc. 
 
Experiences will provide additional enrichment opportunities for our youth to promote mental 
health, therapeutic interventions, healing, and fun, including field trips and on-site activities. 
Activities selected will combine therapeutic components, play, skill-building, stress relief, and 
learning, while minimizing staff facilitation time by contracting with outside service providers.  
 
Activities will be provided both on-site and off-site in the community and may include but will 
not be limited to the following: 
 
• UCSD ropes course  
• Nature Unplugged guided hiking day trips   
• Equine Therapy, and horseback riding at Breeze Mill Farm near Elfin Forest 
• Clay ‘n Latte paint your own pottery studio in Vista  
• Ice Cream Sundae Sundays on-site or off-site at a local creamery 
• Gardening supplies and classes to enhance the on-site garden 
• Outdoor movie nights on-site with a large projector and comfortable lounge seating 
• Field trips to iconic San Diego locations like Belmont Park, Balboa Park, Coronado, Mission 

Bay, etc. 
• Cooking classes onsite 
• Coastal Roots Farm visit and tour in Encinitas 
• Crafts workshops and takeaway DIY craft kits in San Marcos  
 
 
 
 

On behalf of the youths we serve, our dedicated staff, and Board of Directors,  
thank you for your consideration of our request. 

 
 
 



 
 
Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 
 

Expense Item Total Budget Request to the San Marcos 
Foundation 

Personnel, Coordination and Attendance 
Residential Director (3%) $3,000 $0 
Residential Coordinators (Three at 

12%) 
$27,500 $0 

Clinical Supervisor (5%) $6,250 $0 
Therapists (Three at 10%) $21,000 $0 
Benefits and Taxes at 20% $11,550 $0 

Total Staff $69,300 $0 
Direct Expenses 
Supplies for Therapeutic and 
Experiential Experiences 

$25,000 $5,000 

Field Trip Costs $22,000 $5,000 
Transportation $2,500 $0 
Food and Snacks  $10,000 $0 
Evaluation $2,500 $0 
Other $5,000 $0 
Total Direct Expenses $67,000 $10,000 
Subtotal $136,300 $10,000 
Indirect 15% $20,445 $0 
Total $156,745 $10,000 

   
Grant Request Amount:          $10,000 

(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 
 
Is this a challenge grant? No     Could it be? If needed. 
 
Please list any other funding sources for this project.**Indicate if funds are committed (C), 
conditional (CD), or pending (P). 
$5,000 Albertsons C 
$5,000 Cox Communications P 
$5,000 The Elwyn Heller Foundation P 
$10,000 Max and Victoria Dreyfus Foundation P 
$7,500 Teichert Foundation P 
  

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

 



Casa de Amparo

Operating Budget

FY 2022-2023 

FY 22/23 Budget

Operational Revenues

         Contributions                 1,956,000 

         Grant Revenue                 8,362,492 

         Miscellaneous Income                    157,095 

      Total Operational Revenues               10,475,587 

Total Revenues               10,475,587 

Operational Expenditures

         Personnel                 5,428,568 

         Employee Benefits                 1,257,876 

         Occupancy                 1,433,049 

         Program Expense                    374,400 

         Supplies                    266,875 

         Professional Services                    413,806 

         Transportation                    132,589 

         Equipment Expense                    151,281 

         Training, Meetings, Other                       82,069 

         Telephone                       94,109 

         Advertising & Promotion                       33,510 

         Bank and other Fees                       24,296 

         Postage, Printing, and Shipping                       41,607 

         Fund Raising Expense                    174,080 

         Total Miscellaneous                         5,267 

      Total Operational Expenditures                 9,913,383 

Non-Operational Expenditures

            Depreciation                    458,881 

            Free Use of Land                       53,196 

      Total Non-Operational Expenditures                    512,077 

Total Expenditures               10,425,460 

Net Gain/(Loss)                       50,127 



 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942857 
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540

Entity Status Letter 
Date: 

ESL ID: 

Why You Received This Letter

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 

Entity Name:  

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701

4. We do not have current information about the entity.

5. The entity was administratively dissolved/cancelled on  through the Franchise Tax Board 
Administrative Dissolution process.

Important Information
• This information does not necessarily reflect the entity's current legal or administrative status with any other

agency of the state of California or other governmental agency or body.
• If the entity's powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or if the

entity did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in
California, this information does not reflect the status or voidability of contracts made by the entity in
California during the period the entity was suspended or forfeited (R&TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5,
23305a, 23305.1).

• The entity certificate of revivor may have a time limitation or may limit the functions the revived entity can
perform, or both (R&TC Section 23305b).

Connect With Us 

Web:      ftb.ca.gov 
Phone:  800.852.5711 from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays, except state holidays 

  916.845.6500 from outside the United States   
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech impairments 

FTB 4263A WEB (REV 12-2019) 



 

Treating and Preventing Child Abuse and Neglect 
 

Casa de Amparo 
2022 Board of Directors Roster 

 
100% of Casa de Amparo’s Board of Directors contributes  

to the organization, including annual and capital gifts.  
 

325 Buena Creek Road • San Marcos • CA 92069  
 

 Phone: 760-754-5500 • Fax: 760-566-3569 • Website: www.casadeamparo.org 
 

New Directions • Child Development Center • Family Visitation Center • Counseling Services • Residential Services • Young Parent Network 

Chair of the Board 
Richard Berwick (10/13-12/22) 

President, Cross Armory 
 

Vice-Chair 
Vanessa Negrete (7/18-12/24) 

Attorney, Negrete Law Group, P.C. 
 

Immediate Past Chair 
Kayleen Huffman (10/13-12/22) 
CFO, Bassett Home Furnishings 

 

Secretary 
Mary Ann Bosanac (11/13-12/22) 

Realtor 
 

Treasurer  
Debbie Slattery (3/06-12/24) 

Branch Manager & Vice President, California Bank & Trust  
 
 
 

Members of the Board 
 

Theresa Akatiff (12/20-12/23) 
General Dentist 

 

Liese Cornwell (5/17-12/22) 
Vice President of Strategic Partnerships, San Diego International Film Festival 

 

Marilou Dela Rosa (10/09-12/24) 
Owner, Access Care Culture of Caring 

 

Jim Grant (8/12-12/24) 
President, J.E. Grant General Contractors 

 

Michele Lambert (08/22-12/25) 
CFO, Vista Community Clinic 

 

Tim Lesmeister (12/15-12/24) 
Mortgage Loan Originator, Geo-Corp, Inc. 

 

Jon Montgomery (06/21-12/24) 
Medical Officer, San Diego Sheriff’s Department 

 

Michael Platis (3/07-12/24) 
Senior Project Manager, Cumming Construction Management 

 

Jose Rodriguez (08/22-12/25) 
Senior Vice President, Supply Chain and Total Quality Management, Rubio’s Coastal Grill 

 

Jerry Stein (12/03-12/24) 
Member of the Board of Directors, Stein Family Foundation 

 

Sharon Stein (6/93-12/23) 
Member of the Board of Directors, Stein Family Foundation 
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Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is

true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Signature of officer Date
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Form

Name of organization

Doing business as

Number and street Telephone number

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

Is this a group return 

for subordinates?Name and address of principal officer: ~~

If "No," attach a list. See instructions

Group exemption number  |

Tax-exempt status:

Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:

Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a)

Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b)

Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2020 (Part V, line 2a)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary)

Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12

Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

������������������

Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d)

Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ~~~~~~~~

Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ���

Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)

Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4)

Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10)

~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~

Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e)

Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~

����������������

Total assets (Part X, line 16)

Total liabilities (Part X, line 26)

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
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May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ���������������������
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                      EXTENDED TO MAY 16, 2022

JUL 1, 2020 JUN 30, 2021

CASA DE AMPARO
95-3315571

760-754-5500325 BUENA CREEK ROAD
13,371,197.

SAN MARCOS, CA  92069
XMICHAEL BARNETT

WWW.CASADEAMPARO.ORG
X 1979 CA

TO SUPPORT THOSE AFFECTED BY AND

15
15
135
100
0.
0.

13,221,907.
0.

25,913.
15,221.

10,136,402. 13,263,041.
0.
0.

7,436,635.
0.

591,500.
3,611,165.

10,081,186. 11,047,800.
55,216. 2,215,241.

20,951,198. 23,249,439.
4,092,287. 4,022,335.
16,858,911. 19,227,104.

MICHAEL BARNETT, CEO

P01247587KRISTEN BASS
34-1884125CBIZ MHM, LLC

4722 N 24TH ST, STE 300
PHOENIX, AZ 85016 602-264-6835

X

325 BUENA CREEK ROAD, SAN MARCOS, CA  92069

AT RISK OF CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT, (CONTINUED ON SCHEDULE O)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION

X

9,893,110.
0.

46,145.
197,147.

0.
0.

6,657,708.
0.

3,423,478.

05/11/22
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Form 990 (2020) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III ����������������������������

Briefly describe the organization's mission:

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

~~~~~~

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

( ) ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( )

Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

( ) ( )

Total program service expenses |

Form (2020)

2
Statement of Program Service AccomplishmentsPart III

990

 

   

   

CASA DE AMPARO IS RECOGNIZED AS A MAJOR FORCE IN THE FIELD OF CHILD

X

X

ABUSE PREVENTION. PARTNERING WITH THE GREATER SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY, WE

5,554,576.   

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES PROGRAM PROVIDED 24-HOUR SHORT AND LONG-TERM

CASA DE AMPARO 95-3315571

ASSURE THAT CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES RECEIVE UNIQUE AND INNOVATIVE
SERVICES FOR HEALING, FOR STOPPING CHILD (CONTINUED ON SCHEDULE O)

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES: IN FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021, CASA DE AMPARO'S

RESIDENTIAL GROUP HOME CARE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR 94 CHILDREN,
AGES BIRTH TO EIGHTEEN, INCLUDING PREGNANT AND PARENTING TEENS AND
THEIR BABIES AND THOSE WITH SPECIAL HEALTHCARE NEEDS, WHO HAD BEEN
REMOVED FROM THEIR HOMES DUE TO ABUSE OR NEGLECT. CHILDREN BENEFIT FROM

1,893,290.   
NEW DIRECTIONS TRANSITIONAL HOUSING AND SUPPORT PROGRAM: IN FY2020-2021

A RESIDENTIAL ENVIRONMENT WHICH FOCUSES ON HEALTHY INTERACTIONS WITH
PEERS AND CAREGIVERS. SERVICES INCLUDE NURSING AND HEALTHCARE, CASE
MANAGEMENT, INDIVIDUAL AND GROUP COUNSELING, RECREATION, NUTRITION,
INDEPENDENT LIVING AND SOCIAL SKILLS TRAINING, EDUCATION EVALUATION AND
INDIVIDUALIZED SUPPORT. THE CHILDREN ARE ROUTINELY PROVIDED GROUP,
FAMILY AND INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING, CRISIS INTERVENTION, THREE NUTRITIOUS

CASA DE AMPARO'S NEW DIRECTIONS PROGRAM PROVIDED JOB READINESS TRAINING
AND EMPLOYMENT, CASE MANAGEMENT, HIGHER EDUCATION ACCESS/SUPPORT,
FINANCIAL LITERACY & SOCIAL SKILLS EDUCATION, HEALTHY LEISURE AND
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE, TO HELP 65 FORMER FOSTER YOUTH, AGES 18 TO

1,468,849.   
COUNSELING SERVICES PROGRAM: PROVIDES TRAUMA-INFORMED THERAPY AND CASE

24 AND THEIR CHILDREN. THE GOAL OF THE PROGRAM IS TO HELP CLIENTS MAKE
A SUCCESSFUL TRANSITION FROM FOSTER CARE TO INDEPENDENT LIVING.
SUPPORTIVE INTERVENTION IS PROVIDED BASED ON INDIVIDUAL NEEDS, TO
FOSTER SKILL DEVELOPMENT, SELF-DIRECTION AND PARENTING SKILLS THAT WILL
SUSTAIN THEM ONCE THEY ARE ON THEIR OWN. ASSISTANCE THAT WOULD
TYPICALLY BE PROVIDED BY PARENTS, SUCH AS VEHICLE REPAIR, DENTAL &
HEALTHCARE EMERGENCIES, COLLEGE APPLICATION FEES, ETC. IS PROVIDED.

MANAGEMENT FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES EXPERIENCING OR AT RISK OF CHILD
ABUSE. IN FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 COUNSELING SERVICES PROVIDED SUPPORT TO
159 CHILDREN AND FAMILIES. IN FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 PROVIDED
APPROXIMATELY 14,500 HOURS OF INDIVIDUAL, GROUP, FAMILY AND AGE
APPROPRIATE PLAY THERAPY TO CHILDREN. SUPPORT ALSO INCLUDES

9,429,576.
512,861.   

FACILITATION OF PSYCHIATRIC AND PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES AND OTHER
SPECIALIZATIONS SUCH AS SPEECH THERAPY. ALL SERVICES ARE TAILORED TO
THE INDIVIDUAL STRENGTHS AND NEEDS OF EACH FAMILY SYSTEM (INDIVIDUAL
CHILD, INTACT FAMILY, SINGLE, YOUNG ADULT, COUPLE, ETC.). 
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SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S)
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Audit Committee  
Casa de Amparo 
San Marcos, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Casa de Amparo (the “Organization”), a 
nonprofit entity, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Casa de Amparo as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Casa de Amparo’s 2020 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated January 8, 2021. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 3, 
2022 on our consideration of Casa de Amparo’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Casa de Amparo’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Casa de Amparo’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance.  

San Diego, California 
March 3, 2022
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Casa de Amparo 
Statements of Financial Position 

As of June 30, 2021 2020 
ASSETS 
   Current assets 

  Cash and cash equivalents  $       6,886,780   $       4,680,797  
  Grants receivable 1,063,254  955,301  
  Pledges receivable, net     255,000      255,000  
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets   192,661    109,260  

 Total current assets   8,397,695    6,000,358  

   Pledges receivable, net of current portion   252,427    257,282  
   Land lease   966,343    1,019,536  
   Deposits  38,842   28,587  
   Funds held by community foundations   738,894    569,243  
   Property and equipment, net of depreciation     12,855,238      13,076,192  

Total noncurrent assets     14,851,744      14,950,840  
Total assets  $     23,249,439   $     20,951,198  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
   Current liabilities 

Accounts payable  $      109,591   $      81,849  
Accrued compensation and other expenses   804,528    733,084  
Loan payable, current portion   121,320    114,452  
Deferred revenue 404,233 456,028 

Total current liabilities 1,439,672  1,385,413  

   Other liabilities 
  Loan payable, net of current portion   2,582,663    2,706,874  

Total liabilities   4,022,335    4,092,287  

Net assets 
   Without donor restrictions 13,455,273  13,503,044  
   With donor restrictions 5,771,831  3,355,867  

Total net assets     19,227,104      16,858,911  
Total liabilities and net assets  $     23,249,439   $     20,951,198  

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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Casa de Amparo 
Statements of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

(With Summarized Financial Information for year ended June 30, 2020) 

Without 
Donor 

Restrictions 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total 2020 Total 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
Grant Revenue  $ 8,632,004 $ - $ 8,632,004  $ 8,253,704 
Contributions 940,049  2,778,164  3,718,213  1,281,720 
Special events revenue and related 

contributions 388,475  - 388,475 390,152  
In-kind donations 541,051 - 541,051 229,425  
Interest and other income 188,217 39,149  227,366 109,186  
Net assets released from restrictions 401,349 (401,349) -  -  
Total operating revenue and support 11,091,145 2,415,964 13,507,109 10,264,187  

EXPENSES 
Program Services 9,429,576 - 9,429,576 8,561,326  
General and administrative 1,024,935 - 1,024,935 934,219  
Fundraising 589,261 - 589,261 579,684  
Special events expense 95,144 - 95,144 144,755  
Total Expenses 11,138,916 - 11,138,916 10,219,984 

Change in net assets (47,771) 2,415,964 2,368,193 44,203 
Net assets, beginning of year 13,503,044 3,355,867  16,858,911  16,814,708  

Net assets, end of year $ 13,455,273 $ 5,771,831 $ 19,227,104 $ 16,858,911 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Casa de Amparo 
Statements of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

(With Summarized Financial Information for the year ended June 30, 2020) 

Residential 
Services 
(STRTP) 

New 
Directions 

Transitional 
Housing 

Counseling 
Services 

Family 
Visitation 

Total 
Program 
Services 

General and 
Administrative 

Fundraising 
and Special 

Events 2021 Total 2020 Total 

   Salaries $3,163,367  $436,889  $1,008,741 $272,433  $4,881,430  $657,795  $453,952  $5,993,177  $5,336,939 

   Benefits 920,018 83,761  182,600  45,747  1,232,126  149,790  61,542  1,443,458  1,320,769 

   Occupancy 289,939 664,191  53,369  26,188  1,033,687  29,019  8,370  1,071,076  1,053,855 

   Supplies 456,732  281,206  5,764  57,858  801,560  7,680  2,771  812,011  491,784  

   Depreciation & 
amortization 

268,962 84,701  82,621  35,925  472,209  27,804  11,208  511,221  507,477 

   Program expense 134,399 244,841  6,006  1,154  386,400  5,444  1,735 393,579  378,029 

   Professional services 50,985 13,053  84,210  6,606  154,854  40,084  7,430  202,368  259,340  

   Other expenses 60,330 1,480 1,583  460  63,853 56,841 22,058  142,752  225,196  

   Transportation 56,836 30,127  1,207  46,807  134,977  3,393  2,271  140,641  120,287  

   Interest expense 63,792 19,856  19,609  10,766  114,023  6,491  2,661  123,175  127,944 

   Special event expense - -  -  -  - 2,239 92,905  95,144  144,755  

   Equipment expense 43,861 7,289  8,549 3,689  63,388  18,413 9,014  90,815  134,461 

   Telephone 31,863 23,829  11,727  3,978  71,397  2,570 2,649  76,616  67,089 

   Training, meetings, 
other 13,492 2,067  2,863  1,250  19,672  17,372 5,839  42,883  52,059 

Total functional 
expenses $5,554,576 $1,893,290  $1,468,849  $512,861 $9,429,576  $1,024,935  $684,405  $11,138,916 $10,219,984 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements 
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Casa de Amparo 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30, 2021 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 Change in net assets $       2,368,193  $ 44,203 
   Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash  
      provided by operating activities: 
      Depreciation 458,028 454,284 

      Amortization of donated property 53,193 53,193 

  Realized and unrealized investment gains (169,652)  (1,220) 
  Change in discount of pledges receivable (145) (436) 

  Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets 1,350 (2,719) 

   Changes to operating assets and liabilities: 

      Grants receivable (107,953) 402,820 

      Pledges receivable 5,000 14,922  

      Prepaid expenses and other current assets (83,401) 78,237 

Deposits (10,255) 49,309 

Accounts payable 27,742 (57,248)  

Accrued compensation and other expenses 71,444 76,765  

Deferred revenue (51,795) 424,656 

         Net cash provided by operating activities             2,561,749             1,536,766 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

   Purchases of property and equipment (65,455) (64,547) 

   Additions to construction in progress (184,630) (248,286) 

   Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 11,662 38,937 

    Net cash flows used in investing activities (238,423) (273,896) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

   Repayments on loan payable (117,343) (107,086) 

      Net cash used in financing activities (117,343) (107,086) 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 2,205,983 1,155,784 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,680,797 3,525,013 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $ 6,886,780  $ 4,680,797 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

   Cash paid for interest $ 123,175 $ 129,458 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Note 1 - Nature of activities 

Casa de Amparo (the Organization) was established in 1978 in California as a non-profit corporation and 
is recognized as a 501(c)(3) Tax Exempt organization by the IRS.  Casa de Amparo’s mission is to support 
those affected by, and at risk of, child abuse or neglect through a range of programs and services that 
promote healing, growth, and healthy relationships. 

Casa de Amparo is recognized as a major force in the field of child abuse prevention and 
treatment.  Partnering with the greater San Diego community, it assures that children and their families 
receive unique and innovative services for healing, for stopping child mistreatment of any kind, and for 
ending generational cycles of abuse.  The result is a community where child abuse and neglect are not 
tolerated, and where child abuse awareness and prevention are priorities.    

The Organization offers four integrated child abuse prevention and treatment programs.  Residential 
Services (Short Term Residential Therapeutic Program or STRTP) provides 24-hour care and 
supportive/therapeutic services for children, from birth to 18, removed from the home due to abuse or 
neglect, including pregnant and parenting teens and their babies, and youth with special healthcare 
needs.  New Directions provides transitional housing and supportive services to help former foster youth, 
ages 18 to 25, make a successful transition from foster care to independent living.  Counseling Services 
provides trauma-informed therapy and case management for children and families experiencing, or at-risk 
of, child abuse or neglect. Family Visitation Services provides supervised visits and promotes healthy family 
relationships and reunification. 

The Organization has two campuses. The Casa Kids Campus on 11.4 acres owned by the Organization in 
the Twin Oaks Valley area of San Marcos was opened in April 2012. This campus provides housing for up 
to 50 children including 12 infants, and has a basketball court, a volleyball court, walking trails, gardens, a 
library, a learning center, an art/activities room, training rooms and administrative/support offices. The 
second campus is in Oceanside and is shared by Family Visitation Services and New Directions with 
buildings owned by the Organization and a long-term land lease agreement with the City of Oceanside. 

In 2016, Casa de Amparo responded to the growing need for intensive residential care for pregnant and 
parenting female foster youth and their babies by expanding its pregnant and parenting program capacity 
and space and also expanding overall clinical support space on the Casa Kids Campus. The cottage for 
pregnant and parenting female foster youth and their babies now serves up to 12 moms and 12 babies 
simultaneously.   

In order to comply with the State of California’s Continuum of Care Reform (CCR), Casa de Amparo 
implemented STRTP standards and began the process of Joint Commission accreditation early in fiscal 
year 2017.  Joint Commission accreditation was awarded May 19, 2017.  Casa de Amparo received STRTP 
approval and its licensure from the State of California in January 2019. 

In 2018, Casa de Amparo added the Transition Preparation Program (TPP) within its Residential Services 
program. The TPP serves older teenage foster youth, including youth who are pregnant or parenting.  The 
TPP maintains all aspects of supervision and services provided in Residential Services while preparing 
teens to live independently by simulating apartment style living. 

In 2020, Casa de Amparo continued its campaign to raise funds to expand the Casa Kids Campus in San 
Marcos to include a Teen Wellness Center (TWC) for Foster Youth.  The TWC will be licensed by California 
Community Care Licensing as a Community Treatment Facility, which is a secure Short-Term Residential 
Therapeutic Program (STRTP).  The Teen Wellness Center will be the first of its kind in San Diego County 
and only the third in California. The TWC will serve foster youth who are in need of a higher level of 
emotional, behavioral and mental health care.   
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Note 1 - Nature of activities (continued) 

The TWC will play a vital role in the child abuse treatment and prevention services provided to children 
affected by complex trauma that would otherwise likely be placed out of state.  The Organization plans to 
break ground on the TWC in April of 2022. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of Presentation – The Organization’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”). Based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, the Organization classifies 
resources into two categories: without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions. 

Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets without donor restrictions are free of donor-imposed 
restrictions. All revenues, gains, and losses that are not restricted by donors are included in 
this classification. All expenditures are reported in the without donor restrictions class of net 
assets, including expenditures funded by restricted contributions. Expenditures funded by 
restricted contributions are reported in the without donor restrictions net asset class because 
the use of restricted contributions is in accordance with donors’ stipulations results in the 
release of such restrictions. 

With Donor Restrictions – Net assets with donor restrictions are limited as to use by donor-
imposed stipulations that may expire with the passage of time or that may be satisfied by action 
of the Organization. The Organization reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with 
donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated 
assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
purpose restriction is accomplished, the net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor 
restriction and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Some net assets with donor restrictions include a stipulation that assets provided be maintained 
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the Organization to expend the income 
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed 
stipulations or a Board approved spending policy. 

Revenue Recognition – Revenue from grants is recognized to the extent of eligible services or costs 
incurred up to an amount not to exceed the total grant/contract authorized.  Any amounts received in 
advance are deferred until earned. 

All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, 
depending on the nature of the restriction.  When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified 
to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions. 

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Contributions with 
donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets must be used are recorded as net 
assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions are recorded as net assets without donor 
restrictions. 

The Organization has capitalized the value of the donated land lease as a contribution with donor 
restrictions. Each year the Organization reclassifies amortization of the land lease from net assets with 
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.  For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the 
ending value of the land lease is $966,343 and $1,019,536, respectively. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – the Organization considers cash on hand and short term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 
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Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Grants Receivable – Grants receivable arise in the normal course of operations.  It is the policy of 
management to review the outstanding grants receivable at year-end, as well as the bad debt write-offs 
experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. 
Management determined that no allowance is necessary at June 30, 2021 and 2020.  

Pledges Receivable – Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are recognized as revenue in 
the period received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until donor stipulations are met. 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Unconditional promises to give, with payments due to the Organization beyond one year, 
are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions at the estimated present value of the expected future 
cash flows, using credit risk adjusted rates applicable to the years in which the promises are expected to 
be received. Amortization of the discounts is recorded as contribution revenue in the appropriate net asset 
class.  

An allowance for uncollectible pledges receivable is provided based upon management’s judgement of 
such factors as prior collection history and other relevant factors. Management determined that no 
allowance is necessary at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Funds held by Community Foundations – The Organization transferred assets to community foundations 
holding them as endowed component funds for the benefit of the Organization.  See Note 6 for additional 
detail. 

Property and Equipment – Acquisitions of property and equipment of $5,000 or more are capitalized. 
Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at the appropriate fair market value at the date of 
donation.  Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations.  Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets of 5 to 45 
years. 

Buildings 20 – 45 years 
Furniture and equipment 5 – 7 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

Depreciation expense was $458,028 and $454,284 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets – Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 360, Property, Plant, and 
Equipment requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used by the 
Organization be reviewed for impairment whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. 

Impairment, which is determined based upon the estimated fair value of the asset, is recorded when 
estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset is insufficient to recover its net 
carrying value.  As of June 30, 2021, the Organization did not identify any events or circumstances that 
would require recognition of an impairment loss under this standard. 

Donated Stock – In accordance with authoritative guidance, investments in equity securities with readily 
determinable fair market values and all debt securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses 
included in the statement of activities.  Realized gains and losses on the sale of securities are based upon 
the original cost of the security, as determined by the specific identification method.  Unrealized gains and 
losses represent the change in the fair market value of the individual investments for the year or since the  
acquisition date if acquired during the year and are recorded in the statement of activities as part of current 
year operations. 

Securities acquired by gift are recorded at their fair market value at the date of the gift.  The Organization’s 
policy is to liquidate all gifts of securities immediately upon receipt. 
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Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Contributed Materials and Services – Contributed materials are recorded at their fair market value where 
an objective basis is available to measure their value. Such items are capitalized or charged to operations 
as appropriate.  Certain contributed items are auctioned at the Organization’s special events.  Contributed 
items are included in the statements of activities as in-kind donations and program and special event 
expenses.  The Organization recorded a total of $541,051 and $229,425 in operational expenses related 
to in-kind donations for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Organization receives 
a substantial amount of services donated by volunteers in carrying out the Organization’s program services. 
The services do not meet the criteria as contributions and are, therefore, not recognized in the financial 
statements. 

Functional allocation of expenses – The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among 
its various programs and supporting services.  Expenditures which can be identified with a specific program 
or support service are allocated directly, according to their natural expenditure classification.  Costs that 
are common to several functions are allocated among the program and supporting services based on time 
records, space utilized, and estimates made by the Organization’s management. 

Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires the Organization to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The 
Organization believes that the estimates utilized in preparing these financial statements are reasonable; 
however, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Income Taxes – The Organization is a qualified nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes 
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and 
Taxation Code. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards 
Notification No. 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainties in Income Taxes, which sets a minimum threshold for 
financial statement recognition of the benefit of tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. 
The Organization uses a loss contingencies approach for evaluating uncertain tax positions and continually 
evaluates changes in tax law and new authoritative rulings.  Management believes that the Organization 
has no uncertain tax positions.   

New Accounting Pronouncements – In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“Topic 
842”), and issued several subsequent amendments to the initial guidance. The amendments in these 
updates require lessees to recognize the following for all leases (with the exception of short-term leases) 
at the commencement date, a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising 
from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and, a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents 
the lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. The amendments in this 
update will be effective for the annual period beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is 
permitted. The Company has yet to assess the full impact of this guidance. 

Subsequent Events – Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of 
financial position date but before financial statements are available to be issued. The Organization 
recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence 
about conditions that existed at that date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing 
financial statements. The Organization’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that 
provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statement of financial position, but 
arose after that date and before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Organization has 
evaluated subsequent events through March 3, 2022, which is the date the financial statements are 
available for issuance.  

In May 2021, the Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) determined that Short-term Residential 
Therapeutic Programs (STRTPs) cannot be exempted from Institute for Mental Disease (IMD) 
determination.  The California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) was subsequently directed to 
conduct IMD determination reviews of all STRTPs to ascertain if they’re eligible to claim federal financial  
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Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

participation (FFP).  The DHCS is working with the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) to 
provide guidance to STRTP providers to facilitate the IMD determination reviews. 

An IMD is “a hospital, nursing facility, or other institution of more than 16 beds that is primarily engaged in 
providing diagnosis, treatment, or care of persons with mental diseases, including medical attention, nursing 
care, and related services. Whether an institution is an institution for mental diseases is determined by its 
overall character as that of a facility established and maintained primarily for the care and treatment of 
individuals with mental diseases, whether or not it is licensed as such." A facility designated as an IMD is 
not eligible to claim FFP for any expenditure for services provided to IMD residents. 

In order to continue receiving FFP, Casa de Amparo would have to reduce its number of STRTP beds from 
38. Alternatively, Casa de Amparo is exploring having two STRTP licenses from CDSS for 16 each (total
32) on the San Marcos campus, each program/license with its own distinct address.  If the latter option is
approved by DHCS, Casa de Amparo would be able to provide a total of 32 STRTP beds.

Initially, the DHCS required the IMD determination be completed by December 31, 2021.  However, on 
November 23, 2021, Casa de Amparo received confirmation that it’s IMD determination due date was 
deferred to December 31, 2022. 

Note 3 - Fair Value Measurements 

Due to the short-term nature of cash equivalents, receivables, prepaid expense, accounts payable and 
deferred income, fair value approximates carrying value. In accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Codification No. 820 (FASB ASC 820), fair value is defined as the price that the 
Organization would receive upon selling an asset or transferring a liability in an orderly transaction to an 
independent buyer in the principal or most advantageous market of the asset.  

FASB ASC 820 also establishes a three-tier hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs and to establish the classification of fair 
value measurements for disclosure purposes. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be 
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants 
would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed 
based on the best information available.  

The standard describes three-tier hierarchy of inputs that may be used to measure fair value as follows.  

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) of identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

 Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

 Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Organization’s own assumptions about
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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Note 3 - Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized as below:  
 
    Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2021, Using: 

June 30, 2021  Total  

 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Level 3 

         
Endowment Investor Pools:  
  San Diego Foundation $     345,872 $               - $        345,872 $              - 
  Jewish Community Foundation of 

San Diego 393,022                - 393,022               - 
 
Fair value, end of year $     738,894 $               - $        738,894 $              - 
 
    Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2020, Using: 

June 30, 2020  Total  

 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Level 3 

 
Endowment Investor Pools: 
  San Diego Foundation $     265,794 $               -  $        265,794 $              - 
  Jewish Community Foundation 

of San Diego    303,449                -       303,449 - 
 
Fair value, end of year $     569,243 $               - $        569,243  $              - 
 
Note 4 - Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Cash 
 
The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions.  Accounts at these institutions 
are secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At times, the balances may exceed federally 
insured limits. There have been no losses in such accounts. Management believes that the Organization is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to its cash. 
 
Revenue and Receivables 
 
The Organization received approximately 64% and 80% of its revenue from government contracts for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Organization received $4.9 million or 37% of its 
total revenue from Residential Services (STRTP) and $1.7 million or 12% of its total revenue from its New 
Directions transitional housing program.  For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization received $5 
million or 50% of its total revenue from Residential Services (STRTP) and $1.5 million or 15% of its total 
revenue from its New Directions transitional housing program.   
 
Pledges receivable totaled $507,427 and $520,000 as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.  
Of the total pledges receivable, $500,000 is from one foundation. 
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Note 5 - Pledges Receivable 

Pledges receivable consist of the following at June 30: 

2021   2020 

Net pledges receivable $ 515,000 $ 520,000 
Less imputed discount (7,573)  (7,718) 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts - - 

$ 507,427 $ 512,282

Contributions receivable consist of the following: 
Due in less than one year  $ 255,000 $ 255,000 
Due in one to five years 260,000 265,000 

$ 515,000 $ 520,000

The net present value for the pledges due in more than one year is discounted at a rate of 3%. 

Note 6 - Funds Held by Community Foundations 

Funds held by community foundations consist of endowment funds held by The San Diego Foundation and 
the Jewish Community Foundation of San Diego (the Foundations) for the benefit of the Organization.   

The Organization has granted The San Diego Foundation variance power, which gives their Trustees the 
power to use the Fund for other purposes in certain circumstances. The Funds are subject to The San 
Diego Foundation’s investment and spending policies. 

The San Diego Foundation endowment funds are invested in the following assets classes:  

Asset Class % 
Equity 47.9%
Hedge Funds 14.0% 
Fixed Income 14.1% 
Real Assets 6.2% 
Real Estate 5.5% 
Private Equity 12.0% 
Cash 0.3%

The funds held at the Jewish Community Foundation of San Diego have been designated by the 
Organization’s board of directors to be invested in their pool Organization funds, which have endowment 
like investment objectives.   
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Note 6 - Funds Held by Community Foundations (continued) 
 
The Jewish Community Foundation of San Diego pool Organization funds are invested in the following 
assets classes:  

Asset Class % 
Equity 59.5% 
Defensive Fixed Income 11.9% 
Real Assets 16.1% 
Defensive Hedge Funds 12.5% 

 
The Organization reports the fair value of the Funds in the statement of financial position. Changes in the 
value of the Funds are reported as gains or losses in the statement of activities.  
 
Note 7 - Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 
 
  2021  2020 

    
Buildings  $    14,543,499    $    14,523,664  
Furniture and equipment            360,363              357,781  
Vehicles            334,710              313,978  
       15,238,572         15,195,423  
Less: accumulated depreciation      (4,143,066)       (3,694,332) 
 11,095,506  11,501,091 
Land 916,587  916,587 
Construction in Progress            843,145              658,514  
    
  $    12,855,238    $    13,076,192  

 
Note 8 - Loan Payable 
 
On April 20, 2017, the Organization refinanced its loan agreement with Wells Fargo Bank for the purpose 
of financing the cost of construction of Casa Kids Campus.  Interest is payable monthly at a fixed rate of 
4.35% and the loan matures on May 5, 2024.  The loan is secured by the Casa Kids Campus. 
 
The Organization is subject to compliance with certain debt covenants under the loan agreement. The 
Organization received a waiver for covenant non-compliance for the year ended June 30, 2021.  
 
The aggregate principal payments due under the loan are as follows: 
 

Years ending June 30,   
   
2022 $ 121,320 
2023  126,704 
2024  2,455,959 
   
 $ 2,703,983 
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Note 9 - Contingencies and Commitments 

Government Contracts – The Organization receives a significant portion of its revenues from government 
contracts, which are subject to audits. No provision has been made for any liabilities that may arise from 
such audits since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined. Management believes that any liability, which 
may result from these audits, is not significant. 

Operating Leases – The Organization leases program facilities under non-cancelable operating leases, 
which expire at various dates through July 2021. Total rent expense was $530,209 and $514,248 for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are $145,969 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

The Organization leases real property from the City of Oceanside located at Ivey Ranch Park. The 
Organization constructed a facility on the Ivey Ranch property that is used for its Family Visitation and New 
Directions programs.  The lease commenced in 2007 with a term of 35 years and an option to extend an 
additional 25 years. Rent is free as long as the facility is used to provide family visitation and counseling 
services. The unamortized fair value of the free rent is reported as land lease in the statements of financial 
position. Amortization of the free use of land was $53,193 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Note 10 - Nature and amount of net assets with donor restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes as of June 30: 

2021 2020
Restricted for specified purpose: 
Land Lease – Ivey Ranch $ 966,343 $ 1,019,536 
Capital Campaign for Teen Wellness Center and 

    Support Services building  4,638,139 2,208,130 

Total restricted for specified purpose 5,604,482 3,227,666 

Endowments subject to the Organization’s spending 
policy and appropriation 167,349 128,201 

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 5,771,831 $ 3,355,867

Net assets in the amounts of $401,349 and $318,002 released from donor restrictions by incurring 
expenses satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by donors for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

Note 11 - Retirement Plan 

The Organization sponsors a non-contributory 403(b) retirement plan covering all employees who have 
completed 90 days of eligible service. Contributions to the retirement plan are at the discretion of each 
employee. There were no contributions by the Organization for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

Note 12 - Information Regarding Liquidity and Availability 

Contract revenue from the federal, state and local governments historically represent approximately 80% 
of the Organization’s funding needs. Support without donor restrictions averaged 15%, and the remainder 
funded by contributions with donor restrictions and interest income. 

The Organization’s cash flows have seasonal variations due to a concentration of contributions received at 
calendar and fiscal year-end.  To manage liquidity, the Organization has a policy to structure its financial  
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Note 12 - Information Regarding Liquidity and Availability (continued) 

assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.  The 
Organization invests cash in excess of its daily requirements in money market accounts and short-term 
investments.  As of June 30, 2021, the Organization had $1,025,636 available in its operating reserve 
accounts.  Additionally, the Organization has Board Designated net assets without donor restrictions 
totaling $571,545 that, while the Organization does not intend to spend for those purposes other than those 
identified, the amounts could be made available for current operations, if necessary. 

The following table reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of June 30, 2021, reduced by amounts 
that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position 
date because of contractual restrictions or internal board designations.  Amounts not available include 
certain donor-restricted investments as more fully described in note 10. 

June 30,   2021 
Financial assets at year-end: 

Cash and cash equivalents $   6,886,780 
Grants receivable 1,063,254 
Pledges receivable 507,427 
Funds held by community foundations 738,894 

Total financial assets 9,196,355 

Less: 
Amounts not available to be used within one year: 

Restricted by donors with purpose restriction (4,638,139) 

Pledges receivable to be collected in more than one year (252,427) 

Amounts available to management with Board’s approval: 
Community foundation Organization fund (393,022) 

Amounts unavailable to management in perpetuity: 
Donor restricted endowment (167,349) 
Board-designated endowment (178,523) 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures within one year $ 3,566,895 

Note 13 - Endowment Funds 

Authoritative guidance related to not-for-profit entities provides guidance on the net asset classification of 
donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an enacted version of 
the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (“UPMIFA”) and requires additional 
disclosures about an organization’s endowment funds.  The Organization’s endowment funds consist of 
four individual funds and includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the 
Board of Directors to function as endowments. In accordance with the authoritative guidance, net assets 
associated with the funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, 
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

The Organization has interpreted UPMIFA as the prudent preservation of the fair value of the original gift 
of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  As a result of 
this interpretation, the Organization classifies net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts 
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent 
endowment, (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund and (d) the remaining  
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Note 13 - Endowment Funds (continued) 

portion of the donor-restricted endowment until those amounts are appropriated for expenditures by the 
Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the State of California’s 
UPMIFA. As such, much of the net realized and unrealized appreciation in the fair value of the assets of an 
endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund is considered prudent, unless the donor’s intention 
is indicated in the endowment. 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

 With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

Endowment assets, June 30, 2020 $ 441,042 $ 128,201 $ 569,243 
Investment return, net  130,503 39,148 169,651 
Endowment assets, June 30, 2021 $ 571,545 $ 167,349 $ 738,894 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

 With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

Endowment assets, June 30, 2019 $ 440,929 $ 127,094 $ 568,023 
Investment return, net  113 1,107 1,220 
Endowment assets, June 30, 2020 $ 441,042 $ 128,201 $ 569,243 

Endowment net assets without donor restrictions identified in the tables above represent Board designated 
net assets. 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below 
the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. 
There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.  

Due to the relatively small size of its endowment, the Organization has not enacted a policy of spending 
principal or principal appreciation of the funds. The Organization invests the funds for total return and 
reinvests all interest and dividends to enhance the growth of the funds. The Organization believes it is 
beneficial to defer endowment spending grow the endowment to a size that will have a meaningful impact 
in stabilizing the revenues of the Organization.  

Endowment and board-designated endowment funds are invested with a strong equity bias towards 
significant diversification across investments with fundamentally different risk characteristics. In general, 
assets are invested in funds that provide liquidity and diversification of security specific risk at reasonable 
cost. The funds are invested with a long-term horizon without attempting to time market movements. 
Allocations to asset classes are maintained in accordance with the long-term policy targets and ranges 
approved by the Operations Committee and the Board of Directors.  

Note 14 – Coronavirus Pandemic and Paycheck Protection Program 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic.  While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty around the 
duration and extent of the impact on the Organization, its operations and its financial condition.  From July 
2020 through June 2021, Casa de Amparo incurred $183,926 in non-recurring expenses related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. These expenses include, but are not limited to, the purchase of personal protective 
equipment (PPE) equipment, the implementation of a recurring deep cleaning sanitization protocol and 
hazard pay for its front-line essential workers.  

Casa de Amparo received a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of $979,824 granted by the Small 
Business Administration under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) in May 
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Note 14 – Coronavirus Pandemic and Paycheck Protection Program (continued) 

2020.  PPP loans are considered conditional contributions, with a right-of return in the form of an obligation 
to be repaid if a barrier to entitlement is not met. The barrier is that PPP loan funds must be used to maintain 
compensation costs and employee headcount, and other qualifying expenses (mortgage interest, rent and 
utilities) incurred following receipt of the funds. The Organization recognizes the amount received as grant 
revenue as qualified expenses occur and barriers to entitlement are met. As of June 30, 2020, $543,654 
was recognized as revenue and the balance of $436,170 was recorded as deferred revenue as of June 30, 
2020.  As of June 30, 2021, the unrecognized portion of $436,170 was fully recognized. 

On April 15, 2021, the Organization received notification that the entire balance of the PPP loan had been 
forgiven. 

Casa de Amparo received $371,731 in grants from the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund during 2021, which 
supports healthcare providers, including residential treatment facilities, in the battle against the COVID-19 
pandemic.  These grants do not need to be repaid to the United States government if the provider uses the 
funds to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, and for related expenses or lost revenues 
attributable to coronavirus. In accordance with the terms and conditions of this program, Casa de Amparo 
deferred use of these funds to the 2nd quarter of fiscal year 2021-22 to offset lost revenue in its Residential 
Services and Counseling Services programs. 

Note 15 - June 30, 2020 Financial Information 

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total, but not by 
net asset class.  Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conduction 
with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, from which the summarized 
information was derived. 
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Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C.
13500 Evening Creek Drive N. ■ Suite 450 ■ San Diego, CA  92128 

Main: 858.795.2000  ■  Fax: 858.795.2001  ■  www.mhmcpa.com 

  Member of Kreston International — a global network of independent accounting firms

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government 
Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
Casa de Amparo 
San Marcos, California  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Casa 
de Amparo (the “Organization”), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 3, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statements. However, providing an 
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opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

San Diego, California 
March 3, 2022 
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 

(Choose one) 0 MINI-GRANT (Choose one) X REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: TrueCare (San Marcos) 
Interfaith Community Services TrueCare 
Program 

Total# of people served: 21 

Total# of San Marcos 
residents served: 21 

Amount 
Requested: $10,000 

Date Submitted: October 5, 2022 
Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
Interfaith Community Services 
550 West Washington Avenue 
Escondido) CA 92025 
www.interfaithservlces.org 

Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 
Jennifer Dill 

Grant Writer 
442-330-4554 

jdill@lnterfaithservices.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative fo r regular grant): 
Interfaith Community Services (lnterf aith) respectfully requests that the San Marcos Community Foundation 
consider a gift in the amount of $10,000 t o contribute towards supporting an Interfaith Case Manager 
position. That position currently Is on-site at TrueCare San Marcos all day on Mondays with continuing 
TrueCare support on-site at lnterfaith's offices during the remainder of the week. Funding ends for this 

position in December 2022. This grant, in addition to other funding, cou ld extend the staff position ihto 
2023. The on-site Case Manager is integral in guiding San Marcos low-income residents to the supportive 
services that they urgently need. (see attached expanded narrative) 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
TrueCare San Marcos assists many low-income patients living on fixed incomes requiring them t o choose 
between paying for housing, food, and/or healthcare. While visiting TrueCare, these clients receive one-one 
consultations with lnterfaith's experienced Case M anager regard ing other critical needs that they may have. 
This personal service provided by the Case Manger helps alleviate the extra burdens and expenses of 
emergency situations such as the need for Flex Funds if rental money or prescription money is unavailable 
for the patient s. lnterfaith's intervention often helps save many San M arcos residents from homelessness if 
rental money is needed or illness if a prescription is needed. 

Please attach the following items. 
Both Mini-Grant & ReguJar: 
I . Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4 . Board of Directors listjng with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 
any management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 
Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project wi ll begin/end: 1-1-23/12-31-23 

Date by which funds will be expended: 12-31-23 

Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

tA---
Greg Anglea, Interfaith Chief Executive Officer 
Cohn Family CEO Chair, I 0-05-22 

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-marcos.net 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example - 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax = $561.60) 

1.0 FIB Case Manager for San Marcos Program 

Benefits (38% of salary) 

Flex Funds for Emergency Financial Assistance 

$47,842 

$18,180 

$60,770 

------------------------- $. ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

------------------------- $ ____ _ 

Total budget for this PROJECT: $126,792 

Grant Request Amount: $10,000 

(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? Yes 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

$100,000 Rancho Sante Fe Foundation (through Dec. 2022) **C 

$ (Name of source) ** 

$ (Name of source) ** 
$ (Name of source) ** 
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~~~ IRS Deparlmenl <>f lhc Treasury 
-ltfh'IJ/ Internal Revenue Service 

D05682 

P.O. Box 2508, Room 4010 
Cincinnati OH 45201 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES INC 
550 W WASHINGTON AVENUE 
ESCONDIDO CA 92025-1643 

Employer Identification Number: 
Person to Contact: 

Toll Free Telephone Number: 

Dear Taxpayer: 

In reply refer to: 4077550286 
June 03, 2013 LTR 4168C 0 
95-3837714 000000 00 

95-3837714 
Vaida Singleton 

l-877-829-5500 

00032869 
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This is in response to your Mar. 08, 2013, request for information 
regarding your tax-exempt status. 

Our records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under 
section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination 
letter issued in February 1984. 

Our records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within 
the meaning of section 509Ca) of the Code because you are described in 
section(s) 509Ca) (1) and 170(b) (1) CA) (vi). 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of 
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or 
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax p~rposes 
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 
2522 of the Code. 

Please refer to our website www.iis.gov/eo for information regarding 
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code 
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three 
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of 
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to 
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt 
status was revoked under section 6033(j) of the Code on our website 
beginning in early 2011. 

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number 
shown in the heading of this letter. 

Sincerely yours, 

Cindy Thomas 
Manager, ED Determinations 
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Chair 
Faith Leaders Council Chair 

Dr. Kadri Webb, Pastor 
Pastor, St.John Missionary Baptist Church 

University of Maryland Baltimore County 
Samuel DeWitt Proctor School of Theology at the Virginia 

Union University 

Vice Chair 
Quality Assurance & Compliance Chair 

John Byers 
Retired, Chief Information Officer, Nordson Corporation 

Philanthropist 
Purdue UnlversiW 

Indiana University Kelley School of Business 
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Reverend Margaret Decker 
Pastor, Trinity Episcopal Church, Escondido 

Escondido Faith Leaders' Council 
University of Nevada 

Treasurer 
Finance Committee Chair 
Silas Harrington, JD, LL.M. 

Attorney, Law Offices of SIias Harrington 
Community Lutheran Church In Escondido 

University of Washington School of Law 

Secretary 
Investment Committee Chair 

Lisa Brinig, CFP 
Certified Financial Planner, Mariner 

Wealth Advisors, San Diego 
University of Kansas 

San Diego State University 

Development Committee Chair 
Mitchell Dubick, J.D,,LL,M, 

Partner /Attorney, Higgs Fletcher & Mack San Diego 
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University of lllinols, Urbana-Champalgh 

Mentor with the EvoNexus incubator, Techstars Anywhere 
Accelerator, and Ad Astra incubator 

Funders Together to End Homelessness San Diego 
Yes, In God's Backyard (YlGBY) 



Member 
General Membership Chair 

Rabbi David Castiglione 
Rabbi, Temple Adat Shalom Poway 
University of California, Santa Cruz 

Hebrew Union College-Jewish Institute of 
Religion !n Cincinnati 

Temple B'nai Israel of Elmira, New York. 
Hebrew Union College-Jewish Institute ofReligion 

in Los Angeles. 
President of the Union of Reform Judaism 

President of Hebrew Union College 

Member 
Robert Costantino 

Business Owner/ President, Balloon Guru LLC 
Graduate of Lnterfalth's Recovery & Wellness Program 

Member 
Javier Lara 

Global Operations & Supply Chain Executive 
VlaSat 

University of Phoenix 

Member 
Carol Lazier 
Philanthropist 

Rancho Bernardo Community Presbyterian Church 
Board Chair San Diego Opera 

President of Solutions: Bxploring Success Post·Hlgh School 
Palomar Health Foundation 

UCSD Rady School 
UCSD Jacobs Hospital 

Member 
Pastor Hector Morales 

Connections Pastor, Emmanuel Faith, Escondido 
California State University San Marcos 

Bethel Seminary San Diego 
Founder, The Bridge after-school tutoring program 

Interfaith Community Services 

Member 
YusefMHler 

Community Health Worker (CHW) for The Multicultural 
Health Foundatfon 
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Retired Navy 
Founder of Mosques Against Trafficking 

Co-Founder of The North County Equity & Justice 
Coaltion 
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Member, Racial Justice Coalition of San Diego 
Member, East County Justice Coalition 

Board Member, ActfvistSan Diego 
Board Member, Islamic Society of North County(Escondldo 

Musullah) 
County Covid19 Awareness Rep for the African American 

Community 
Interfaith Community Services 

Member 
Dr, Vanessa Peters 

Family Physician/Chief Physician Officer, Graybill 
Medical Group 

University of Calgary School of Medicine 
Board Certified by the American Academy of Family 

Physicians 
Interfaith Community Services 

Member 
Governance Committee Chair 

Dr. Darrell Shrader 
Retired board-certified Family Practice MD, Southern 

California Permanente Medical Group 
University of Southern California 

University of Texas Southwestern Medical School 
University California San Diego Residency 

Retired administrative physician leader of the Carlsbad 
Kaiser facility 

Board member, Plant with Purpose 

Member 
Joy Stephenson-Laws, JU 

Founding and managing partner of Stephenson,Acqufsto 
&Colman 

Loma Linda University 
Julis Doctor ft-om Loyola University 

Honorary Consul of Jamaica in Los Angeles 
Founded Proactive Health Labs, national 501(c)3 

Co-founded The Bili Project Foundation 
Author of Minerals, The Forgotten Nutrient 

Lecturer on health topics 

Member 
Monica C. Thornton, JD 

Retired Attorney/Partner Selman Breltmon_, LLP 
University of California at Irvine 

University of California at Davis Law School 
Mira Costa College 

Member California State Bar 
Legal Aid Society of San Diego 
Interfaith Community Services 



Member 
Judge Randa Trapp, JD 

Retired superior Court Judge 
San Jose State University 

Georgetown University Law Center 
Veteran United States Navy 

Earl B. Gilliam Bar Association 
California Women Lawyers 

California Association of Black Lawyers and Lawyers Club 
of San Diego 

J. Clifford Wallace lnn of Court 
Association ofBusiness Trial LaWYers Judicial Advisory 

Board 
National Association ofWomen Judges 

National Bar Association Judicial Council 
Business Court Representative for the America Bar 

Association Business Law Section 
Lawyers Club Advisory Board 

Association of Business Trial Lav,yers Judicial Advisory 
Board 

ABA Business Law Section BCLC Meetings an.d Programs, 
International Lltl.gation1 and ADR subcommittees 

Inducted into the San Diego County Women's HaJl of Fame. 
in May 202.1 
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San Diego County Bar Association's Outstanding Jurist 
Award, 

National Bar Association's Vincent Monroe Townsend 
Award 

NBA Judicial Council Division's Sat11h J. Harper 
Humanitarian Award. 
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Interfaith Community Services Project Narrative 
For Consideration of a San Marcos Community Foundation Grant 

Interfaith Community Services (Interfaith) respectfully requests a grant of $10,000 from the San Marcos Community 
Foundation to support an on-site Case Manager working in partnership with TrueCare to connect low-income San 
Marcos residents to essential community resources. 

About Interfaith 

lnterfaith's mission is to empower people in need to stabilize and improve their lives through comprehensive programs, 
in partnership with diverse faith communities and people of compassion. Founded in 1979 as a direct response to the 
rising rates of hunger and homelessness in North County, Interfaith works to break the cycle of poverty and 
homelessness. Today, Interfaith is the largest human services agency in North San Diego County. With more than 240 
dedicated staff, 250-memberfaith communities, and 2,830 volunteers, Interfaith served 21,825 unique individuals last 
year- more than any year prior. 

Project Need: 

Interfaith is acutely aware of the growing demand for supportive services in the San Marcos region. Families in San 
Diego County are forced to make difficult decisions on a daily basis. Rising inflation forces many residents to choose 
between paying for housing, food, and/or healthcare. 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, Interfaith has seen an increased need for homelessness prevention services to keep 
households from falling into the cycle of poverty. For many individuals experiencing temporary financial setbacks due 
to the impacts of COVID-19, accessing the resources they need to resolvetheircrisis is overwhelming. The severity and 
uncertainty of the economic impact of the pandemic on San Marcos' low-income clients make it imperative that 
residents are provided access to emergency rental assistance, food and hygiene items, connections to clinical and 
behavioral healthcare, employment supports, and other services. 

Project Design: 

In 2022, with seed funding from the Rancho Santa Fe Foundation's San Marcos Covid-19 Community Grant Program, 
Interfaith assigned a Case Managerto work on-site at one of its San Marcos healthcare partners, TrueCare. The Case 
Manager is available all day on Mondays, accepting warm referrals from TrueCare's health providers, as well as other 
community referrals. During the other days of the week, the Case Manager continues to follow-up with the TrueCare 
clients. As a result of this program many patients in need reached out to the Case Manager seeking help with funding 
for rental assistance, utilities or prescription drug assistance, and other emergency incidents. These requests would 
often go unnoticed without the presence of an on-site resource, as many of the patients experience hesitancy in 
discussing such matters with their health providers. 

Funding from the San Marcos Community Foundation will help to sustain this critical partnership into 2023. Many low­
income San Marcos residents receive project benefits such as: increasing their food security, assisting them in 
navigating the healthcare system, maintaining current housing, moving homeless individuals off the streets and into 
shelters or long-term housing, stabilizing or increasing their income, and accessing available public benefits and other 
assistance programs. 

Interfaith staff takes a person-centered approach, meeting each individual where they are to build rapport and engage 
them in services. Since July of this year, Interfaith connected 9 financially struggling families to receive nearly $18,000 
in short-term financial assistance. 



Goals and Objectives 

• Provide comprehensive case management to 75 low-income San Marcos residents. 
• 80 percent will receive a biopsychosocial assessment and individual service plan designed to increase self­

sufficiency. 

• 70 percent of participants will report improvements in one or more areas of self-sufficiency. 

Client Success Story: 

Mary (client name changed for confidentiality) came to Interfaith seeking rental assistance after she contractedCOVID-
19, forcing her to take unexpected time off from her work as a hair stylist to recover. Mary's son helped contribute 
towards her rent, however, it was not enough and she fell two months behind in her rent payments. After reaching 
out to Interfaith, she began the rental assistance process to help pay off rental arrears. Mary is now recovered and 
has· returned to work. With the help of her Case Manager and taking initiative to· betterhersituatlon, Mary has taken 
business cards to local senior centers and other stores, in hopes of connecting with more people to increase her 
business. She has applied to Cal Fresh to supplement her food resources and help her to budget her income towards 
other expenses. Mary is also working with her Case Manager on applying for a second job to ensure she is stable 
enough to maintain her house going forward. 

We would be honored to have the San Marcos Community Foundation join as a funding partner to help Interfaith 
continue to provide these critical essential services to the San Marcos community. 
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Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 

For~ 990 
0MB No. 1545-0047 

2020 Under section 501(e), 527, or 4947(11)(11 of the Internal Revenue Code (e,;cept prlva1e foundations) 
• Do not enter social security numbers on Chis form as It may be made public. 

~i!~!r;;!:!~":c'.lfl' • Go to www.lrs.oovlForm990 for Instructions and the latest Information. 
Opef'I lo Public 

lnspecUon 
A For tho 2020 calendar year, or taK year beginning JUL 1 , 2 0 2 0 and ending JUN 3 0 2 0 21 
B O..ck u C Name of organization 

oppl!oAbl,: 
D Employer ldentlflcatlon numbor 

• :~:;:- Interfaith Conununi tv Services, Inc • ......................... --~---------=="""""'-...;;:;..~-'--'""""-"--='--'---==c..c"'-'--------1 
D~t.~;. DolnQ. business as 95 - 3837714 
Dl~I':~ Number end street (or P.O. box Ir mall ls not delivered to slreel address) I Room/sultD E Telephone number 
□~~~ 550 w. Washinoton Ave. ~ (760) 294- 6356 

:,%~ "' City or town, state or province, CQUntry, and ZIP or foreign pos1al code G Gtoss ••••101; s 31 , 9 6 7 , 5 0 0 , 
O:';,'l::::""d Escondido CA 9 2 0 2 5 H(a) Is this a group return 
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I Tax,a.xemot statu1: IX I 501(c\(3l I I 501/cl I I• /Insert no.l I I 49471all1l or I 527 II 'No,• at1ach a list. See Instructions 
J Website:• WWW. INTERFAITHSERVICES. ORG Hlc) Group exemption number • 
K Form of oroanl2alion: I X I Corporation I I Trust I 7 Association I I O!her • 
I Part 11 Summary 

I L Year of 1ormatlon: 19 7 91 M Slate of leoal domicile: CA 

1 BriaOy describe tna organization's mission or most significant activities: Int er faith C orrun unity Services 
Ill 
~ empowers people in need to stabilize and improve their lives through 

E 2 Check this bo.x • D II the organlzellon discontinued Its op1m1tlons or disposed of more 1han 25% of Its net asse1s. 

l 3 Numbor of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, Jina 1al ................. ......... .... .. .. ...................... .... l-'-3-t--------,2,..2~ 
: 4 Number of Independent voting members of the govomlng body (Part VI, llne 1 b) ... ............ ........................ .. 4 2 2 
ill 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2020 (Part V, line 2a) ........... .................. ........... .... 5 2 8 3 
~ 6 Total number of llo!lmtoors (asUm.ite If necessary) , ...... , .... ,..................................................... ........... ......... 6 1 0 6 4 9 
~ 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIit. column (C), lino 12 ............................. .............................. l-'7"'a+-------,0;-;-.. 
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111 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line lhJ ......... ., ..................... , ........ ......... ........... .. 7,188,756 . 8,230 080. 
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0/ 

18a Professional fundralslng fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11 e) ......................................... . 5 
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ill 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A). lines 11 a•11 d, 11f,24c) ..................................... .. 

11 540,886. 13,776,090 . 
0. 0 . 

6,151,338. 6,998,162. 
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX. column (A}, lino 25) ................... .. 17,692,224. 20,774 252. 
19 Revenue less excanses. Subtract Jina 18 from lfne 12 1,975,101. 11,193,248. 

Bcgl11nlng of Current Year :End of Year 
34 118,334. 47 707 560. 

7 199 140. 9 595,120. 

I Part II I S gnature Block 
26 919,194. 38 112.,440. 
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Form 990 2020 Interfaith Communi t Services, Inc. 95-3837714 Paoe2 
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part Ill .......... .. ............ ..... ... ........ ..... ........ ........ .... ... .. ......... ... . 
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: 

Interfaith Community Services empowers people in need to stabilize and 
improve their lives through comprehensive programs in partnership with 
diverse faith communities and people of compassion. 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the 

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? ...... . ... .. .. . ..... .. .... ... ... .. ... .. .... ... ... ... . ... .. . ... . ...... ............ ..... . ........ .... .. .. ....... ...... ..... . .. ............... .. D Yes [X] No 
If 'Yes,• describe these new services on Schedule 0. 

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? .... ..... ...... ... Dves [X] No 
If 'Yes,• describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

4 Describe the organization 's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses. 

Section 501 (c){3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and 

revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a (Code: ___ ) (Expenses$ 5 , 5 9 4 , 10 9 • Including g ants ol $ _________ ) (Revenue S 6 , 6 6 9 , 4 6 6 , ) 
Housing and Shelter - Interfaith Community Services(ICS) provides 
emergency shelter and permanent supportive housing to homeless, senior, 
and mentally ill women and men. ICS provides transitional and 
low-income housing to families and veterans. These programs include 
case management, screening and referrals for other programs and 
services. ICS provides rapid rehousing and homeless prevention 
assistance to families and veterans. 

4b (Code: ___ ) (E, pensea S 4 , 7 3 0 , 7 3 3 • lnclud;ng i,ants ol $ ---------:-- ) (Revenue S 5 , 6 4 0 1 12 3 • 
Self Sufficiency and Supportive Services - ICS provides low income and 
unemployed individuals and families emergency food, basic employment 
services, legal assistance, free tax preparation, financial literacy 
training, rental assistance, utilities assistance, transportation 
assistance and referrals for other services. ICS supplies daily 
breakfast and lunch, showering, laundry facilities, and mail receipt 
for the homeless. ICS also provides seniors with hot lunches, friendly 
visits and minor home repairs. 

4c (Code: ___ ) (Expenses S 4 , 9 9 7 , 6 4 5 • Including gonls ol S --,--,,----,-----::---- ) (Revenue S 5 , 9 5 8 , 3 4 4 • ) 
Recovery and Wellness - ICS provides residential, outpatient, and 
interim housing for homeless or low-income individuals suffering from 
substance use disorders. ICS also provides recuperative care services 
for recently released hospitalized veterans and homeless individuals. 

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) 

(Expenses $ 2 , 4 9 4 , 8 8 5 • lnclucj;ng !l•nts ol $ {Revenue S 2,974,477.) 
4e Total program service expenses• 1 7 , 81 7 , 3 7 2 , 

Form 990 (2020) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 
Escondido. California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Interfaith Community 
Services. Inc .. (the "Organization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as 
of June 30, 2021 . and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 
flows for the year then ended. and the related notes to the financial st·aternents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design. implementation. and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Organization's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Camballza McGee LLP • 1601 Dove Street, Suite 294 • Newport Beach, CA 92660 
TEL: 949-484-8288 • FAX: 949-315-3900 • CPA-CM.com 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all. material 
respects, the financial position of Interfaith Community Services, Inc., as of June 30, 2021, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Supplemental Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated May 20, 2022, on our consideration of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Interfaith Community Services, Inc's internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Other Matter 

Our audit was conduction for the purpose of an opinion on the financial statements on 
the Organization taken as a whole. The accompanying information for CASAworks 
Apartments 99-FMTW-010, statement of operations on page 38-39 and CASAWorks 
Apartments 99-FMTW-010, statement of cash flows on page 40, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic . financial 
statements. 



Other Motter- rcontinued) 

Such information Is the responsibility of management and was derived form and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconcilfng such lnformation directly to underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statements of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 's as of June 30. 2020 and 
for the year then ended, was audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements on December 11 , 2020. 

Cambaliza McGee LLP 
Newport Beach, California 
May 20, 2022 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 

ASSETS 

ASSETS: 

Cash $ 6,025,000 

Grants and contracts receivable 3,582,190 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 322,570 

Pledge receivable 743,150 

Unamortized donated rent 74,280 

Investments 12,128,460 
Property and equipment, net of 

accumulated depreciation 24,831,910 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 47,707,560 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable $ 137,450 

Accrued expenses 1,050,210 

Accrued interest 654,260 
Notes payable 7,753,200 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,595,120 

NET ASSETS: 

Without donor restrictions: 

Undesignated 26,040,393 

Board designated long-term 4,246,063 

Total without donor restrictions 30,286,456 

With donor restrictions 7,825,984 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 38,112,440 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 47,707,560 

2020 

$ 5,681,243 

1,908,201 

287,716 

100,198 

10,038,663 

16,102,313 

$ 34, 118,334 

$ 286,615 

938,098 

634,265 
5,340,162 

7,199,140 

16,640,606 

4,246,063 

20,886,669 

6,032,525 

26,919,194 

$ 34, 118,334 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor's report. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020 

Without Donor Wilh Donor 
Restrictions Restriclions 2021 2020 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT: 
Grant and conlract revenue $ 20,485.620 $ $ 20,485.620 $ 11,443.838 
Contrlbullons 5,501.331 2.119.239 7,620,570 6.354.924 
In-kind donations 609,510 609,510 1,012,887 
Rental Income 738,320 738,320 761.836 
Investment retum 2.495,010 2.495,010 257,283 
Olher income 18,470 18,470 33,999 
Net assets released from restrictions, 

satlsfaclion of program reshictions 325,780 !325,7801 

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORl 30.174,041 1.793.459 31.967,500 19.864,767 

EXPENSES: 
PROGRAM SERVICES: 
Supportive services 4.730,733 4.730,733 3,975.356 
Employment and economic development 898,1 93 898,193 1,204,175 
Clinical 1,015,085 1,015,085 531.224 
Housing & shelters 5,594,109 5,594,109 4,160,994 
Recovery and wellness 4,997,645 4,997,645 4,660,036 
Other community services 581.607 581.607 657,835 

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 17,817,372 17,817.372 15.189.62C 

SUPPORTING SERVICES: 
Management ond general 2,005.591 2.005,591 1.857,636 
Fundraising 951.291 951.291 848,933 

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES 2,956,882 2,956,882 2,706,569 

TOTAL EXPENSES 20.774.254 20,774.254 17.896,189 

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 9,399.787 1.793.459 11.193,246 1.968.578 

NET ASSETS • BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,886,669 6,032,525 26,919,1 94 24,950.616 

NET ASSETS • END OF YEAR $ 30,286,456 $ 7,825,984 $ 38,112,44C $ 26.919,194 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor's report . 
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Employment 
Supportive &Economic 

Services Develoement Ctinica l 

Wages. salaries. 
contract labor 
and employee benefits $ 2.332..119 $ 821.871 $ 491.148 

living assistance 722.556 28.210 4.360 
Training and employment 

assistance 138 186.762 162 
Office 166.282 58.808 23,799 
Depreciation 24.995 15,821 846 
Interest 
Operations and support 

servioes 682.537 7-4.781 3,920 
Other 46.429 17,922 6,969 

Total functional expenses $ 3,975,356 $ 1.204.175 $ 531.224 

% of total expense by 
activity 22.2% 6.7% 3.o;r; 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2020 

Pr2SJram SeNices 
Other 

Housing & Recovery& Community 
Shelter Wellness Services Total 

$ 2.343,542 $ 3,320,466 $ 462.286 $ 9,771.732 
625,570 361.072 30.164 1.771.932 

578 152 18 187.810 
-434.563 166.176 82.638 932.266 
300.466 167,337 13.012 542.477 

56,734 25,413 82,147 

344.307 564,444 52538 1,722,527 
55.234 34,976 17,179 178,729 

$ 4.160.994 $ 4,660,036 $ 657.835 $ 15.189,620 

23.3% 26.0% 3.7% 

See accompanying notes and independent a uditOl's report. 
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84.9% 

Sueeort Services 
Total 

Monogement Functional 
and General Fundraisi!:!9 Toto) ~enses 

$ 1.319.817 $ 619.646 $ 1,939,463 $ 11.711.195 
1.771.932 

187.810 
232.966 187.453 420,419 1.352685 

41.240 12.354 53,594 596,071 
56,714 56,71-4 138,861 

20,613 11,924 32537 1,755.064 
186.286 17.556 203,842 382.571 

$ 1.857,636 $ 648.933 $ 2,706.569 $ 17,896.189 

10.4% 4.7% 15.1% 100.0% 



Employment 
Supportive & Economic 

Services Develoement Cinicol 

Wages. salaries. 
c ontract labor 
and employee benefits $ 2,832,436 $ 630,480 $ 869.924 

Living assistance 465,185 39.535 72.107 
Training end employment 

assistance 2,802 128.451 26 
O lfice 147.668 35,908 34,503 
Depreciation 24,308 12.482 4.376 
Interest 
Operations and support 

services 1,215.130 43,075 18,845 
Other 43,204 8,262 15,304 

Total fvnclionol expenses $ 4,730,733 $ 898,193 $ 1,015.085 

% of total expense by 
activity 22.8% 4.3% 4.9% 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
STATI.MENT OF FUNCllONAl EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, :2021 

PrQ!lam Sef\lices 
Other 

Housing & Recovery& Convnunily 
Sh elter WeDness Services Total 

$ 3.181.205 $ 3.878.591 $ 415.080 $ 11.807.716 
925,769 243,609 45.881 

859 -400 
261 ,128 197,840 17.395 
293.761 185,205 16.299 
107,403 22.129 

738,644 412.357 40,679 
85.340 57.914 45.873 

$ 5.594.109 $ 4.997.645 $ 581,607 

26.9% 24.1% 2.8% 

See o=ompanying notes and independent auditots report. 
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1.792,086 

132.538 
694,442 
536,431 
129,532 

2.468,730 
255.897 

$ 17.817.372 

85.8% 

Suee!:!!! Services 
Total 

Management Functional 
end General Fondroisi!:!9 Total ~ nses 

$ 1.272.587 $ 695.790 $ 1.968.377 $ 13.n6.093 
0.000 1,792.086 

132.538 
380,605 '225,776 606.381 1,300,823 

43.462 11.123 54,585 591.016 
60.687 60,687 190,219 

19,185 9,077 28.262 2.496.992 
229.065 9,525 238,590 494,487 

$ 2.005.591 $ 951.291 $ 2.956,882 $ 20,774,254 

9.7% 4.6% 14.2% l(J0.0% 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in net assets $ 11,193,246 $ 1,968,578 

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 
net assets provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 591,016 596,071 

Realized and unrealized gain on investments (2,495,932) (252,995) 

Restricted grant paid to escrow (6,000,000) (53,518) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Grants and contracts receivable (1,673,989) 181.496 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (34,854) (46,204) 

Pledge receivable (743,150) 

Unamortized rent 25,918 

Accounts payable (149,165) 81,762 

Accrued expenses 112,112 176,970 

Accrued interest 19,995 46,890 

Net cash provided by operating activities 845,197 2,699,050 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property and equipment (720,613) (40,363) 

Purchases of investments (959,065) 
Proceeds from sales of investments 406,135 419,187 

Net cash used in investing activities (314,478) (580,241) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payments on notes payable (186,962) (223,830) 

Proceeds from new long-term notes payable 1,819,500 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (186,962) 1,595,670 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 343,757 3,714,479 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,681,243 1,966,764 

CASH, END OF YEAR $ 6,025,000 $ 5,681,243 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest $ 170,224 $ 91,971 

Long-term debt incurred for the purchase of property and equipment $ 2,600,000 $ 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor's report. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - DIRECT METHOD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Grant and contract revenue receipts 
Contribution receipts 
Rental income receipts 
Other income receipts 

Total receipts 

Supportive services 
Employment and economic development 
Clinical 
Housing & shelters 
Recovery and wellness 
Other community services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total disbursements 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property and equipment 
Proceeds from sales of investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payments on notes payable 

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH, END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest 

Long-term debt incurred for the purchase of property and equipment 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor's report. 
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$ 18,811,631 

877,420 

738,320 

18,470 
20,445,841 

4,290,760 

875,560 

1;003,461 

5,204,162 
4,777,212 

560,022 

1,962,129 

927,338 

19,600,644 

845,197 

(720,613) 
406,135 

(314,478) 

(186,962) 

(186,962) 

343,757 

5,681,243 

$ 6,025,000 

$ 170,224 

$ 2,600,000 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION 

Nature of Activities 

Interfaith Community Services, Inc. ("Interfaith" or "Organization") empowers people in 
need to stabilize and improve their lives through comprehensive programs, in 
partnership with diverse faith communities and people of compassion. Interfaith offers 
an array of support for people in crisis who need to stabilize and rebuild their lives, 
providing a pathway towards self-sufficiency for over 17,000 individuals each year. From 
its origins in 1979 as a faith-supported community food pantry, Interfaith has grown to 
become the most comprehensive social services agency in North San Diego County, 
offering integrated, wrap-around services to thousands of community members each 
year, such as individuals experiencing homelessness, veterans, families, seniors, and low­
income individuals. lnterfaith's programs are organized into five areas: Self-Sufficiency 
and Supportive Services, Housing Services, Employment and Economic Development, 
Recovery and Wellness, and Clinical and Behavioral Health. Programs are designed to 
overlap to provide clients with access to as many resources as necessary for their 
individual situation. 

NOTE B • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United .States of 
America ("GAAP"). The financial statements are presented in accordance with 
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification 
("ASC") 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants ("AICPA") "Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit 
Organizations" (the "Guide"). ASC 958-205 was effective January l, 2018. 

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified as 
follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor­
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the 
primary objectives of the Organization. The Organization's board may designate 
assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation - /Continued) 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by 
donors, and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature: those 
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other 
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the 
funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Contributions 

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the 
existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Conditional promises to give 
are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Gifts 
of cash and other assets are reported with donor restricted support if they are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. 

When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose 
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets 
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in 
the same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction support. 
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, 
buildings, and equipment are reported as net assets without donor restriction upon 
acquisition of the assets and the assets are placed in service. 

Measure of Operations 

The statement of activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes in net 
assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities consist of those 
items attributable to the Organization's ongoing activities. Non-operating activities are 
limited to resources that generate return from investments, endowment contributions, 
financing costs, and other activities considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring 
nature. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 

Functional Expenses 

Functional expenses are those expenses incurred by the Organization in the 
accomplishment of its stated mission. The cost of providing the various program and 
other activities of the Organization have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities and statement of functional expenses. These statements report 
expenses that are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. 

Functional expenses are allocated using the Organization's approved cost allocation 
plan and are both the legal obligations of the Organization and allowable under 
governing cost principles. These costs include labor and fringe benefits, utilities, 
legal/accounting, insurance, depreciation, and other miscellaneous costs. Personnel 
expenses are allocated based on auditable time records that reflect the actual 
activities of employees. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Accounting Principles 
Generally Accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amount and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Fair Value Measurements 

The Organization defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for 
an asset or paid for a liability in the principal or most advantageous market. The 
Organization applies fair value measurements to assets and liabilities that are required 
to be recorded at fair value under GAAP. Fair value measurement techniques maximize 
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs and are 
categorized in a fair value hierarchy based on the transparency of inputs. The three 
levels are defined as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the same term of the 
financial instrument. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to 
the fair value measurement. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Measurements - (Continued) 

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The carrying values 
of cash, receivables, and payable approximate fair value as of June 30, 2021, due to 
the relative short maturities of these instruments. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Grants and Contracts Receivable 

The grants and contracts receivable arise in the normal course of operations. It is the 
policy of management to review the outstanding receivable at year end, as well as the 
bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful 
accounts for uncollectible amounts. No allowance was considered necessary as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, because management believes that all amounts are 
collectible. 

Promises to Give 

Unconditional written pledges to the Organization in the future are recorded as 
promises to give and revenue in the year promised at the present value of expected 
cash flows, see Note F. Unconditional written pledges must be evidenced by donor 
signature and deemed legally enforceable by the Board of Directors. Conditional 
pledges are recognized as revenue when the conditions are met. 

Intentions to pledge are recognized as revenue when the funds are actually received. 
After pledges are originally recorded, an allowance for uncollectible pledges may be 
established based on specific circumstances. 

Investments 

The Organization has investments held by the Jewish Community Foundation of San 
Diego, which are invested in various pools and are valued at the Organization's 
percentage interest in the total pools. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, these pools 
included domestic and international equities, domestic and international fixed income, 
and other investments. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 

Investments - (Continued) 

All investments have been recorded at fair market value using a market approach. The 
fair values of investments in securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the 
closing price on the last day of business of the fiscal year. The fair value of other 
investments is determined by investment managers in good faith using appropriate 
methods and are subject to oversight and review by the management of the Jewish 
Community Foundation of San Diego. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on 
investments are included in the change in net assets in the statements of activities. 

Property and Equipment 

Acquisitions of property and equipment of $5,000 or more are capitalized. Property and 
equipment are stated at cost, or if donated, at the approximate fair market value at 
the date of donation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against 
operations. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets from five to thirty-nine years. 

Grant and Contract Revenue 

Revenue from grants and contracts are recognized to the extent of eligible costs 
incurred up to an amount not to exceed the total grant and contract authorized. 
Grants are evaluated as to whether they qualify as exchange transactions or 
contributions. As the grantor is not receiving a benefit as a result of these transactions, 
the grant and contract are considered to be contributions to the Organization. The 
grant and contract agreements contain spending requirements. As these stipulations 
create a barrier that must be achieved, grants and contract agreements are therefore 
recognized as revenue when costs are incurred and specific requirements are met, as 
required by the agreements. 

Contributed Materials and Services 

Contributed materials are recorded at their fair market value where an objective basis 
is available to measure their value. Such items are capitalized or charged to operations 
as appropriate. The fair market value of contributed professional services is reported as 
support and expensed in the period in which the services are performed. 

In addition, the Organization receives a substantial amount of nonprofessional services 
donated by volunteers in carrying out the Organization's program services. These 
services do not meet the GAAP criteria as contributions and are, therefore, not 
recognized in the financial statements. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 

Income Taxes 

The Organization is exempt from federal income and California franchise taxes under 
Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701 (d) of the California 
Revenue and Taxation Code, respectively. 

All tax-exempt Organizations are subject to review and audit by federal, state, and 
other applicable agencies. Such agencies may review the taxability of unrelated 
business income, or the qualification of the Organization as a tax-exempt organization 
under Internal Revenue Code Section and applicable state statutes. 

As of June 30, 2021, the federal statute of limitations remains open for the 2018 through 
2021 tax years. The statute of limitations for the state income tax returns remains open 
for the 2017 through 2021 tax years. 

New Accounting Pronouncement 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The provisions of 
this ASU require accounting for operating leases in the statement of financial position. 
The provisions in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2021. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASU 
2014-09"). The revenue recognition standard eliminates the transaction and industry­
specific revenue recognition guidance under current GAAP and replaces it with a 
principle-based approach for determining revenue recognition. The core principle of 
the revenue recognition standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict 
the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those good or 
services. The Organization adopted the provisions of ASU 2014-09 effective July 1, 2020 
which did not have material effects on net assets with or without donor restrictions. 

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Organization maintains cash balances in bank accounts which, at times, exceed 
the federal insurable limit. The Organization has not experienced any losses from cash 
concentrations and management does not believe the Organization is exposed to any 
significant risk. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTED - PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following at June 30: 

Other accounts receivable 
Prepaid software 
Prepaid insurance 
Deposits and prepaid rent 

Total prepaid expenses and other current assets 

NOTE E - UNAMORTIZED DONATED RENT 

2021 

$ 119,830 
99,030 
66,830 
36,880 

2020 

$ 25,816 
77,442 

38,180 
146,278 

$ 322,570 $ 287,716 

In January 2014, the Organization entered into a ten-year agreement to provide 
Veterans' services in exchange for free rent at 1617 Mission Avenue, Oceanside, CA. 
This agreement expires on January 30, 2024. The Organization began providing services 
at this location on April 1, 2014. The unamortized donated rent of $74,280 represents the 
fair market value of the rent for the remaining 31 months of this agreement discounted 
by five percent. 

NOTE F - PROMISES TO GIVE 

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization received a $1,000,000 pledge 
related to the acquisition of property and improvements located at 555 North Centre 
City Parkway, Escondido, California. 

The Organization has collected $200,000 of the amount pledged as of June 30, 2021. 
Details of the remaining Pledge Receivable is as follows: 

Pledge Receivable as of June 30, 2021 
Less: Discount to present value 

Less: Current portion of campaign pledges 
Long-term portion of campaign pledges 

Scheduled payments are as follows for years ended June 30: 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

800,000 
(56,850) 
743,150 

(177,698) 
565,452 

177,698 
183,028 
188,519 
193,905 
743,150 



NOTE G - INVESTMENTS 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Organization's Level 2 investments consist of endowment and long-term investment 
funds held by the Jewish Community Foundation of San Diego in balanced pool 
portfolios that include primarily publicly traded securities. The Organization has variance 
power over the funds. The pooled investments are categorized as Level 2 because they 
have direct observable inputs. 

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Organization's investments in 
accordance with authoritative fair value guidance as of June 30, 2021: 

Level 1 Level 2 To ta l 
Domestic equities $ $ 3,735.566 $ 3,735,566 
I nternatlonal equities 
Domestic fixed income 
I nternotionol fixed Income 
Other 

Total $ $ 

4,147,936 4. 147,936 
3,735,562 3.735,562 

97,028 97,028 

41 2,368 412,368 

12.128.460 $ 12. 128.460 

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Organization's investments In 
accordance with authoritative fair value guidance as of June 30, 2020: 

Domestic equities 
I nternatlonal equities 
Domestic fixed income 
I nternotlonol fixed income 
Other 

Total 

Level l 

$ $ 

$ $ 

Level 2 Total 
1,636,302 $ 1,636,302 
4,236,317 4,236,31 7 
3.232,449 3,232.449 

582.242 582,242 
351.353 351 .353 

10,038,663 $ 10.038,663 

Investment return consisted of the following for the years ended June 30: 

Interest and dividends 
Realized and unrealized gains and losses 
Investment fees 

Total 

$ 

$ 
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2021 2020 
191.872 $ 244,653 

2,343,007 46.190 
(38,947) (33,560) 

2.495,932 $ 257.283 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE H - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30: 

2021 

Construction in progress 

Land 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 

Furniture and equipment 
Software 

Vehicles 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

$ 10,000 
10,401,000 
20,343,260 

632,820 

797,420 
54,840 

328,220 

32,567,560 

(7,735,650) 
$ 24,831,910 

2020 

$ 23,922 
6,038,870 

15,473,089 
632,822 

766,449 

54,845 
256,948 

23,246,945 
(7,144,632) 

$ 16,102,313 

Depreciation expense was $591,016 and $596,071 for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

NOTE I - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
The following reflect the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
reduced by amounts not available for general expenditure because of contractual or 
donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date. 

Cash 
Investments 

Grant and contracts receivable 
Pledge receivable, current portion 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Unamortized donated rent 

Financial assets available within one year 

Less: those unavilable for general expenditures 
within one year due to: 

Restricted by donors in perpetuity 

Restricted by donors in purpose or time 
Total amounts unavailable for general 

expenditures within one year 
Amounts unavailable to management 

without Board's approval: 

Board designated long-term investments 
Total financial assets available to management 

for general expenditures within one year 
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2021 2020 

$ 6,025,000 
12,128,460 

3,582,190 

177,698 
322,570 

74,280 
22,310,198 

(5,482,843) 
(2,343, 141 ) 

(7,825,984) 

(4,246,063) 

$ 10,238,151 

$ 5,681,243 
10,038,663 

1,908,201 

287,716 
100,198 

18,016,021 

(5,482,843) 

(549,682) 

(6,032,525) 

(4,246,063) 

$ 7,737,433 



NOTE J - LINE OF CREDIT 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Organization has o line of credit with First Citizens Bank in the amount of $500,000 
that is secured by all personal property of the Organization, Interest is payable monthly 
at the greater of 1.0% above the Wall Street Journal's prime rate (4.25% at June 30, 2021) 
or the floor rdte of 4.25%. The line of credit expires on July 14, 2022. The Organization 
had no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

NOTE K • NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

Note payable to First Citizens Bank in monthly payments 
of $11,390 including interest at 3.25% per annum, 
secured by real property, due August 2035. 

Note payable to the City of Escondido for $443,000 
secured by real property, Annual payments of principal 
and interest {3.00% per annum) ore due only to the 
extent that the Home Project provides positive cash 
flow. There were no required payments made during 
the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Note payable to City of Escondido for $450,000, 
secured by real property, due June 2072. Annual 
payments of principal and interest (3.00% per annum) 
are due only to the extent that the Home Project II 
provides positive cash flow. There were no required 
payments made during the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Note payable to Union Bank in monthly payments of 
$3.182 including interest at 4.50% per annum, secured 
by real property, due July 20. 2025. 
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2021 2020 

$ 647,150 $ 713,310 

443,000 443,000 

450,000 450,000 

144,702 175,620 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE K - NOTES PAYABLE - (CONTINUED) 

Note payable to First Citizens Bank secured by real 
property, 1820 S. Escondido Blvd., due June 5, 2033. 
Monthly payments of principal and interest at 4.75% per 
annum. 

Note payable to the City of Oceanside ("City") for 
$350,000, secured by real property, due December 
2065. The City recorded a deed of trust that is 
subordinate to Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Annual payments 
of principal and interest (3.00% per annum) are due 
only to the extent that the Garfield Program provides 
positive cash flow. There were no required payments 
made during the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Note payable to California Department of Housing and 
Community Development for $245,000, secured by real 
property, due July 2057. Annual payments of principal 
and interest (3.00% per annum) are due only to the 
extent that the CASA Program provides positive cash 
flow. The Development was constructed in 1964 and is 
made up of eight units. There were no required 
payments made during the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Note payable to Wells Fargo Bank in monthly payments 
of $1,416 including interest at 5.50% per annum, 
secured by real property, remaining balance of 
principal and interest due December 2020. 

Mortgage payable to PrinsBank in monthly payments of 
$845 including adjustable rate interest interest of 0.50% 
above bank prime rate (3.75% at June 30, 2021) 
secured by real property due June 2025. 
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1,021,679 1,087,131 

350,000 350,000 

245,000 245,000 

8,400 

38,662 48,201 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE K - NOTES PAYABLE - (CONTINUED) 

Note payable to First Citizens Bank secured by real 
property, 555 N. Centre City Pkwy., due Ocotber 20, 
2036. Monthly payments of principal and interest at 
3.10% per annum. 

Note payable to First Citizens Bank. This is a PPP loan, 
interest rate of 1 %. Principal and interest due May 
2022. Management will seek forgiveness for this loan 
during fiscal year 2022. 

2,593,507 

1,819,500 

$ 7,753,200 

Future principal payments on notes payable for the year ending June 30, 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Thereafter 

Total 

1,819,500 

$ 5,340,162 

$5,000,214 
146,705 
155,748 
158,045 
123,192 

2,169,296 

$7,753,200 

Notes payable contain certain financial and non-financial covenants for which the 
Organization was in compliance as of June 30, 2021. 

NOTE L- PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM 

There are two acceptable methods for accounting for Paycheck Protection Program 
("PPP") proceeds received under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
Act ("CARES" Act). Entities can elect to treat the PPP proceeds as a loan payable. Loan 
forgiveness will be recognized when the conditions for loan forgiveness are met and the 
forgiveness amount is formally approved by the bank and the U.S. Small Business 
Administration ("SBA"). 

In May 2020, the Organization received a $1,819,500 loan, pursuant to the CARES Act 
PPP. Neither principle nor interest was due for a six-month deferral period through 
November 2020, at which time monthly payments of principal and interest would 
commence. All unpaid principal and interest would be due at maturity in May 2022. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 

NOTE M - COMMITMENTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Organization has various copier leases requiring aggregate monthly lease 
payments of $3,059 with various maturity dates through March 2026. Total lease expense 
was $27,885 and $21 ,528 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

The Organization leases warehouse space which expires August 2022. The monthly lease 
payment was $4,271 . Total Lease expense was $49,931 and $4,271 for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

The Organization leases office space which expires November 2024. The monthly lease 
payment was $2,094. Total lease expense was $25,124 and $14,655 for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

In July 2021, the Organization entered into a lease agreement for office space which 
expires June 2022. The monthly lease payment is $3,534 over the lease term. 

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of June 30, 2021, are due 
as follows for the year ending June, 30: 

2022 $ 142,255 
2023 56,566 
2024 44,391 

2025 25,945 
2026 9,878 

Total $ 279,035 

NOTE N - CONTINGENCIES 

Grants and Contracts 

The Organization receives a significant portion of its revenue from government grants 
and contracts which are subject to audit. No provision has been made for any liabilities 
that may arise from such audits since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined. 
Management believes that any liability which may result from these audits is not 
significant. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE N - CONTINGENCIES - (CONTINUED) 

Repayment Contingency 

The Organization received a contribution of $463,907 in 2003 from the City of Escondido 
that was used to purchase its headquarters which is included in property and 
equipment in the statement of financial position. The contribution amount is to be 
repaid in the event that the property is sold or is no longer used for its designated 
purpose. 

The Organization has not expressed intent to sell the property and plans to continue to 
operate the facility consistent with its designated purpose. 

Litigation 

In the normal course of operations, the Organization is occasionally named as a 
defendant in various lawsuits. It is the opinion of management and of legal counsel that 
the outcome of any pending lawsuits will not materially affect the operations or the 
financial position of the Organization. 

NOTE O - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes as of June 30: 

2021 2020 
Purpose Restrictions: 

Transitional Youth Academy $ 53,211 $ 43,124 
Veteran Services 196,826 247,299 
Capital Acquistion 1,063,099 50,000 
Employment Services 31,711 43,307 
Immigration 17,265 18,413 
Housing Assistance 63,186 47,341 

Rental Assistance 14,432 

Racial Justice 5,091 

Covid Relief 80,887 

Time Restrictions: 
Promises to give 743,420 
Unamortized Rent 74,013 100,198 

$ 2,343,141 $ 549,682 
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NOTE P - PENSION PLAN 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Organization has a 401 (k} retirement plan which covers substantially all employees 
18 years of age or older who have completed three months of service. A contribution 
to the Plan is paid monthly at a rate determined by the Board of Directors. Employee 
contributions to the Plan are at the discretion of each eligible employee and are 
matched by the Organization monthly at a percentage determined by the Board of 
Directors. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization contributed at a rate of 
1 % employer contribution and a 1 % employer match. The total employer contributions 
to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were $182,770 and $139,014, 
respectively. 

NOTE Q - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS-ENDOWMENT 

The Organization's donor-restricted endowment consist of pooled funds at the Jewish 
community Foundation of San Diego and is established for a variety of purposes, 
including to serve children's needs and those of their families. As required by GAAP, net 
assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act ("UPMIFA"} as requiring the preservation of the 
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds 
absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. 

As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classified endowment as net assets 
with donor restrictions (a} the original value of gifts donated to the permanent 
endowment, (b} the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c} accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the 
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added 
to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not 
classified in net assets with donor restrictions is classified as net assets without donor 
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in 
a manner that is consistent in accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor­
restricted endowment funds: 

1} The duration and preservation of the fund. 
2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund. 
3) General economic conditions. 
4) The possible effects of inflation and deflation. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE Q - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS-ENDOWMENT- (CONTINUED) 

5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investmen_ts. 
6) Other resources of the Organization. 
7) The investment policies of the Organization. 

As of June 30, 2021, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund, consisted 
of the following: 

Endowment funds 

Without donor 
Restrictions 

$ 1,200,503 

With donor 
Restrictions 
$ 5,482,843 

Total 
$ 6,683,346 

As of June 30, 2020, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund, consisted 
of the following: 

Endowment funds 

Without donor 
Restrictions 

$ 96,506 

With donor 
Restrictions 
$ 5,482,843 

Total 
$ 5,579,349 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, consisted of the 
following: 

Without donor With donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total 

Endowment net assets, 
beginning of year $ 96,506 $ 5,482,843 $ 5,579,349 

Activity: 
Interest and dividends 106,239 106,239 
Realized and unrealized gains 1,299,290 1,299,290 
Investment expense (21,688) (21,688) 

Appropriations (279,844) (279,844) 

Net activity 1,103,997 1,103,997 

Endowment net assets, 

end of year $ 1,200,503 $ 5,482,843 $ 6,683,346 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE Q - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS-ENDOWMENT- (CONTINUED) 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, consisted of the 
following: 

Without With donor 
donor Restrictions Total 

Endowment net assets, 
beginning of year $ 209,206 $ 5,482,843 $ 5,692,049 

Activity: 
Interest and dividends 148,168 148,168 
Realized and unrealized gain: 27,754 27,754 
Investment expense (20,746) (20,746) 
Appropriations (267,876) (267,876) 

Net activity (112,700) (112,700) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of year $ 96,506 $ 5,482,843 $ 5,579,349 

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 

The Organization had adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets 
that attempt to provide funding for the operating expenses of programs supported by 
its endowments. In order to limit risk exposure, account features such as asset allocation, 
diversity, duration of holding each security return on investment, and investment quality 
shall be applied, measured and reviewed. 

Investment Strategy 

The investment strategy of the Organization is to develop a diversified portfolio of 
passive investments. For equity investments, the selection of such holdings is based on 
the investments, the selection of such holdings is based on the merits of long-term 
ownership without the intent of short-term trading. To achieve investment objectives, 
the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are 
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield 
(interest and dividends). 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE Q - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS-ENDOWMENT- (CONTINUED) 

Spending Policy 

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for distribution annually an amount 
equal to 5% of the average investment accounts balances as of the last twelve-quarter 
ending values. The Organization expects the current spending policy to · allow its 
endowment to meet the needs of the Organization. This is consistent with the 
Organization's objective to provide funding for the operating expenses of programs as 
well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. 

NOTER- BOARD DESIGNATED LONG-TERM 

The Organization also has unrestricted funds held in a pooled account at the Jewish 
Community Foundation of San Diego. The Board of Directors has designated these funds 
to support the Organization for a long by unspecified period of time. 

These funds are invested in a manner similar to the net assets with donor restrictions 
endowment. All earnings related to the board designated long-term funds are 
recorded in the undesignated net asset balance. 

The Board designated long-term investments balance was $4,246,063 as of June 30, 
2021 and 2020. 

NOTES-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through May 20, 2022, which is the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

On July 31, 2021, Interfaith received full forgiveness from the Small Business 
Administration on the Organization's note payable through the Paycheck Protection 
Program under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act. 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") 
includes the federal award activity of Interfaith Community Services, Inc., under 
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information 
in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Interfaith Community Services, Inc., 
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, 
or cash flows of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained 
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or 
are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through Organization identifying numbers are 
presented where available. 

NOTE C - INDIRECT COST RATE 

Interfaith Community Services, Inc. is using agreed upon indirect cost rates stipulated in 
its contracts and has elected not to use the 1 O percent de minimums indirect cost rate 
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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federal/Pass-Through Granter/Program/Cluster Title 

U.S Deportment of Housing and Urban Deve1opmenl 
Direct programs: 

Continuum o f Core Program - Path to Permanence 
Continuum of Core Program - Raymond's Refuge 
Continuum of Core Program - Rental Assistance Program 
Continuum of Core Program - Home Now 

Pass-through from Community Housing WOlfcs: 
Continuum o f Core Program - CHW 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

14.267 
14.267 
14.267 
14.267 

14.267 

Contract 
Number 

CA I 693L9D011902 
CA0944L9D0119l0 
CA l 253L9D011906 
CA160I L9D011903 

CA0703L9D01191 
CA0709L90011912 
CAI025l90011905 

Pass-through from County of Son Diego via Mental Health Systems.: 
Continuum of Care Program - Shelter Plus Care 
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 

Passed through to Catholic Chariti.es 

Emergency Solutions Grant Program Cares 
Pass-through from City of Escondido: 

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 

Emergency Solutions Grant Program Cores 
Pass through from City of Carlsbad: 

CDBG - Coastal Services 

Pass through from City of Carlsbad: 

CDBG - Son Morcos Rental Assistance 

Pass-through from County of Son Diego 

CDBG - County 
Pass-through from City of Escondido via Alliance 

for Reg;nal solvtions 
CDBG - Winter Shelter - Haven House 

Pass-through from City of Encinitas via Alliance 
for Reginal solutions 

CDBG - Winter Shelter - Hoven House 

U.S. Department o f labor 
Direct program: 

Poss-through from San Diego Wor1cforce Partnership: 
WIOA Youlh Aclivities - TYA WIO> 

Passed through lo Miro Costa 
Poss-through from California Employment Develop. Dept.: 

WIA Adult Program - VEAP 

14.267 
14.231 
14.231 

14.231 

14.231 

14.231 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

17.259 
17.259 

17.258 . 

CA693l 900118II 
561438 
561438 

56379 

E-20-MW-06-0552 

E-20-MW-06-0552 

B20MC060563 

6455 

561532-3183 

N/A 

N/ A 

19~33 
19~33 

K9113153 & AA1 I 106t. 

$ 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Federal Awards and independent auditor's report. 
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Total Federa l 
Expencfllures 

132.375 $ 
100.8-43 
274.199 
240.182 

115,466 

211 ,796 
508.377 

72.852 
309,000 

148,300 

270,710 

420.172 

180, 112 

35.331 

45,000 

43.824 
3.108.539 

314.852 
20.790 

235.186 
570.828 

Expenditures 
to 

Subrecipients 

72.852 

72,852 

20,790 

20,790 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

FedemVPoss-lhrough Grontor/Progrom/Cluster Title 
{Continued) 

us Deportment of Health and Humon Services 
Poss--through from County of Son Diego: 

CSBG - Corrvnunities in Action - Inland 
Passed ltTough to Escoooido Educo1ion COMPACT 

Recovery and Welness Residential Treolment 
FederoVPoss-Through Grontor/Progrom/Cluster Title - {Conmued) 

Recovery and weaness Outpatient Treotment 
Notional fomly Cotegiver Support - Minor Home Repo~ 

Deportment of Homeland Security 
Poss-through from colhoflc Charities: 

Emergency food and Shetter Notional Board Program 
EFSPFEMA 

u,s Deportment of Treasury 
Voonteer Income Tax Assistance 

U.S. Deportment of Veteran Affair! 
0.-ect Programs: 

VA Homeless Providers Grant & Per Diem Program - Oceanside SITH 
VA Homeless Providers Grant & Per Diem Progom - Recuperative Beds 
VA Homeless Providers Grant & Per Diem Program- Bridge Housing 
VA Homeless Providers Gronl & Per Diem Program- Bridge Housing 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal 
CFDA 

Numbef 

93.569 
93.569 
93.959 

93.959 
93.052 

97.02-4 
97.02-4 

21.009 

6-4.024 
6-4.02-4 
6-4.024 
64.024 

Contract 
Number 

557909 
557909 
559-478 

559501 
553161 

EFSP Phase 37 (cores) 
EFSP Phase 38 

21VITAOl81 

ICS17 l-4-08-4 l-66-4-Sl-l 9CA 
VA262-12-0-01-4-4 

ICSl7 l-4-0325-66-4-BH-l 8-0 
36C2622000054 

$ 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Federal Awards and independent auditor's report. 
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Total Federal 
Expenditures 

261.80-4 
24.436 

2.708,182 

999.093 
40.805 

4.03-4.320 

85,997 
22.689 

108.686 

65.924 
65,924 

111.065 
496.-461 
430,3-44 
161,550 

1,199,420 _ 

9,087,717 $ 

El(penditures 
lo 

Subrecipienls 

24,436 

24,436 

118.078 



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Audit Committee 
Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 
Escondido, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
the financial statements of Interfaith Community Services, Inc.. (a non-profit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 . and 
the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then 
ended. and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated Moy 20, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Interfaith 
Community Services, Inc. 's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Interfaith Community Services. lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Interfaith Community Services, 
Inc. 's infernal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. to prevent. or detect and correct. misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However. material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified . 

Camballza McGee LLP • 1601 Dove Street. Suite 294 • Newport Beach, CA 92660 
TEL: 949-484-8288 • FAX: 949-315-3900 • CPA-CM.com 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Interfaith Community Services, 
Inc. 's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of Its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
agreements. noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compl!ance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication ls not suitable for any other purpose. 

Cambaliza McGee LLP 
Newport Beach, California 
May 20, 2022 
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(iii)~ .. ~'~"~?}},~~,~~~.:.~.~~~ 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Audit Committee 
Interfaith Community Services. Inc. 
Escondido, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We hove audited Interfaith Community Services. lnc.'s, (a non-profit organization) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
Interfaith Community Services, lnc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2021. Interfaith Community Services, lnc.'s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Interfaith Community 
Services, Inc. 's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those 
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we pion and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could hove a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Interfaith Community Services, Inc. 's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
eoch major federal program. However, our audit does not provide o legal determination 
of Interfaith Community Services, lnc.'s compliance. 

Camballza McGee LLP • 1601 Dove St reet, Suite 294 • Newport Beach, CA 92660 
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Opinion of Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Interfaith Community Services, Inc., complied, in all material respects, with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, 
we considered Interfaith Community Services, lnc.'s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Interfaith Community Services, lnc.'s internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and· correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a . material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Infernal Control over Compliance - /Continued) 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance ls solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing 
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

CCIJll~o.. rnwis LLP 
Combalizo McGee LLP 
Newport Beach, California 
Moy 20, 2022 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued on whether 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Any noncompliance material to the financial statements 
noted 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 200.516(a) 

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS 

CFDA Numbers 
93.959 
93.231 
64.024 
14.267 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Recovery and Wellness 
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 
VA Homeless providers grant 
Continuum of Care 

Unmodified 

No 
No 

No 

No 
No 

Unmodified 

No 

Expenditures 
$ 3,707,275 

1,309,239 
l, 199,420 _ 
1,074,861 

Total expenditures of All Major Federal Programs $ 7.290.795 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 9.087.717 

Percentage of Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 80% 
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B program 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee under 
section 200.520? 

Section II - CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

A. Current Year Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

No financial statement findings in the current year. 

$750,000 

Yes 

B. Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audits 

No Current Year Findings or Questioned Costs. 

Section Ill - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

A. Prior Year Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

No financial statement findings in the prior year. 

B. Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit 

No prior year findings or questioned costs. 

- 37 -



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

CASAWorks Apartments 
99-FMTW-010 

Statement of Operations 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Acct No. 
Rent Revenue: 

5120 Rent Revenue $ 87,637 
5121 Tenant Assistance Payments 4,118 
5100T Total Rent Revenue $ 91,755 

5152N Net Rental Revenues (Rent Revenue Less Vacancies) $ 91,755 

Other Revenue: 

5910 Laundry and Vending Revenue $ 742 
5900T Total Other Revenue $ 742 

5000T Total Revenue $ 92,497 

Administrative Expenses: 

6204 Management Consultants $ 634 
6250 Other Renting Expenses 
6310 Office Salaries 1,990 
6311 Office Expenses 1,037 
6330 Manager or Superintendent Salaries 12,041 
6340 Legal Expense - Project 81 
6390 Misc. Administrative Expenses 721 
6263T Total Administrative Expenses $ 16,504 

utilities Expenses: 

6450 Electricity $ 3,621 
6451 Water 8.481 
6400T Total Utilities Expenses $ 12,102 

Operating and Maintenance Expenses: 

6510 Payroll $ 2,779 
6515 Supplies 1,238 
6520 Contracts 6,979 
6525 Garbage and Trash Removal 3,972 
6546 Heating/Cooling Repairs and Maintenance 
6570 Vehicle & Maint Equip Operation/Repairs 2,162 
6580 Lease Expense 
6590 Misc. Operating & Maintenance Exp. 
6500T Total Operating & Maintenance Exp. $ 17,130 

Taxes and Insurance: 

6710 Real Estate Taxes $ 83 
6711 Payroll Taxes (Project's Share) 1,803 
6720 Property & Liability Insurance (Hazard) 2.730 
6721 Fidelity Bond Insurance 



Acct No. 
6722 
6723 
6790 
6700T 

6990 
6990 
6900T 
6000 
5060 
6600 

5060N 
7100T 
3250 

Acct No. 
Sl000-10 
Sl000-20 

Sl 000-30 

Sl000-40 

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

CASAWorks Apartments 
99-FMTW-010 

Statement of Operations - (Continued) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Worker's Compensation 
Health Ins. & Other Employee Benefi1s 
Misc. Taxes, Licenses, Permits and Ins. 

Total Taxes and Insurance 
Supportive Services Exp. 
Salaries - Client Case Management • HUD • Continuum of Care Grant 

Client Supportive Services - Other - Daycare, Employment, Lifeskills, Etc 
Total Supportive Services Expenses 

Total Cost of Operations before Depreciation 

Profit (loss) before Depreciation 
Depreciation 

Operating Profit (Loss) 
Net Entity Expenses 

Change In Total Net Assets from Operations 

Total principal payments during audit period. 
Total of all monthly reserve for replacement deposits. 
Replacement Reserves, or Residual Receipts and Releases which are 
Included In expense Items. 
Project Improvement Reserves which ore Included as expense Items, 

660 
6,042 

138 

$ 11,456 

$ 2,235 

$ 2,235 

s 59,427 

$ 33,070 

s 13,192 

$ 19,878 

$ 
s 19,878 



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

CASAWorks Apartments 
99-FMTW-010 

Statement of Cash Flow 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Acct No. 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

S1200-010 Rental Receipts $ 91,755 

S1200-030 Other Operating Receipts 742 

S1 200-050 Administrative (2,473) 

S1200-090 Utllities (12,102) 

S1200-100 Salaries and Wages (19,045) 

S1200-110 Operating and Maintenance (14,351 ) 

S 1200-120 Real Estate Taxes (83) 

Sl 200-140 Property Insurance (2,730) 

S1200-150 Miscellaneous Taxes and Insurance (8,643) 

S1200-170 Other Operating Expenses 

S1200-240 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 33,070 
Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

S1200-250 Net Deposits to the Reserve for Replacement account $ 3,408 
S1200-255 Net Deposits to Other Reserves 1,783 
S1200-260 Net Deposits to Residual Receipts account 
S1200-330 Net Purchases of Fixed Assets 

S1200-350 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities $ 5,191 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

S1200-360 Principal Payments - Mortgage $ 
S1200-420 Distributions 
S1200-430 Contributions 

S1200-450 other Financ ing Activities 

S1200-460 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities $ 
Net Increase {Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents: $ · . 27,879 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 

(Choose one) 0 MINI-GRANT (Choose one) 1K] REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Emergency Food Relief - Total # of people served: 100,000 Amount 
North County Food Bank Total # of San Marcos 

Requested: $3,000 

Date Submitted: 10/5/2022 residents served: 5,000 
Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 

Michael Minjares 
Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank Director, Grants Management 
9850 Distribution Avenue (858) 863-5192 
San Diego, CA 92121 mmin j ares@sandiegofoodbank.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 

The North County Food Bank of the Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank is requesting $3,000 to be used for the 
purchase of approximately 16,000 pounds of nutritious fresh produce. This purchased food will be distributed free of 
charge to low-income families through our Neighborhood Distributions, our 175 North County-based non-profit 
partners, and our Super Pantry located at the North County Food Bank. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 

While the worst of the pandemic may be behind us, the need still remains great. In fact, the San Diego Hunger 
Coalition just came out with a repmt last month that estimates more than 900,000 San Diegans have trouble paying for 
or getting enough nutritious food to maintain an adequate diet. That's about 25% of the county's total population. 
Everyone knows housing is expensive in San Diego and gas prices continue to be at record high levels. With rising 
inflation, food prices have also shot up. Cereal and bakery prices were up 14% and dairy products were up nearly 10% 
over this time last year. And a lot of the government assistance widely available during the height of the pandemic is 
drying up and going away leaving our neighbors in dire straits when it comes to securing enough food to feed 
themselves and their families. Providing access to nutritious food to our neighbors in San Marcos remains a critical 
need. 

Please attach the following items. 
Expected date project will begin/end: 7/1/2022 Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 

I. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) Date by which funds will be expended: 6/30/2023 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers Signature of President or Authorized Officer 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 

c,G$,'Ai0,dillc. Cfc:) Lu ls!:r;J 5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative Name~i e n:-. ~.·· '. Date 
1 1 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 Al • • • I II • • ~ f""' 
C. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including Submit Via Mafi. In Person or Via Email to: 

any management letters associated with Audit. San Marcos Community Foundation 
d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on c/o City of San Marcos 

Application 1 Ci vie Center Ori ve 

e. Optional: letters of support 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-marcos.net 
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SAN OU.':GO FOOD BANK 

At the Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank and North County Food Bank, our mission goes 
beyond simply providing food. We are addressing hunger by increasing public awareness, connecting 
recipients seeking emergency food assistance with federal benefits, and advocating for federal and 
state programs and policies that support low-income Americans. 

Today, 1 in 8 individuals in San Diego County are food insecure: they don't always know where their 
next meal will come from. Extensive research has linked hunger and food insecurity to negative 
physical and mental health outcomes. Food insecurity and a lack of access to nutritious food have 
been identified as the top social determinants of health that contribute to increased incidences of 
diabetes, obesity, and other nutritional diseases. Food insecurity in childhood increases an 
individual's susceptibility to every category of mental illness including mood, anxiety, behavioral, and 
substance disorders. 

Poverty is almost always a condition that equates to hunger. The ultimate goal of the Food Bank is to 
break the cycle of poverty, and that begins with access to nutritious food. The food provided through 
our Emergency Food Distribution Programs, including those in North County San Diego, offers a 
safety net for individuals and families in need, easing the burden on military families struggling to 
stretch their monthly incomes, seniors choosing between life-saving medications and healthy foods 
at the grocery store, and college students skipping meals to afford their textbooks. 

Now in our 4Sth year, the Food Bank remains the critical link to basic needs for low-income seniors, 
working poor families with children, the homeless, and nearly 39,000 active duty military, their 
families, and veterans. Before COVID-19 the Food Bank was serving 3S0,000 individuals monthly, due 
to the pandemic, this number has spiked to nearly 400,000 per month. In collaboration with nearly 
550 Nonprofit Partners, including emergency shelters, food pantries, soup kitchens, mobile 
distribution pantries, and schools, we touch the lives of San Diego residents by providing nutritious 
food, hope, and dignity. 

In addition, we are anticipating what is being called the "Federal Food Cliff" with the possible 
expiration of increased federal COVID emergency SNAP (Food Stamps) benefits in Fall 2022. The 
reduction in SNAP benefits will be significant, and in some cases, households will lose hundreds of 
dollars in monthly SNAP benefits which will add more demand to the Food Bank's services. 

For the last seven years, the North County Food Bank (NCFB) has served as the regional hub and 
distribution point for food relief for communities in need in North County. When the Jacobs & 
Cushman San Diego Food Bank (Food Bank) began operating this small facility in 2015, the immense 
need in the region became immediately clear. In 2019, the NCFB moved to a larger warehouse facility 
and has increased its food distribution and the number of families and individuals served 
significantly: last year more than 5 million meals were distributed throughout North County with 

CHARITY NAVIGATOR 
Four Star Cllarity 

** * 
1445 Engineer Street, Suite 110 
Vista, CA 92081 
P 858.527 .1419 

NorthCountyFoodBank.org 



more than 120,000 individuals receiving food each month in the region. Through strategic 
partnerships, effective operations, and a commitment to feeding those in need, the NCFB is working 
to end hunger in our community. 

The North County Food Bank is making great strides in addressing food insecurity in the northern 
communities of San Diego County. The nutritional quality of the food being distributed has improved 
and the number of pounds distributed has grown tremendously. But there is much more to be done. 
With grant support, the NCFB can continue to serve 120,000 unique individuals every month through 
our programs and our 179 Nonprofit Partners located in North County. 

The NCFB will use the requested grant award of $3,000 in support of our Fresh Produce Initiative 
(FPI); these funds will purchase at least 16,000 pounds of nutritious, fresh produce from California 
growers. The Food Bank receives a lower cost of produce through a subsidized program and our 
strong collaboration with local growers provides this substantial discount. This produce will then be 
distributed free of charge to low-income families who are desperate to put healthy food on their 
tables. Since 2010, we have set a powerful example to food banks across the U.S. through the FPI. 
Last year, 30% of the food we distributed consisted of fresh fruits and vegetables. This is made 
possible through purchases and donations from California farmers. By actively and efficiently 
providing nutritious, fresh produce, we proudly move beyond being just a food bank to being a 
comprehensive nutrition bank. 

As you may know, fresh produce is often too costly for families living on tight budgets - they are 
forced to subsist on processed foods that are filling and cheap, but that directly contribute to San 
Diego County's epidemic of obesity, Type 2 diabetes, and cardiovascular disease. The goal of the FPI 
is to distribute at least 14 million pounds of fresh produce to marginalized families and seniors 
throughout San Diego County to reduce the negative trends of hunger and nutritional disease and to 
remove the barriers to fresh, nutritious-but expensive-fruits and vegetables. Through your 
support of the Fresh Produce Initiative in North County, you can significantly improve the health 
outcomes of our clients. 

With the San Marcos Community Foundation's partnership, we can continue to grow our impact in 
San Diego's North County. For the thousands of people forced to make choices between food and 
other basic necessities monthly in North County, access to the NCFB can issue relief from the 
crushing stress of living life on the edge. 

CHARITY NAVIGATOR 
Four Star Charity 

* * 
1445 Engineer Street, Suite 110 
Vista, CA 92081 
P 858.527.1419 

NorthCountyFoodBank.org 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example - 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax = $561.60) 

Fresh Produce Acquisition and Distribution __________ _ 

Personnel Expenses __________________ _ 

Occupancy Expenses __________________ _ 

Administrative Transport __________________ _ 

Total budget for this PROJECT: 

Grant Request Amount: 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

$75,000 Price Philanthropies 

$7,500 Ameriprise Financial 

$ (Name of source) 

$ (Name of source) 

$1,000,000 

$125,000 

$25,000 

$50,000 

$ ____ _ 

$ ___ _ 

$ ____ _ 

$ ___ _ 

$ ___ _ 

$ ____ _ 

$ ___ _ 

$ ____ _ 

$1,200,000 

$3,000 

** C 

** C 

** 
** 



Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank 
Proposed Budget FY 2022-2023 

Income 
Total Government Contracts 
Total Business Enterprise 
Total Private Donations 
Total Special Event Fundraising 
Total Investments 

Total Income 

Expense 
Total Fundraising Expense 
Total Food Acquisition & Distribution 
Total Personnel Expenses 
Total Occupancy Expenses 
Total Administrative 

Total Expense 

Total Income 
Total Expense 

Net Income 

Carry-over from Reserves 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

($ 

$ 

FY 2022-2023 
Budget 

4,100,000 
480,000 

16,070,000 
1,350,000 

600,000 
22,600,000 

2,770,000 
9,780,000 
8,250,000 
1,340,000 
1,960,000 

24,100,000 

22,600,000 
24,100,000 
1,500,000) 

1,500,000 
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Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank 

Federal Tax ID# 20-4374795 

State Tax ID# 2801904 
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Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank 
Board of Directors 

July 01, 2022 - June 30, 2023 

Kimberley Layton - Chair 
Vice President, External Affairs 
Los Angeles Chargers 

Dana Alligood - Treasurer 
Market Executive, Global Commercial Bank-Middle Market 

Bank of America Merrill Lynch 

Matt Abernethy 
Chief Financial Officer 
Neurocrine Biosciences 

Bob Bolin2:er 

Clifford "Rip" Rippetoe - Vice Chair 
President & CEO 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation 

Patrick Day - Secretary 
Vice President/General Manager 
Jordanos Foodservice 

Steve Bernstein - Chair Emeritus 
Senior Vice President, San Diego Region Manager 
PNC Bank 

Carlos Cota 
Partner 
CSB Impact Marketing & Media Management 

IATSE International Trustee, International Representative 
International Alliance of Theatrical Stage Employees (IA TSE) 

Steve Cushman 
President 
Cush Enterprises 

Dale Ganzow 

Kristin Howell 
VP/Director of Business Development 
Meissner Commercial Real Estate Services 

Sandv Kerl 
General ManaJ!er 
San Diego County Water Authority 

Dan Moore 
Co-Manager, Commercial & Residential Properties 
Crown Pacific Group LLC 

James Rossi 
Regional Vice President, San Diego 
Kingsbarn Real Estate Capital 

John David Wicker 
Director of Intercollegiate Athletics 
San Diego State University 

Updated: 8/12/2022 

Melissa Forrest 
President- San Diego/Riverside Region 
iHeart Media 

Nancv Henroid 
Business Strategy Leader 
Kaiser Permanente 

Jill Irvin 
SVP/General Council 
Bumble Bee Seafoods 

Drew Martin 
Chief Information Officer 
Jenny Craig 

Rav Patel 
CEO(RET) 
Fisher Scientific Products 

Gangaram Singh, Ph.D. 
Dean 
California State University East Bay 

Rick Williams 
Vice President - South 
Albertsons Companies, Inc. 
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PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY - STATE REGISTRATION NO. 2801904 

990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax O
M""

0
·

1
'"·

0047 

Form Under section 501(c}, 527, or 4947(a){1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations) 2020 • Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public 
~~!:-:_r~~io0~J~':s!~~eury .._ Go to www.irs,nov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection 
A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1 , 2 0 2 0 and ending JUN 3 0 , 2 0 21 
B Chock n C Name of organization D Employer identification number 

applicable: 

•::::::• JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK • Name l---'----'----'-----....:...;_____c"----"----'---....:......c:...c...:__ __ ..c... ____ --l 
change Daina business as 20-4374795 
return Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number D lnltlal I 

0;)1~/,,_, 9850 DISTRIBUTION AVENUE 619-231-1977 
~fe~!n- City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts S 12 6 , 811 , 618 • 

0:).1:,\~d•dl--"'S"'AN=....;;D;..;Ic.E=G;..O;;..,., -=C:;.;A;;;..._;9;..2=1'-'2'-'1,,,..,,.==,....,===~~-------l H(a) Is this a group return 
0:lg~""- F Name and address of principal offlcer:CASEY CASTILLO for subordinates? ...... Dves [X] No 

peMdlng S C AB D D ____ J...::S;;;AM=::E:..,...,Ae=T_:__=;..O;:.V_:__;;E:__ _____ ~---~~---~-~~ H(b) Are all subordinates Included? Yes No 
f Tax•exemot status: I X I 501(c)(3) I I 501(c) ( )• (insert no.) I I 4947(a)(1) or I I 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions 
J Website:• WWW. SANDIEGOFOODBANK. ORG H(c) Grouo exemotlon number • 
K Form of or•anization: I X I Corporation I I Trust I I Association I I Other• I L Year of formation: 2 0 0 51 M State of lenal domicile: CA 
I Part 11 Summary 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: PROVIDE FOOD TO PEOPLE IN NEED, 
ADVOCATE FOR THE HUNGRY AND EDUCATE THE PUBLIC ABOUT HUNGER ISSUES. 

2 Check this box • LJ If the organization discontinued lts operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 

3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 a) ..................... ..... ................................ ,_3'-+ _______ 2_3 
4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 b) .... ... ................................. ,_4'-+-------2~2 
5 Total number of individuals employed In calendar year 2020 (Part V, line 2a) ....... . .................................. ,_5'-+-----~~9~4 

34344 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) .................................................................................... . 6 

7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 ................................. .. 7a 
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 

8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ........................................................... . Q 
~ 
c 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ........................................................... . ! 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and ?d) ................................... . 

11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ....................... . 

12 Total revenue• add lines 8 throu• h 11 (must e• ual Part VIII, column (A\, l!ne 12' ....... .. 

13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1·3) ............................ . 

14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) .................................... .. 

Ill 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), Unes 5-10) ...... . 
~ ~ 16a Professlonal fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), llne 11 e) ........ . l b Total fundralsing expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) • ··4··;)i"iLf;·5·ir;r;· 

17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11 a•11 d, 11f·24e) .................................... . 

18 Total expenses. Add l!nes 13·17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ................... . 

19 Revenue less exnenses. Subtract line 18 from Une 12 
~~ 
Oi'l 
N~ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) .......................................... .. 

~; 21 Total l!abllitles (Part X, line 26) ....................................... .. 
::.;r 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 ....... . ............................ . 
I Part II I ;;,1gnature D1ocK 

.............................. 7b 
Prior Year 

81,133,b59. 
b38,819. 
201,~bl. 
406,267. 

82,380,607. 
57u,uuo. 

u. 
4,8tl5,457. 

0. 

65,023,904. 
7U,479,361. 
11,901,246. 

Beginning of Current Year 
38,873,012. 
1,620,541. 

37,252,471. 

o. 
0. 

Current Year 
124,611,817. 

428,843. 
287,319. 
168,917. 

125,496,896. 
1,752,516. 

0. 
5,b31,461. 

0. 

9tl,573,945. 
lll5,957,922. 
19,538,974. 

End of Year 
60,844,619. 
1,773,459. 

59,071,160. 

Under penalties of penury, l declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Sign 

Here 

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only 

• • CASEY CASTILLO, CEO 
ype or pnn name an I e 

PrinVType preparer's name Preparer's signature 
ICHARD HOTZ 

CONSIDINE & CONSIDINE 
Firm'saddress • RIO SAN DIEGO DRIVE, SUITE 25 

SAN DIEGO, CA 92108-1604 
May the 1RS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions 

032001 12-23-20 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 

ate 

Phoneno.619. 231.1977 
Yes No 

Form 990 (2020) 



20-4374795 Pa e2 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part Ill ................................... 00 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jacobs & Cushman San Diego 
Food Bank, a nonprofit organization, and subsidiary which comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank and subsidiary as of June 30, 
2021 and 2020, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . 

CONSIDINE & CONSIDINE 
An Accountancy Corporation 

April 12, 2022 



See accompanying notes 

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
Page 4

2021 2020
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,626,105$    2,579,695$    
Certificates of deposit 400,007          1,200,000 
Investments (note 6) 31,938,178 10,751,185
Accounts receivable (note 3) 1,183,129 2,034,339 
Contributions receivable 57,000            171,522          
Inventory (note 4) 8,322,582 4,859,973 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 171,525          202,161          

43,698,526    21,798,875    

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (note 5) 15,998,658    15,173,952    

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Certificates of deposit 1,051,007 1,851,013 
Other assets 96,428            49,172            

1,147,435 1,900,185 

TOTAL ASSETS 60,844,619    38,873,012    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 932,731          844,642          
Accrued liabilities (note 8) 710,246          681,280          
Customer advances 130,482          94,619            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,773,459 1,620,541 

NET ASSETS (note 10)
Without donor restrictions 57,012,551    34,716,770    
With donor restrictions 2,058,609 2,535,701 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 59,071,160    37,252,471    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 60,844,619$  38,873,012$  



See accompanying notes

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Page 5

Without donor With donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Support from the public:

Business enterprise (note 12) 80,798,792$  -$                     80,798,792$  
Private donations 31,674,946    1,491,442      33,166,388    
Government contracts 10,838,132    -                       10,838,132    
Inkind contributions 30,000 -                       30,000            

123,341,870  1,491,442      124,833,312  

Special events (note 13)
Special events revenue 751,541          -                       751,541          
Direct benefits to donors (148,314)        -                       (148,314)        

603,227          -                       603,227          

NET ASSET RESTRICTION TRANSFERS
         Revenue released from restriction 1,968,534      (1,968,534)     -                       

TOTAL REVENUE 125,913,631  (477,092)        125,436,539  

EXPENSES
   Program services:

Government programs 28,345,999 -                       28,345,999    
Non-Government programs 72,181,219 -                       72,181,219    

Total program services 100,527,218  -                       100,527,218  

   Supporting services:
Management and general 1,007,140 -                       1,007,140      
Fundraising 4,651,726 -                       4,651,726      

Total supporting services 5,658,866      -                       5,658,866      

106,186,084  -                       106,186,084  

OTHER INCOME
Investment return 2,554,532      -                       2,554,532      
Other income 13,702 -                       13,702            

2,568,234      -                       2,568,234      

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 22,295,781    (477,092)        21,818,689    

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 34,716,770    2,535,701      37,252,471    

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 57,012,551$  2,058,609$    59,071,160$  



See accompanying notes

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Page 6

Without donor With donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Support from the public:

Business enterprise (note 12) 55,170,448 -$                     55,170,448$  
Private donations 18,200,745 3,043,451      21,244,196
Government contracts 4,757,258 500,149          5,257,407
Inkind contributions 40,000 -                       40,000

78,168,451    3,543,600      81,712,051    

Special events (note 13)
Special events revenue 1,050,154      -                       1,050,154      
Direct benefits to donors (190,266)        -                       (190,266)        

859,888          -                       859,888          

NET ASSET RESTRICTION TRANSFERS
Revenue released from restriction 3,080,921      (3,080,921)     -                       

TOTAL REVENUE 82,109,260    462,679          82,571,939    

EXPENSES
   Program services:

Government programs 22,245,292    -                       22,245,292    
Non-Government programs 44,388,163    -                       44,388,163    

Total program services 66,633,455    -                       66,633,455    

   Supporting services:
Management and general 830,971          -                       830,971          
Fundraising 3,437,553      -                       3,437,553      

Total supporting services 4,268,524      -                       4,268,524      

70,901,979    -                       70,901,979    

OTHER INCOME
Investment return 294,359          -                       294,359          
Other income 29,424 -                       29,424            

323,783          -                       323,783          

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 11,531,064    462,679          11,993,743    

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,185,706 2,073,022      25,258,728    

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 34,716,770$  2,535,701$    37,252,471$  



See accompanying notes

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Page 7

Program Services Supporting Services
Non- Total Total 

Government Government Program Management Supporting
Programs Programs Services and General Fundraising Services Total

Administrative support 56$                  844$                900$                  2,915$             -$                    2,915$         3,815$             
Bank charges -                        2,663               2,663                47,218             324,379         371,597       374,260           
Contract services 175,844          276,563           452,407            67,391             288,879         356,270       808,677           
Depreciation and amortization 366,709          573,094           939,803            82,537             88,898           171,435       1,111,238        
Direct mail and marketing -                        58,703             58,703              2,210               2,649,430      2,651,640   2,710,343        
Dues and subscriptions 1,824               30,214             32,038              10,262             19,599           29,861         61,899             
Equipment rental 28,824             26,929             55,753              3,889               8,022              11,911         67,664             
Food acquisition and distribution 25,488,713     65,721,249     91,209,962      4,137               4,702              8,839           91,218,801     
Grant expense -                        1,752,516       1,752,516         -                        -                      -                    1,752,516        
Insurance 11,729             20,246             31,975              22,861             3,009              25,870         57,845             
Meeting expenses 24                    1,264               1,288                12,254             1,924              14,178         15,466             
Personnel expenses 1,580,223       2,360,351       3,940,574         646,624           1,190,644      1,837,268   5,777,842        
Printing and mailing 35,915             65,727             101,642            7,224               69,576           76,800         178,442           
Repairs and maintenance 119,724          247,829           367,553            29,583             41,706           71,289         438,842           
Supplies 50,503             293,093 343,596            27,740             81,336 109,076       452,672           
Telephone 14,375             30,805             45,180              8,155               3,132              11,287         56,467             
Travel 12,722             10,409             23,131              203                   1,731              1,934           25,065             
Warehouse expenses 458,814          708,720           1,167,534         31,937             23,073           55,010         1,222,544        

28,345,999     72,181,219     100,527,218    1,007,140       4,800,040      5,807,180   106,334,398   

Less: Direct benefits to donors
at special events included in
revenue -                        -                        -                         -                        (148,314)        (148,314)     (148,314)          

Total expenses included in the 
expense section of the 
statement of activities 28,345,999$   72,181,219$   100,527,218$  1,007,140$     4,651,726$    5,658,866$ 106,186,084$ 



See accompanying notes

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Page 8

Non- Total Total 
Government Government Program Management Supporting

Programs Programs Services and General Fundraising Services Total
Administrative support -$                     681$                681$               3,037$              -$                      3,037$         3,718$            
Bank charges -                        4,655               4,655              28,640              178,395           207,035       211,690         
Contract services 148,851          100,551           249,402         45,694              276,933           322,627       572,029         
Depreciation and amortization 470,853          298,811           769,664         63,839              71,984             135,823       905,487         
Direct mail and marketing -                        42,848             42,848            5,667                1,568,337        1,574,004    1,616,852      
Dues and subscriptions 1,507               29,037             30,544            21,308              11,359             32,667         63,211            
Equipment rental 13,669             37,877             51,546            1,362                56,778             58,140         109,686         
Food acquisition and distribution 19,414,946     40,599,927     60,014,873    7,080                5,492               12,572         60,027,445    
Grant expense -                        570,000           570,000         -                         -                        -                    570,000         
Insurance 15,241             12,033             27,274            19,525              4,629               24,154         51,428            
Meeting expenses 2,752               7,357               10,109            20,749              22,756             43,505         53,614            
Personnel expenses 1,442,436       1,913,387       3,355,823      538,238           1,127,440        1,665,678    5,021,501      
Printing and mailing 35,852             50,177             86,029            7,468                119,749           127,217       213,246         
Repairs and maintenance 200,930          138,732           339,662         13,903              20,877             34,780         374,442         
Supplies 79,526             326,389           405,915         20,009              122,665           142,674       548,589         
Telephone 12,880             17,782             30,662            4,849                1,836               6,685            37,347            
Travel 15,762             32,629             48,391            16,537              23,861             40,398         88,789            
Warehouse expenses 390,087          205,290           595,377         13,066              14,728             27,794         623,171         

22,245,292     44,388,163     66,633,455    830,971           3,627,819        4,458,790    71,092,245    

Less: Direct benefits to donors
at special events included in
revenue -                        -                        -                       -                         (190,266)          (190,266)      (190,266)        

Total expenses included in the 
expense section of the 
statement of activities 22,245,292$   44,388,163$   66,633,455$  830,971$         3,437,553$     4,268,524$  70,901,979$  

Program Services Supporting Services



See accompanying notes

JACOBS & CUSHMAN SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
Page 9

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets 21,818,689$    11,993,743$    

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense 1,111,238 905,487
Gain on disposal of equipment (12,502)             -                         
Net realized and unrealized investment gain (2,230,042)       (186,636)           
In-kind investment contributions (557,558)           (280,676)           
Change in contributed food inventory (2,288,317)       1,744,457         
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 851,210            (1,369,399)       
Contributions receivable 114,522            57,512              
Inventories (1,174,292)       (1,535,010)       
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (16,620)             (116,149)           
Accounts payable 88,089              540,856            
Accrued expenses 28,966              173,781            
Customer advances 35,863              69,808              

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17,769,246      11,997,774      

CASH FLOWS USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for purchases of fixed assets (1,935,942)       (1,673,104)       
Cash paid for purchases of investments (31,542,677)     (14,701,674)     
Proceeds on sale of investments 14,743,283      6,418,831         
Proceeds on sale of equipment 12,500              -                         

(18,722,836)     (9,955,947)       

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH (953,590)           2,041,827         

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,579,695 537,868

CASH, END OF YEAR 1,626,105$      2,579,695$      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Interest paid -$                       -$                       
Taxes paid -$                       -$                       
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NOTE 1 THE ORGANIZATION 
 
Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank (the “Organization”), incorporated under the laws of the State 
of California, operates as a nonprofit public-benefit organization that provides food assistance and 
resources to people in need, advocates for the hungry, connects the population it serves to a range of 
health and human service providers, and educates the public about hunger in San Diego County. The 
Organization operates as a central repository and distribution point for USDA commodities and donated 
food. Through its own direct distributions and through a network of over 500 nonprofit hunger-relief 
organizations, Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank distributes approximately 43 million pounds of 
food annually to people in need throughout San Diego County. In November 2011, the Organization 
transferred the building to The Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank Building, LLC which is 100% 
owned by the Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food Bank. 
 
NOTE 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of accounting – The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared using the 
accrual method of accounting in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Consolidations – The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Jacobs & 
Cushman San Diego Food Bank and its 100% owned subsidiary, The Jacobs & Cushman San Diego Food 
Bank Building, LLC. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. 
 
Estimates – The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 
Financial statement presentation – The Organization follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s 
(FASB) Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations for presentation of its financial statements 
which requires that net assets, support, revenue and gains, expenses and losses be classified as without 
donor restrictions or with donor restriction. 
 
Net assets without restrictions – Net assets without restrictions consist of assets which are fully 
available, at the discretion of management and the Board of Directors, for the Organization to utilize in 
any of its programs or supporting services. 
 
Net assets with restrictions – Net assets with restrictions are those which are restricted by donors for 
specific operating purposes and are not currently available for use in the Organization’s operations until 
commitments regarding their use have been fulfilled. 
 
Cash – The Organization considers financial instruments with a fixed maturity date of less than three 
months to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains several bank accounts with Wells Fargo, 
which at times may exceed the federally insured deposit limits. The Organization has not experienced 
any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on cash. 
 
Contributions receivable – Contributions receivable consist of donor promises to give. It is the 
Organization’s policy to charge off uncollectible contributions receivable when management determines 
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the receivable will not be collected. All contributions receivable are short-term and therefore, no 
present value discounting was recorded. All contributions receivable are considered collectible as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Inventory – Inventory consists of food products received through government programs sponsored by 
the USDA (Emergency Food Assistance Program and Commodity Supplemental Food Program), 
purchased and donated food products. The Organization records contributed food received from the 
USDA based on actual food product prices provided by the corresponding USDA program. During the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the USDA Emergency Food Assistance Program food product prices 
averaged $1.06 and $0.98 per pound, respectively, and USDA Commodity Supplemental Food Program 
food product prices averaged $0.87 and $0.75 per pound, respectively. All other contributed food items 
are valued using an average cost based on the industry standard of $1.74 and $1.66 per pound for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Property and equipment – Property and equipment are carried at cost, or if donated, at fair value. The 
Organization capitalizes nonroutine improvements over $5,000. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method of depreciation over the assets estimated useful lives of five to thirty-nine years. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to the expense as incurred; major renewals and betterments are 
capitalized. When items of property and equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and 
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in income.  
 
Investments – Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are valued at 
their fair values in the statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the 
change in net assets.  
 
Fair value measurement – The Organization follows accounting standards which define fair value, 
establish a framework for measuring fair value and expand disclosures about fair value measurements 
for all financial assets and liabilities. 
 
Revenue recognition – Revenue is recognized when earned, which may be when cash is received, 
unconditional promises made, ownership of other assets transferred, or services rendered. Gifts of cash 
and other assets are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
the use of the donated amounts. Revenues from reimbursable expenses are recognized when all 
requirements are met and the Organization is entitled to the revenue. Shared maintenance fees 
represent amounts charged to agencies for food from the marketplace for a nominal per pound fee. 
 
In-kind contributions - In-kind contributions are reflected as contributions at their fair value at date of 
donation and are reported as unrestricted support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how 
donated assets must be used. The Organization benefited from donated facility space which were 
valued at $20,000 and $40,000 during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts have 
been reported as both in-kind contribution revenue and in-kind occupancy expense on the statements 
of activities. In addition the Organization received donated goods of $10,000 and $0 during the years 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The Organization recognizes the fair value of contributed services 
received if such services a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or b) require specialized skills that are 
provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not 
contributed. The Organization receives services from a large number of volunteers who give significant 
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amounts of their time to the Organization’s programs and fundraising campaigns but which do not meet 
the criteria for financial statement recognition. 
 
Concentrations – In the current period, a significant amount of food receipts and grants were provided 
by government contracts. It is always considered reasonably possible that benefactors, grantors or 
contributors might be lost in the near term. 
 
Functional expenses – The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been 
summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on management 
estimates. Directly identifiable expenses are charged to program and supporting services. General 
operating costs across nearly all natural categories are allocated among the program and supporting 
services on a reasonable basis. The Organization allocates expenses using four different formulas based 
on the type of expense and update this allocation on a quarterly basis based on the pounds of food 
distributed by category. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 program expenses were 94.67% 
and 93.98%, management and general were 0.95% and 1.17%, and fundraising were 4.38% and 4.85%, 
respectively.   
 
Income taxes – The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and did not conduct unrelated business activities. Therefore no provision has 
been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Organization follows accounting standards which clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income 
taxes recognized in the consolidated financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and 
measurement attribute for the consolidated financial statements and recognition and measurement of a 
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. It also provides guidance on derecognition 
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. As of June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the Organization has not accrued interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions. The 
Organization files tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and the State of California. 
 
Recent accounting pronouncements 
 
In June 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made, which amends the accounting guidance related to (1) evaluating whether transactions should be 
accounted for as contributions or exchange transactions and (2) determining whether a contribution is 
conditional. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 for resource 
recipients, and after December 15, 2019 for resource providers, with early adoption permissible.  
 
As a resource recipient, the Organization adopted a portion of this guidance effective July 1, 2019. As a 
resource provider, the Organization adopted the remaining guidance effective July 1, 2020. In both 
cases, there was no impact to its financial statements. 
 
As of July 1, 2020, the Organization adopted ASU 2016-01 “Recognition and Measurement of Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities.” This ASU amends certain aspects of current guidance on the 
recognition, measurement and disclosure of financial instruments. Among other changes, this ASU 
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requires most equity investments to be measured at fair value. Additionally, this ASU eliminates the 
requirement to disclose the method and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value for 
instruments not recognized at fair value in the Organization’s financial statements. The adoption of this 
standard had no material impact on the Organization’s financial statements and related disclosures. 
 
In February 2021, FASB issued ASU 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842). In July 2018, FASB issued two updates to 
ASU 2016-02, ASU 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842 Leases, and ASU 2018-11, Leases 
(Topic 812): Targeted Improvements. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2021. ASU 2016-02 requires recognition of operating leases with lease terms of more 
than twelve months on the statement of financial position as both assets and liabilities for the 
obligations created by the leases. Topic 842 also requires disclosures that provide qualitative and 
quantitative information for the lease assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements. The 
Organization is still assessing the impact this standard will have on its financial statements. 
 
NOTE 3  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable consists of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Government contracts receivable 1,073,305$    1,967,538$    
Marketplace food purchases 109,824          66,801            

1,183,129$    2,034,339$    

Management assesses the collectability of all accounts receivable at the close of each period and 
records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on specific identification. Management has 
determined all receivables were collectible at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Government contracts receivable relates to reimbursements under government programs that have not 
been received from the respective government agency. It represents the amount due through the years 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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NOTE 4 INVENTORY 
 
Inventory consists of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Marketplace

Donated 3,499,876$    1,111,746$    
Purchased 1,639,467      1,052,321      

5,139,343      2,164,067      
CSFP government contract 1,626,164      709,495          
EFAP government contract 1,557,075      1,986,411      

8,322,582$    4,859,973$    

NOTE 5  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment are summarized as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Building improvements 8,116,677$    7,684,350$    
Building 5,578,840      5,578,840      
Land 4,378,000      4,378,000      
Warehouse equipment 2,633,029      1,827,853      
Transportation equipment 1,967,367      1,120,854      
Furniture and office equipment 637,831          565,978          
Leasehold Improvements 51,558            7,611               

23,363,302    21,163,486    
Accumulated depreciation (7,453,208)     (6,347,370)     

15,910,094    14,816,116    
Construction in progress 88,564 357,836

15,998,658$  15,173,952$  

Depreciation expense was $1,111,238 and $905,487 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
Construction in progress at June 30, 2021 related to the storefront project. The total cost was 
approximately $230,000 and was completed in October 2021. 
 
Construction in progress at June 30, 2020 related to a repack line machine. The total cost was 
approximately $477,000 and was completed in August 2020. 
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NOTE 6 INVESTMENTS 
 
The Organization invests funds in a professionally managed portfolio that may include various types of 
fixed income investments. Some of these investments are exposed to various risks, such as fluctuations 
in market value, interest rate, or credit risk. Therefore, the Organization’s investments may be subject to 
significant fluctuations in fair value. As a result, the investment balances reported in the accompanying 
financial statements may not be reflective of the portfolio’s value during subsequent periods. 
 
Investments recorded at cost included certificates of deposit. Investments carried at cost are not 
required to be classified in one of the levels prescribed by the fair value hierarchy. 
 
Cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities are as follows: 
 

2021
Cost Fair Value

Corporate stocks 20,439,469$  23,288,039$  
Mutual funds 7,512,789      7,515,122      
Corporate bonds 1,043,528      1,032,537      
Foreign bonds 103,645          102,480          

29,099,431$  31,938,178$  

2020
Cost Fair Value

Corporate stocks 5,620,783$    4,412,782$    
Mutual funds 4,297,233$    4,301,978
Corporate bonds 1,928,321$    1,932,570      
Foreign bonds 103,645          103,855          

11,949,982$  10,751,185$  

Investment income is included in other income on the consolidated statements of activities and consists 
of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Interest and dividends 324,490$        107,723$        
Realized (loss)/gains (49,673)$        94,139$          
Unrealized gains 2,279,715$    92,497$           
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The Board intends to allocate excess cash in reserve and investment accounts in the following manner: 

11,938,178$  
10,000,000    
10,000,000    

Food purchases
Building acquisition
Reserves & Covid - disaster recovery 
Total allocation of excess cash 31,938,178$  

NOTE 7  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The Organization follows the method of fair value to value its financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is 
based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In order to increase consistency and 
comparability in fair value measurements, a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and 
unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels has been established, which are 
described below. 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for 
identical assets or liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to level 1 inputs. 

Level 2: Observable inputs other than level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted prices in inactive markets; or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are 
observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated with observable market data. 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy 
gives the lowest priority to level 3 inputs. 

In determining fair value, the Organization utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as 
considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value. 

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value at June 30, 2021 are classified below in one of three 
categories described above. The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Investments
Corporate stocks 23,288,039$  -$  -$  23,288,039$  
Mutual funds 7,515,122 - - 7,515,122      
Corporate bonds 1,032,537      - - 1,032,537      
Foreign bonds 102,480          - - 102,480          

31,938,178$  -$  -$  31,938,178$  
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Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value at June 30, 2020 are classified below in one of three 
categories described above. The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Investments
Corporate stocks 4,412,782$    -$  -$  4,412,782$    
Mutual funds 4,301,978 - - 4,301,978      
Corporate bonds 1,932,570      - - 1,932,570      
Foreign bonds 103,855          - - 103,855          

10,751,185$  -$  -$  10,751,185$  

The tables above exclude investments in certificates of deposits which are accounted for on the cost 
basis of $1,451,014 and $3,051,013 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are not subject to 
ASC 820. 

The investments in corporate stocks and mutual funds are valued at market prices in active markets and 
are classified as level 1. 

NOTE 8 ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

2021 2020
Accrued payroll 435,101$        449,255$        
Accrued vacation 275,145          232,025          

710,246$        681,280$        

NOTE 9  LINE OF CREDIT 

In April 2021 the Organization entered into a revolving credit line against their brokerage account. The 
loanable value is based on each class of eligible securities. The Organization has not drawn upon the line 
of credit as of June 30, 2021. The line of credit does not have a maturity date and bears a variable 
interest rate equal to the WSJ prime rate minus 2.00% (1.25% at June 30, 2021). The line of credit is 
secured by the Organization’s investment account and balances are repayable on demand. 

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit with Wells Fargo. The Organization has not drawn upon 
the line of credit as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line has a maturity date of July 15, 2022 and bears 
interest at the Wells Fargo prime rate plus 0.25% as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (3.50% at June 30, 2021 
and June 30, 2020) with a 4% floor. The line of credit is secured by the Organization’s inventory and 
accounts receivable. 
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NOTE 10 NET ASSETS 

Net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose or by 
the occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors during the years ended June 
30 are as follows: 

2021 2020
Capital expenditures -$  250,080$        
Purpose restriction accomplished:

Backpack 828,755          582,473          
College hunger relief & grab-n-go pantries 214,597          9,672               
Farm to family 283,900          212,814          
Diaper bank 178,853          20,263            
Hunger Is 162,666          167,501          
Nourishing neighbors 87,444            - 
Operation gobble 61,678            48,800            
Pantries 40,000            - 
NBCUniversal 38,950            - 
Supervisor grants 26,675            674,321          
Gift card grants 25,016            190,000          
Van 20,000            - 
Covid - disaster recovery - 805,000 
FEED - 119,997 

1,968,534      2,830,841      
1,968,534$    3,080,921$    

Net assets consist of the following at June 30: 
2021 2020

Without donor restrictions 57,012,551$  34,716,770$  

With donor restrictions:
Backpack program 1,513,430      1,974,472      
Gift card grant 149,984          38,950            
Solar 101,145          101,145          
Supervisor grants 100,000          26,675            
College hunger relief & grab-n-go pantries 97,810            272,407          
Nourishing neighbors 60,556            - 
USO 25,000            - 
Diaper bank 10,684            122,052          

2,058,609      2,535,701      
Total net assets 59,071,160$  37,252,471$  
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NOTE 11 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 
 
The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of the statement of financial position date, 
reduced by amounts not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions 
within one year of the balance sheet date. 
 
Financial assets at year-end:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,626,105$    2,579,695$    
Accounts receivable 1,183,129      2,034,339      
Contributions receivable 57,000            171,522          
Certificates of deposit 1,451,014      3,051,013      
Investments 31,938,178    10,751,185    

36,255,426$  18,587,754$  

Less:
Donor imposed restrictions making financial assets unavailable for
general expenditure 2,058,609      2,535,701      

Financial assets available to meet general expenditure within one year 34,196,817$  16,052,053$  

The Organization is partially supported by restricted contributions. Due to donor restrictions requiring 
resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the Organization must maintain 
sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, financial assets may not be 
available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it 
has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and 
other obligations come due. In addition, the Organization sets aside cash in excess of daily requirements 
in its reserve and investment accounts. In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Organization 
also could draw upon its line of credit (see note 9). The Organization also owns the building it operates 
in San Diego, CA debt free that it could borrow against if necessary.   
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NOTE 12  BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
 
Business enterprise revenue consists of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Non-cash food receipt contributions

Donated 59,348,490$  35,876,941$  
Government - EFAP 15,663,500 14,526,697
Government - CSFP 5,333,923 4,125,407

80,345,913    54,529,045    
Shared maintenance fees 428,843 638,819
Recycling and energy rebate 24,036 2,584

80,798,792$  55,170,448$  

NOTE 13  SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
Special event revenues and expenses are directly related to several events including galas, blues festival 
and golf tournaments and consist of the following for the years ended June 30: 
 

2021 2020
Revenue

Sponsorship 429,225$        612,056$        
Donations 196,644          60,382            
Ticket sales 112,872          254,215          
Merchandise and auctions proceeds 12,800            67,316            
Food and beverage -                        56,185            

751,541          1,050,154      
Expenses:

Direct benefits to donors 148,314          190,266          
Other expenses 208,162          382,617          

356,476          572,883          
Total net income 395,065$        477,271$        
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Special events expenses are included in the consolidated statements of functional expenses as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Contract services 172,066$        203,786$        
Direct mail and marketing 87,337            136,873          
Supplies 63,876            90,525            
Other fundraising accounts 20,354            47,725            
Equipment rental 6,765               55,682            
Printing and mailing 6,078               38,292            

356,476$        572,883$        

NOTE 14 RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The Organization sponsors a 403(b) plan which covers all eligible employees. The Organization makes a 
matching contribution equal to the lesser of 200% of the employee contribution or 3% of the 
employee’s compensation. The Organization’s contribution to the 403(b) for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020 was $160,452 and $142,327, respectively. 
 
NOTE 15  COMMITMENTS 
 
The Organization leases equipment, trucks and facilities under operating leases that expire between 
February 2022 and June 2025. Minimum future payments under non-cancelable operating lease having 
remaining terms in excess of one year for the years ended June 30 are as follows: 
 

2022 432,776$        
2023 83,633            
2024 23,628            
2025 23,628            

563,665$        

Equipment and facility lease expense under these leases for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
were approximately $743,000 and $380,000, respectively. 
 
NOTE 16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The President of the Organization is also the Chairman of the Board of California Association of Food 
Banks (“Association”). The Organization purchases food from the Association for various programs. For 
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization paid $1,573,831 and $965,893, respectively, 
to the Association for food purchases. In addition, the Organization paid $23,837 and $20,037 in annual 
membership dues for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the Organization owes the Association $161,206 and $60,535, respectively, and is included in accounts 
payable on the statement of financial position. 
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The Association is also the pass-through agency for the SNAP program. For the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, the Organization was reimbursed $51,222 and $50,062, respectively, through the SNAP 
program. The Association is also the pass-through agency for the Emergency Food Distribution Box 
Program. The Organization was reimbursed $0 and $137,024 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively.  At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization has amounts due from the Association 
of $13,191 and $94,535, respectively, and is included in accounts receivable on the statement of 
financial position. 

The Organization used a company for offsite cold storage that a member of the advisory board has an 
ownership interest in. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 Organization was billed $96,173 and 
$28,523, respectively, for storage space. There was a balance outstanding of $45 and $3,983 at June 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively, and is included in accounts payable on the statement of financial position. 

NOTE 17  SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 12, 2022, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events which affected the 
amounts or disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, except as noted below. 

Subsequent to year end the Organization signed a new lease for the north county facility. The lease 
commences on January 1, 2022 and ends on October 31, 2025. Initial base rent is $49,243 per month. 



 
(Choose one)   MINI-GRANT     (Choose one)  REGULAR GRANT  

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page

Project Name: Virtual Education 
Workshops for Low-Income Schools and 
Children in San Marcos  
Date Submitted:

Total # of people served: 800 
Total # of San Marcos 
 residents served: 800

Amount  
Requested: $6,675

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum 
320 N Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
www.sdcdm.org

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email 
Krishna Kabra 
Executive Director 
484-264-7015 
KrishnaK@sdcdm.org

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 

San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum (SDCDM) is seeking grant funds to provide Mobile Children’s Museum 
educational workshops to five schools in need of supplemental STEM programming support identified by San 
Marcos Unified School District (SMUSD.) The Museum’s education workshops provide high quality, hands-
on educational opportunities, provide curriculum-aligned educational resources, and instruction to reach young 
learners who face transportation barriers and need it most. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community:  

Our Mobile Children's Museum has been identified as a viable solution for providing young San Diego County 
children of all learning abilities access to hands-on early childhood learning opportunities that encourage the 
development of lifelong learners, especially those with barriers to transportation. Our Mobile Children’s Museum 
program builds over 50 essential foundational fluencies such as spatial reasoning, symbolic language, creative 
problem solving, and measurement.This grant will strengthen our organization and the San Marcos community by 
helping meet a critical identified community need to develop cognitive skills, social abilities, and physical well-
being in children in their early years when it matters the most. 

This program will bring about positive change by supplementing the education of children from economically 
disadvantaged schools to improve performance and educational attainment in STEM subjects, discover their own 
interests in STEM and develop a passion for STEM-learning, and increase their interest and knowledge of STEM 
careers.

Please attach the following items.  
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 
c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 
d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 
e. Optional: letters of support

Expected date project will begin/end: 11/1/22Date 
by which funds will be expended: 11/1/23 
Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

                        9/29/22 
Krishna Kabra, Executive Director          date                             
 
Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA  92069 
Email (PDF Format): jcadima@san-marcos.net 



SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 

Mobile Museum workshops at five San Marcos classrooms @ $1,285 per school   $6,425 

Mileage/Gas for five school visits ($50/each)     $250 

Total budget for this PROJECT:               $6,675 

Grant Request Amount:          $6,675 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

Is this a challenge grant? No    Could it be? possibly 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

There are no other committed funds for this project at this time.  

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____
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4. We do not have current information about the entity.

5. The entity was administratively dissolved/cancelled on  through the Franchise Tax Board 
Administrative 'issoOution Srocess�

,PSortDQt ,QIorPDtioQ
• This inIormation does not necessariO\ reIOect the entit\
s current OegaO or administrative status Zith an\ other

agenc\ oI the state oI &aOiIornia or other governmentaO agenc\ or Eod\�
• ,I the entit\
s SoZers� rights� and SriviOeges Zere susSended or IorIeited at an\ time in the Sast� or iI the

entit\ did Eusiness in &aOiIornia at a time Zhen it Zas not TuaOiIied or not registered to do Eusiness in
&aOiIornia� this inIormation does not reIOect the status or voidaEiOit\ oI contracts made E\ the entit\ in
&aOiIornia during the Seriod the entit\ Zas susSended or IorIeited �5	T& 6ections �������� ��������
�����a� ���������

• The entit\ certiIicate oI revivor ma\ have a time Oimitation or ma\ Oimit the Iunctions the revived entit\ can
SerIorm� or Eoth �5	T& 6ection �����E��

Connect :itK 8s 

Web:      ftb.ca.gov 
3hone:  800.852.5711 Irom � a�m� to � S�m� ZeeNda\s� exceSt state hoOida\s 

  916.845.6500 from outside the United States   
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech impairments 

FTB 4263A WEB (5(9 �������� 

2/2/2022

8548516464

2220688

SAN DIEGO CHILDREN'S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

d.



San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum 
Board of Directors Contact List

Name Affilia)on, Email Address Phone Number Date Board 

Term Began

Amanda Flisher 

CHAIR

Cer)fied Leadership Coach 

coaching@AmandaFlisher.com

858-397-3107 7/2021

Jessica 

Winchenbach 

VICE CHAIR

Senior Director of Engineering and 

Opera)ons, PlaySta)on 

jwakefield16@icloud.com

619-857-5377 2/2020

Steve Hermes, 

TREASURER

CPA, re)red 

Hermes1521@cox.net

619-405-3248 2/2020

Valerie A_sha 

SECRETARY

VP, Client & Community Rela)ons, PNC 

ValerieA_sha@gmail.com

619-804-3063 7/2021

Alessandra Lezama CEO, TOOTRiS 

ALezama@RGHPO.com

858-357-6930 7/2021

Kush Kapila Founder & CEO, STERLINGS Mobile 

kush@sterlingsmobile.com

858-228-6748 6/2022

Debra Roy Staff Engineer, General Atomics 

debraroymba@gmail.com

6199852791 7/2021

Hem Suri Founder & Managing Partner, Spark Growth 

Ventures  

Hem@SparkGV.com

858-405-1756 7/2021

Robin Keith CEO, EcoLeaders 

robinmkeith@gmail.com

619-804-3063 7/2021

Chad Vargo Principal, Culture Insurance Group 

Chad@CultureInsurance.com

619-346-9553 12/2017

Stefan Jensen CEO & Partner, Mo)onStrand 

stefan@mo)onstrand.com

760-443-3535 1/2022

Stan Rodriguez Professor, Kumeyaay Community College 

Stan.rodriguez.1@gmail.com

707-228-0252 2/2022

Alissa Hauser Project Manager, Construc)ve Capital 

alissa@drbronner.com 

760-743-2211 9/2022

July 2021



REQUEST TO SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION  

The San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum is an essential educational resource for 
under-resourced families in San Diego's North County. We play a critical role in 
providing impactful early childhood enrichment experiences. Our museum is 
committed to creating inclusive and welcoming environments for all children and 
families to enjoy with respect and dignity. Through this grant, we aim to help close the 
achievement gap, remove transportation barriers, and improve outcomes for San 
Marcos low-income students. 

Funding Needs 
We are seeking $6,675 to help the San Diego Children's Discovery Museum reach an 
entire grade level at San Marcos Unified School District elementary schools through 
our traveling Mobile Children’s Museum. This growing program bridges the gap in 
educational attainment by bringing free curricula-led STEM and Art workshops and 
exhibits to children from preschool through to 5th grade. The program currently 
deploys two vans and one SUV to reach all four corners of the county, bringing much-
needed hands-on, immersive learning experiences to the community. The program 
develops children's cognitive skills, social abilities, and physical well-being from the 
earliest childhood years when it matters the most.


The Museum’s high-quality and highly-trained educators will deliver workshops for up 
to 45 minutes that are conducted in rotation/station style or free flow. Our staff can see 
up to 125 children during each visit. Our curriculum honors the variety of different 
learners that we serve. Sample topics include Recycled Masterpieces, Life Science, 
Physical Science, Earth Science, and Engineering. Our program builds over 50 
fluencies, including spatial awareness, problem-solving, and collaboration.


Description of Need 
STEM is often neglected at the elementary school level as most teachers are unlikely to 
have a background in STEM subjects. While teachers greatly value STEM, curriculum 
and structural barriers and lack of support and resources, often prevent them from fully 
implementing STEM activities into their classrooms. Teachers tend to avoid STEM 
learning activities as they require a shift from teacher-led instruction to student-led 
instruction. With diverse learners and limited teacher-student ratios and resources, 
managing a STEM learning experience can be difficult for them. 


Community resources, such as STEM programs offered by educators outside the 
classroom, have been cited as a much better solution to increase STEM learning in 
classrooms by the National Association for Education of Young Children’s professional 
standards published in their best practices. Through our Mobile Museum program, 
SDCDM Museum Educators demonstrate expert techniques for implementing hands-
on learning, which can ultimately help inspire teachers to feel more comfortable 
implementing the same types of STEM activities in their classrooms.  




Exposure to playful STEM learning has been proven to develop the foundational 
framework children needs for future educational achievement, economic productivity, 
responsible citizenship, lifelong physical and mental health, and building stronger 
communities. Working through STEM concepts assists in the development of social-
emotional skills by offering hands-on connection and providing practical application of 
what children are learning. When provided a STEM learning experiment, children are 
able to actively brainstorm, research, problem-solve, collaborate, and develop 
decision-making skills. 


With recent learning loss due to the pandemic, the need for high-quality early 
educational enrichment within the San Diego community is greater than ever. Low-
income families and Title I schools often lack access to and have little to no 
discretionary funds and resources for supplemental educational and recreational 
experiences that will enhance early human development.


Evaluation 
Museum educators track the number of children and adults served during each school 
visit or Mobile workshop in a program evaluation spreadsheet. They send post-
program surveys to participating teachers that capture quantitative and qualitative 
feedback, including the number of participants served, whether the program aligns 
with classroom learning standards, and if the educators will incorporate concepts or 
materials from our visit into their future lesson plans. Open-ended questions that 
capture the program’s impact and areas for improvement are also asked. 


Our team analyzes the evaluations each quarter and makes program improvements 
based on the findings. The results of our evaluations are distributed to staff, donors, 
and community partners as requested. In addition, we collect data to produce an 
Impact Report that is distributed to our key stakeholders after the end of every fiscal 
year. 


Conclusion 
During an already challenging time where families have even fewer resources than ever 
and are at greater risk of marginalization, SDCDM seeks to bridge the gap in 
educational attainment and access by providing students in San Marcos with high-
quality, hands-on early education enrichment experiences. 


This grant will strengthen our organization and the San Marcos community by helping 
meet a critical identified community need to develop cognitive skills, social abilities, 
and physical well-being in children in their early years when it matters the most. 

We appreciate your commitment to the education of San Marcos children and your 
careful consideration of our request. Together, we can provide hands-on STEM-based 
childhood learning experiences that encourage curious young minds and spark a 
lifelong love of learning.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum 
Escondido, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the San Diego Children’s 
Discovery Museum which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021
and the related statement of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then
ended and related notes to the financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum as of June 
30, 2021, and the respective changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the San Diego Children’s Discovery Museum and Subsidiary’s
2020 consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on 
those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated September 16, 2020. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited 
consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Irvine, California
November 10, 2021
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2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 222,570$    259,303$    
Grants receivable -                5,593         
Pledges receivable, net (note 3) 214,395      295,392      
Inventory 8,553         8,500         
Prepaid expenses 24,139        17,340        
Land, buildings and equipment, net (note 4) 1,880,445   1,921,238   

Total Assets 2,350,102$ 2,507,366$ 

Accounts payable 35,294$      20,568$      
Accrued vacation payable 11,145        29,856        
Accrued expenses - other 39,714        38,300        
Deferred revenue 58,552        68,413        
Line of credit payable (note 5) -                99,373        
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans (note 6 and 14) 202,929      201,023      
Advances payable - LRDF (note 7) 200,000      200,000      

Total Liabilities 547,634      657,533      

Net assets
  Without donor restrictions 1,477,304   1,398,779   
  With donor restrictions (note 9) 325,164      451,054      

Total Net Assets 1,802,468   1,849,833   

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,350,102$ 2,507,366$ 

Liabilities and Net Assets

Assets

SAN DIEGO CHILDREN'S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2021

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2020)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions 2021 2020

Support and Revenue:
Contributions 270,293$     201,685$   471,978$     406,024$     
Grants 371,454       -               371,454       271,625       
Forgiveness of PPP loan 201,023       -               201,023       -                 
Gifts-in-kind 52,200         -               52,200        228,501       
Earned revenue 43,609         -               43,609        415,988       
Memberships 18,425         -               18,425        121,524       
Forgiveness of debt -                  -               -                 30,000         
Fundraising events 34,447         -               34,447        75,425         
Less: Direct costs of fundraising events (2,879)         -               (2,879)         (12,974)       
Net fundraising revenue 31,568         -               31,568        62,451         

Sales -                  -               -                 30,147         
Less: Cost of good sold -                  -               -                 (15,852)       
Net sales revenue -                  -               -                 14,295         

Support provided by expiring restrictions 327,575       (327,575)   -                 -                 

Total support and revenues 1,316,147    (125,890)   1,190,257    1,550,408    

Expenses:
Program services 881,851       -               881,851       1,345,798    
Supporting services:
General and administrative 96,306         -               96,306        82,344         
Fundraising 259,465       -               259,465       259,999       

Total supporting services expenses 355,771       -               355,771       342,343       

Total expenses 1,237,622    -               1,237,622    1,688,141    

Change in Net Assets 78,525         (125,890)   (47,365)       (137,733)      

Net Assets at beginning of year 1,398,779    451,054    1,849,833    1,987,566    

Net Assets at end of year 1,477,304$   325,164$   1,802,468$  1,849,833$  

Totals

SAN DIEGO CHILDREN'S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2021

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Supporting Services
General and

Program Administrative Fundraising Subtotal 2021 2020

Salaries and wages 439,794$    38,815$        173,962$  212,777$  652,571$    841,524$      
Payroll taxes 39,856        2,559            15,276     17,835     57,691        74,329          
Employee benefits 26,713        2,846            10,429     13,275     39,988        47,606          
Workers' compensation insurance 6,078          405              1,621       2,026       8,104          16,484          
Service fees 4,607          84                1,195       1,279       5,886          23,765          

Subtotal 517,048      44,709          202,483    247,192    764,240      1,003,708     

Advertising and marketing:
In-Kind 37,168        -                   -              -              37,168        199,623        
Other 17,282        -                   642          642          17,924        44,405          

Bad debt 313             -                   4,500       4,500       4,813          6,000            
Bank and credit card charges 2,754          752              369          1,121       3,875          16,485          
Computer service 15,629        2,933            3,235       6,168       21,797        23,727          
Contract services 97,981        25,674          42,376     68,050     166,031      81,091          
Depreciation 75,481        1,596            399          1,995       77,476        77,867          
Events -                 -                   118          118          118             18,231          
Exhibits and maintenance 23,462        717              -              717          24,179        46,550          
Fundraising 321             -                   2,558       2,558       2,879          16,974          
Interest -                 4,698            -              4,698       4,698          7,816            
Interest in-kind -                 2,914            -              2,914       2,914          3,935            
Insurance 7,922          2,999            2,216       5,215       13,137        15,080          
Meetings and meals 147             469              190          659          806             2,319            
Occupancy 34,127        4,050            606          4,656       38,783        62,650          
Office 18,323        4,687            2,652       7,339       25,662        28,050          
Outreach and special programs 29,739        -                   -              -              29,739        24,469          
Staff development 475             25                -              25            500             5,723            
Transportation 142             -                   -              -              142             10,717          
Other 3,537          83                -              83            3,620          5,695            
Total expenses 881,851      96,306          262,344    358,650    1,240,501   1,701,115     

Less expenses included in
  Revenue section of the
  Statement of Activities -                 -                   (2,879)      (2,879)      (2,879)        (12,974)         

Total expenses included in
 Expense section of the 
 Statement of Activities 881,851$    96,306$        259,465$  355,771$  1,237,622$ 1,688,141$   

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

SAN DIEGO CHILDREN'S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30, 2021

Totals

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets (47,365)$  (137,733)$   
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets
to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 77,476     77,867       
Forgiveness of PPP loan (201,023)  -                
Forgiveness of advances payable -              (30,000)      
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,924       -                
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable -              13,966       
(Increase) decrease in unconditional promises to give 80,997     79,884       
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable 5,593       (680)           
(Increase) decrease in inventory (53)          4,832         
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (6,799)      (1,902)        
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,726     (42,969)      
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (9,861)      (6,966)        
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation payable (18,711)    2,652         
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses - other 1,414       (21,682)      
     Net cash used by operating activities (100,682)  (62,731)      

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (39,607)    (43,197)      

     Net cash flows used by investing activities (39,607)    (43,197)      

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from PPP loans 202,929    201,023      
Proceeds from line of credit -              99,373       
Payments to line of credit (99,373)    (65,484)      

     Net cash flows provided by financing activities 103,556    234,912      

     Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (36,733)    128,984      

     Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 259,303    130,319      

     Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 222,570$  259,303$    

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest 4,698$     7,816$       

Noncash Activities
Forgiveness of PPP loan 201,023$  -$              

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,924$     -$              

SAN DIEGO CHILDREN'S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2021

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(1) Nature of Organization

San Diego Children's Discovery Museum (SDCDM) was incorporated as a non-profit 
corporation in January 2000. The mission of SDCDM is to inspire children to learn 
about our world through exploration, imagination, and experimentation. The Museum 
fills a community need by offering a wholesome, educational, and appealing 
gathering place and mobile experience for families, schools, libraries, and other 
groups that serve children. Programs and exhibits cultivate lifelong learning and 
develop diverse understandings of the world.

The Children’s Discovery Museum Holdings, LLC (Holdings) was incorporated as a 
single-member LLC in July 2011 to hold SDCDM land, building, and improvements 
located at 320 North Broadway in Escondido, California.  Effective July 16, 2020, 
Holdings was dissolved and the LLC Termination - Certificate of Cancellation was filed 
with the California Secretary of State. All final returns required pursuant to the 
California Revenue and Taxation Code have been filed with the California Franchise 
Tax Board.  Holdings was consolidated with the Museum financial statements through 
June 30, 2020.  All of the Holdings net assets were transferred to the Museum 
effective July 16, 2020.

As a result of the COVID-19 virus, SDCDM’s facility and mobile fleet closed to the
public from March 13, 2020 through April 18, 2021. During this period, Museum staff 
provided online experiences for its consumers until its reopening.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Museum have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period and the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. On an ongoing basis, the 
Museum’s management evaluates the estimates and assumptions based upon 
historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. The 
Museum’s management believes that the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable in the circumstances; however, the actual results could differ from 
those estimates.
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Museum considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  The carrying amount 
of the Museum’s cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the 
short maturity of these investments.  The Museum maintains cash balances at
two financial institutions. Deposit accounts at each bank are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per account. 

(d) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are primarily amounts due from local school districts and 
other entities for Museum related programs. During the fiscal year, $4,813 of
accounts were deemed uncollectible. Management believes that all 
outstanding accounts receivable at June 30, 2021 are collectible.

(e) Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable are unconditional promises to give that are recognized as 
contributions when the promise is received. Pledges receivable that are 
expected to be collected in less than one year are reported at net realizable 
value. Pledges receivable that are expected to be collected in more than one 
year are recorded at fair value at the date of promise. That fair value is
computed using a present value technique applied to anticipated cash flows. 
Amortization of the resulting discount is recognized as additional contribution
revenue. The allowance for uncollectible pledges receivable is determined 
based on management’s evaluation of the collectability of individual promises.  
Management has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts is 
deemed necessary as of June 30, 2021.

(f) Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are primarily unsecured non-interest bearing amounts due 
from grantors on cost reimbursement or performance grants.  Management 
believes that all outstanding amounts are collectible in full; therefore, there is 
no allowance for uncollectible grants receivable recorded.
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value based on a fair value 
hierarchy that distinguishes between assumptions based on market data 
(observable inputs) and the Museum’s assumptions (unobservable inputs). 
Determining where an asset or liability falls within that hierarchy depends on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole. An adjustment to the pricing method used within either Level 1 or 
Level 2 inputs could generate a fair value measurement that effectively falls 
in a lower level in the hierarchy. The hierarchy consists of three broad levels 
as follows:

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted 
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, 
which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting
date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other 
valuation methodologies. 

Level 3 – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and 
include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the 
instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require
significant management judgment or estimation. 

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such instances, an instrument’s 
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement. Market price is affected by a 
number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics 
specific to the instrument, as well as the effects of market, interest and credit 
risk. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices or for which fair 
value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will have a 
higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment
used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible that changes in values 
of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could 
materially affect amounts reported in the Museum’s financial statements.

(h) Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of items for resale in the gift shop and is valued 
at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) and net realizable value.

9 



SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the Museum are recorded at cost, or in the 
case of donated items, at estimated fair value at the date of the gift. 
Maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred and betterments are 
capitalized. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives of five to thirty-nine years. It is the 
policy of the Museum to capitalize assets with cost of $1,000 and greater with 
a useful life of more than one year.

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when a significant 
change in the asset’s use or another indicator of possible impairment is 
present.  No impairment losses were recognized in the financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2021.

(j) Net Assets

The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets in two 
classes that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use 
that are placed by its donors, as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to
support operations. The only limits on the use of these net assets are 
the broad limits resulting for the nature of the Museum, the 
environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its
corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and 
any limits resulting from contractual agreements with creditors and
others that are entered into in the course of its operations. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are restricted by 
a donor for use for a particular purpose or in a particular future period.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, and the 
restrictions will expire when the resources are used in accordance with 
the donor’s instructions or when the stipulated time has passed. Other 
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature; the Museum must 
continue to use the resources in accordance with the donor’s 
instructions.

10 



SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Museum’s unspent contributions are included in this class if the 
donor limited their use. When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either 
by using the resources in the manner specified by the donor or by the 
passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the 
financial statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets 
with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.

(k) Classification of Transactions

All revenues and net gains are reported as increases in net assets without 
donor restrictions in the Statement of Activities unless the donor specified 
the use of the related resources for a particular purpose or in a future period. 
All expenses and net losses are reported as decreases in net assets without 
donor restrictions. 

(l) Accounting for Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized when 
received. All contributions are reported as increases in net assets without 
donor restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted 
by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in 
future periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets
with donor restrictions. 

Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an implied 
restriction to be used in the year the payment is due, and therefore are 
reported as restricted until the payment is due, unless the contribution is 
clearly intended to support activities of the current fiscal year. Conditional 
promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they become 
unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are 
substantially met. 

(m) Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Museum receives contributions in a form other than cash or investments. 
Such gifts are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses 
when the donated items are placed into service or distributed. If the Museum
receives a contribution of land, buildings, or equipment, the contributed asset 
is recognized as an asset at its estimated fair value at the date of gift, 
provided that the value of the asset and its estimated useful life meets the 
Museum’s capitalization policy. 

11 



SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Museum benefits from advertising services provided by KPBS, a local 
public television system.  Accounting standards allow recognition of 
contributed services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial 
assets or (b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by 
contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals 
possessing those skills. 

Aggregate donated services, interest and items with an estimated fair value
of $52,200 met those criteria and are included in in-kind contributions in the 
Statement of Activities.

(n) Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for 
performance grants.

(o) Expense Recognition and Allocation

The cost of providing the Museum’s programs and other activities is 
summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and
Statement of Functional Expenses. Expenses that can be identified with a 
specific program or support service are charged directly to that program or 
support service. Costs common to multiple functions have been allocated
among the various functions benefited using a reasonable allocation method 
that is consistently applied, as follows: 

� Salaries and wages, benefits, and payroll taxes are allocated based on 
activity reports prepared by key personnel.

� Occupancy, depreciation, and interest are allocated on a square foot
basis dependent on the programs and supporting activities occupying 
the space.

� Telephone and internet services, insurance, and supplies and 
miscellaneous expenses that cannot be directly identified are allocated 
on the basis of employee headcount for each program and supporting 
activity.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not 
directly identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the 
overall support and direction of the Museum.

12 



SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result 
in contributions received in future years. The Museum generally does not
conduct its fundraising activities in conjunction with its other activities. In
the few cases in which it does, such as when the annual report or donor 
acknowledgements contain requests for contributions, joint costs have 
been allocated between fundraising and general and administrative
expenses in accordance with standards for accounting for costs of
activities that include fundraising. Additionally, advertising costs are 
expensed as incurred.

(p) Tax Status

SDCDM is exempt from federal income and California franchise taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) and Section 23701(d) 
of the State Revenue and Taxation Code, respectively.    

The Museum remains subject to taxes on any net income which is derived 
from a trade or business regularly carried on and unrelated to its exempt
purpose.  In the opinion of management, there is no unrelated business 
income for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Museum follows accounting standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America related to the recognition of uncertain tax positions as part 
of the Statement of Activities, when applicable.  Management has determined 
that the Museum has no uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2021 and,
therefore, no amounts have been accrued.

Contributions to the Museum are tax deductible to donors under Section 170 
of the IRC. The Museum is not classified as a private foundation.

(q) Prior Year Data

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the 
accompanying financial statements. This information has been included for 
comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Museum’s prior year 
consolidated financial statements, from which this selected financial data was 
derived.
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(3) Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable at June 30, 2021 are expected to be collected as follows:

Changes in pledges receivable for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows:

No allowance for doubtful accounts was considered necessary at June 30, 2021
because management believes that all amounts are collectible. The present value
discount was imputed for long-term pledges at 6% rate based on the deemed credit 
worthiness of the donor.

(4) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at June 30, 2021 are summarized as follows:

Depreciation expense was $77,476 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Less than one year 51,700$      
One to five years 177,915      
More than five years 35,000        

264,615      
Less reduction for present value (50,220)       
  Total 214,395$    

Pledges receivable at beginning of year 295,392$    
New pledges 11,700        
Payments received (78,792)       
Adjustments (10,000)       
Change in present value (3,905)        
Pledges receivable at year end 214,395$    

Building and Improvements 1,259,493$   
Land 749,240        
Exhibits 235,194        
Furniture and Equipment 149,058        
Vehicles 68,162          

2,461,147     
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (580,702)       
Net property and equipment 1,880,445$   
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(5) Line of Credit

The Museum has a Variable Rate with Preferred Rate Reduction Nondisclosable
Revolving Line of Credit for $250,000 due on November 15, 2022.  The base rate 
(U.S. Prime Rate with an annual interest rate floor of 5.0%) is added to the margin 
of 2.0% reduced by 1.0% preferred rate reduction.  The interest rate at June 30, 
2021 was 5.0%.  As of June 30, 2021, there was no outstanding balance. Interest 
expense incurred during the year ended June 30, 2021 was $4,698.  

(6) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan

In April 2020, the Museum received loan proceeds in the amount of $201,023 from 
the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) pursuant to the Paycheck Protection 
Program (PPP) and an additional advanced grant of $10,000. The PPP, established as 
part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), provides 
for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times of the average 
monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest 
are forgivable after up to 24 weeks as long as the borrower uses the loan proceeds 
for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its 
payroll levels.

The Museum has used the proceeds for purposes consistent with the PPP. On June 
25, 2021 the loan was forgiven.

On February 25, 2021, the Museum received additional loan proceeds in the amount 
of $202,929 under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The Museum has used
the proceeds for purposes consistent with the PPP and has applied for forgiveness.  
See note 14 for additional information.

(7) Advances Payable – LRDF

The Linden Root Dickinson Foundation (LRDF) provided the Museum non-interest
bearing cash advances totaling $750,000 in prior years, which were used to fund
leasehold improvements and operating expenses. Since the initial Advance 
Agreement, dated July 19, 2011, LRDF has provided loan forgiveness in the amount
of $550,000, leaving a principal balance due of $200,000 at June 30, 2021. While
the unsecured advances of $200,000 were payable on July 19, 2021, LRDF has 
extended the due date until July 19, 2023. Contributed interest of $2,914 for the 
year ended June 30, 2021 was calculated using the AFR mid-term quarterly rates 
ranging from 1.01%-2.47%.
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(8) Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

As part of the Museum’s liquidity management plan, the Museum maintains a 
revolving line of credit of $250,000 to cover short-term cash needs.

(9) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

(10) Concentrations of Risk

The Museum relies on contributions and grants and is subject to the economic risks
that affect donors and grantors abilities to support the Museum.  As of June 30, 
2021, four entities accounted for approximately 82% of total pledges and grants
receivable.  For the year ended June 30, 2021, four entities accounted for 
approximately 78% of total revenue and support.

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 222,570$   
Pledges receivable, net 214,395     

Total financial assets 436,965     

Less financial assets held to meet donor-imposed
  restrictions:

Purpose restricted net assets (110,769)    
  

Less financial assets not available within one year:
Pledges receivable (162,695)    

Amount available for general expenditures
      within one year 163,501$   

Purpose restrictions, available for spending 110,769$    

Time restrictions:
Pledges receivable, net, which are unavailable for spending
   until due, some of which are also purpose restricted 214,395      

 Total net assets with donor restrictions 325,164$    
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SAN DIEGO CHILDREN’S DISCOVERY MUSEUM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

(11) Uncertainties

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have
arisen which negatively impacted the Museum including the temporary closure of the 
Museum to the public from March 13, 2020, through April 18, 2021, and related 
furloughs of certain Museum staff.  Although the Museum has reopened to the public, 
with evolving State and County requirements as well as vaccine and other medical 
developments, management is not presently able to determine the potential outcome 
or impairment, if any to the Museum as of the date of the issuance of the financial
statements.

(12) Contingent Asset

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Congress passed the CARES Act which 
resulted in an Employee Retention Credit, a refundable tax credit against certain 
employment taxes equal to 50% of qualified wages.  The Museum filed an amended
Form 941, the Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return for the quarters ended 
September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020 to claim the refundable credit. The 
Museum believes it has met the criteria to qualify for the credit and upon approval by 
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) of the amended tax returns, expects to receive
refunds of approximately $70,000. However, no revenue has been recognized during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

(13) Related Party

The Museum utilizes Culture Insurance Group as its insurance and risk management 
agent. A member of the Museum Board is a key employee/owner at Culture 
Insurance Group. 

(14) Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through October 8, 2021,
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. On August 30, 
2021, the Museum received confirmation that the $202,929 PPP loan received on 
February 25, 2021 and discussed in Note 6 has been forgiven.  Additionally, the 
Museum received $176,076 on August 17, 2021 and $189,003 on October 6, 2021 
from the Shuttered Venue Operators Grant program established by the Economic Aid 
to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits and Venues Act in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic.
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 

(Choose one) 0 MINI-GRANT (Choose one)~ REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Uncompensated Care 

Date Submitted: 10/4/22 

Total # of people served: 111 

Total# of San Marcos 
residents served: 111 

Amount 
Requested : $5,000 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 

North County Health Project, Inc., d.b.a TrueCare Torrie Goodson, Grant Writer, (760) 566-1445 
150 Valpreda Rd. San Marcos, CA 92069 torrie.goodson@truecare.org 
www.truecare.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
To ensure the most vulnerable populations in San Marcos receive high-quality, comprehensive health care 
services, TrueCare offers a sliding fee of $25-$45 for uninsured patients. However, this cost is still at times 
unfeasible for those facing severe financial hardship. Our Uncompensated Care program therefore covers these 
bundled visits so low-income, uninsured individuals and families can receive the care they seek. Uncompensated 
Care is one of the many ways TrueCare is rebuilding trust in healthcare and empowering patients to prioritize 
their well-being no matter their circumstances. This funding will offset the cost of these bundled visits that include 
the office visit, screenings, labs, immunizations, and health care services. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 

Uncompensated Care is one of many ways TrueCare bridges the gap between the disparities that place 
marginalized populations at a greater disadvantage to progress in life. This program helps families and individuals 
in San Marcos without insurance, who are often undergoing extreme poverty or homelessness, overcome 
significant access barriers preventing their ability to thrive. Access to health care reduces absences at work that 
affect productivity, incidences of chronic disease, and ER visits, but more importantly, health care access 
empowers people to lead healthier, happier lives, which in turn leads to a prosperous community. 

Please attach the following items. 
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 

4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 

5. Regular Grants Only: 
a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: 1 /1 /23 

Date by which funds will be expended: 6/1 /23 

Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

~~ia,Mal In ~brsi n a Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
Email (PDF Format): citvclerk(a) san-marcos.net 



 
 
Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
 
Uncompensated Care ($45 x 111)_________________________________             $5,000______ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

 
Total budget for this PROJECT:               $5,000______ 

 

Grant Request Amount:          $5,000______ 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

 
 
Is this a challenge grant?     Could it be?  
No                                                                                            No 
 
Please list any other funding sources for this project.  
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 
 
There are no other funding sources for this project. Any expense that is not covered by the grant 

will be paid by TrueCare in-kind to ensure the survival of the program.  

 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

 



REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
  Contracts and grants 19,630,830$           
  Patient services, net of bad debt 67,788,312             
  Contracted Pharmacy 3,095,608               
  Miscellaneous 81,536                    
  Donations 325,000                  
  Interest income 1,309                      
  Gain on Investments 510,699                  
  TOTAL REVENUES,  GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT 91,433,294             

EXPENSES 
  Personnel 55,165,760             
  Fringe benefits 13,095,580             
  Contractual services
     Patient 1,504,684               
     Non-Patient 5,357,266               
     Contracted Pharmacy 762,733                  
  Accounting services 398,332                  
  Consumable supplies 2,357,536               
  Contracted pharmacy supplies 547,207                  
  Administrative supplies 624,679                  
  Insurance 455,932                  
  Facilities
      Rent 709,512                  
      Mortgage Interest 350,333                  
      Utilities 785,107                  
      Other Facilities Expense 1,102,577               
  Communications 675,662                  
  Travel 400,383                  
  Minor Equipment, maintenance and rental 1,284,915               
  Staff Recruitment & Retention 1,349,495               
  Public Communications 503,245                  
  Other Expenses
     Outreach 47,201                    
     Other Operating Expenses 366,115                  
  Depreciation 2,952,424               

   TOTAL EXPENSES 90,796,678             

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations 636,616                  

2,427,234               

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets 3,063,850$             

Visits 302,630                  
FTE's 670                         

Capital Grant Revenue

NORTH COUNTY HEALTH PROJECT, INC.

Operational Budget

For the Period ending 12/31/2022



~~~ IRS lkpllrlm<.!nl or th<: Tr<'a sm y 
tiltfb'l/J Internal lhYCnuc ~~r\'icc 

002592 

OGDEN UT 84201-0038 

NORTH COUNTY HEALTH PROJECT INC 
150 VALPREDA ROAD 
SAN MARCOS CA 92069-2973 

Employer Identification Number: 
Person to Contact: 

Toll Free Telephone Number: 

Dear Taxpayer: 

In reply refer to: 0437870217 
Sep. 15, 2011 LTR 4168C 0 
95-2847102 000000 00 

95-2847102 
Exempt Organization 

1-877-829 - 5500 

00025203 
BDDC: TE 

This is in response to your Sep. 06, 2011, request for information 
regarding your tax - exempt status. 

Our records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under 
section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination 
letter issued in July, 1973. 

Dur records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within 
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described in 
section(s) 509(a)Cl) and 170(b)(l)CA)Cvi). 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of 
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or 
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes 
if they meet the applicable provisions of se c tions 2055, 2106, and 
2522 of the Code . 

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding 
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code 
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three 
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of 
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to 
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax - exempt 
status was revoked under se c tion 6033(j) of the Code on our website 
beginning in early 2011. 



NORTH COUNTY HEALTH PROJECT INC 
150 VALPREDA ROAD 
SAN MARCOS CA 92069-2973 

0437870217 
Sep. 15, 2011 LTR 4168C 0 
95-2847102 000000 00 

00025204 

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number 
shown in the heading of this letter. 

Sincerely yours, 

Sharon Davies 
Accounts Management I 



STATE Of CAUfORHIA 

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
SACRAMENTO, CAUFORNIA 95861 June 28, 1973 

l 

North County Health Project, Incorporated 
170 West Mission 
San Marcos, CA 92069 

Purpose: 
Form of Organization: 

Accounting Period Ending! 
Organization Number: 

Gentlemen: 

In reply refer to 
EO:JCS:ch 

• 
Charitable 
Corporation 
August 31 
676146 

-­• -

Based on the information sul:mi.tted and provided your present operations 
continue unchanged or conform to those proposed in your application, you 
are exempt from State franchise or income tax under Section 23701d, Revenue 
and Taxation Code. Any change in operation, character or purpose of' the 
organization must be reported imnediately to this office so that we may 
determine the effect on your exempt status. Any change of name or address 
also must be reported. 

You are required to file Form 199 (Exempt Organization .Annual Informa­
tion Return) or Form 199B (Exempt Organization Annual Information 
Statement) on or before the 15th day of the 5th month (4-1/2 months) 
after the close of your accounting period. See annual instruct:i.ons 
with forms for requirements. 

You are not required to file state :franchise or income tax returns 
unless you have income subject to .the unrelated business income tax 
under Section ·23731 of the Code. In this event, you are required to 
file Form 109 (Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return) by the 
15th day of the 3rd month (2-1/2 nxmths) after the close of your annual 
accounting period. 

Contributions ma.de to you are deductible by donore as provided by Sections 
17214 through 17216.2 and 24357 through 24359 of the Code, unless your 
purpose is testing for Public Safety. 

If the organization is incorporating or is a foreign co_rporation 
qualifying to -do.business in Cal.if'ornia, this approval will expire 
unless incorporation or quali:fication is c~leted within 30 days. 

Exemption f'rom federal income or other taxes and other state taxes requires 
separate applications. 

Jr.;1:?~ 
Counsel 

• cc: Secretary of State (Corp) 
,-. : - ..- ~ • - ·-. , ' .,.. -- • c- - -



Slot No. Director Name
Board 

Position

Spouse 

Name
Occupation/Business Affiliation Residence Address City/State Zip Phones Email address

1st Start 

Date

Term/

Year

User of 

Services? 

Y/N

I
1 Walt Steffen Director Maureen Retired LCSW, County of SD 833 North Daisy Street Escondido, CA. 92027 760-743-3715 (Res) 760-807-3997 (Cell) wcsteffen43@yahoo.com May-71 1/3 Y
2 Open Slot 

3 Dulce Benetti Director Bryan Student - Cal State San Marcos 2332 Hosp Way, Unit 
#108 Carlsbad, CA 92078 760-214-4959 (Cell) dulcebenetti@gmail.com Aug-19 2/3 Y

4 Harriet H. Carter Treasurer Attorney-at-Law, Self Employed 13190 Calle Caballeros San Diego, CA 92129 858-603-4631 (cell);  858-216-2162 
(Home/Work), 858-216-2164 (Fax) harriet@harriethcarteresq.com Aug-13 2/3 Y

5 Andrés Ramos Martin Director Michao Student counselor, Ramona High 
School 1200 Camino Del Sol, San Marcos, CA 92069-

1856
760-787-4023 (Bus) 760-471-0419 (Res) 
619-203-4657 (Cell) 760-787-4060 (B/fax)

andresrmartin@gmail.com;  
amartin@ramonausd.net Feb-06 1/3 Y

6 Victor Botello Secretary Judy Retired, NCHS Founder and former 
Fund Development Director 743 Concerto Gln Escondido, CA 92025 (Cell) 619-813-3000 vmbotellosr@gmail.com Mar-16 3/3 Y

7 Craig Jung Director Retired Hospital Plan Services 
Director/Safety Officer 16746 Wikiup Rd Ramona, CA 92065 760-789-8285 (Res)   619-990-4469 (Cell) jungtonic@yahoo.com Oct-14 2/3 Y

8 Adriana Andrés-Paulson Director Douglas 
Davita Kidney Care
203 East Second Avenue
Escondido, CA  92025

227 Eveningside Glen Escondido, CA 92026
760-743-4401 (Res)
760-877-1663(Cell) 
760-743-4401 (Work)

Adriana.andrespaulson@davita
.com

Jun-00 1/3 Y

9 Maria Elena Orozco De La 
Cruz Director 1820 Melrose Dr #105 San Marcos, CA 92078 760-736-0180 (Res) ; 760-420-2212 (Cell) mmercado23@msn.com Apr-17 3/3 Y

II

10 Russell Riehl Director Sunshine 
Director Occupational Health & Safety 
and Bariatrics
Palomar Health, Escondido, CA

2415 Shadyridge Ave. Escondido, CA 92029 (Cell) 760-815-9631  (Work) 858-613-6284 russriehl@outlook.com Dec-18 2/3 N

11 Open Slot

12 Carmen Amigon Vice Chair Community Housing Works, VP of 
Classes & Coaching 561 Beverly Place San Marcos, CA 92078 760-717-4493 (Cell) resimpactsolutions@gmail.com 16-May 3/3 Y

13 Donald Stump Chair Sarah
Executive Director, No. County 
Lifeline, 200 Michigan Ave. Vista, CA  
92084

950 Balboa Avenue Coronado, CA 92118 619-426-4527 (Res); 619-743-9397 (cell)
760-842-6250 (Bus)

dstump@nclifeline.org; 
stump.donald@sbcglobal.net

Feb-13 2/3 N

14 Karen Pearson Director Ray

Director of Investor Relations, San 
Diego North Economic Development 
Council  950 Boardwalk Suite 303 
San Marcos, CA 92078

6500 Easy St. Carlsbad, CA 92011 (Cell) 818-416-9033 kpearson52@aol.com Oct-16 1/3 N

15 Mike (Brian) Michaelson Director Marg Retired, IT Professor 13451 Barbados Way Del Mar, CA 92014 (Res)858-755-5250; (Cell) 858-232-2277 mmichaelson@san.rr.com Apr-16 3/3 N
16 Open Slot

17 Open Slot

Slots #s: 1-9 Must be user of services/Special Population 
Slots #s: 10-17 Community Representatives Updated Term Year:  3/25/20

Revised 10/5/2020

Board of Directors List - 2021
The Bylaws as amended (1/19) authorize not less than 9 nor more than 19 seated board members; not fewer than 8 active  at any time (not on leave or sabbatical).  Board members must:  (1) represent user demographics (race, gender, occupation, economic 
scale); (2) be a community representative (banking, health, teaching, attorney, business, etc. (3) be a farmworker/migrant/seasonal patient or representative; (4) be a member at large (exempt from other requirements).  Board members are elected to serve 3-yeaer 
terms; no term limits.  
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COMMUNITY REPRESENTATIVES
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San Marcos Community Foundation 
 Supplemental Proposal 

 
For 51 years, North County Health Project, Inc., d.b.a TrueCare, has been overcoming access barriers for 

San Diego and Riverside’s most underserved populations by delivering comprehensive, patient-focused 

health care no matter their insurance status or ability to pay. Averaging 60,000 patients a year, our 13 

locations service San Marcos, Carlsbad, Oceanside, Escondido, Vista, Encinitas, and Perris, while our 

three Mobile Wellness Units provide medical and dental care to our hard-to-reach communities. Our 

services include adult and pediatric primary care, obstetrics, gynecology, perinatology, family planning, 

dental, integrated behavioral health, cardiology, and a full range of enabling services such as outreach, 

health education, free health screenings and programs, transportation to and from appointments, 

translation services, case management, and enrollment assistance for government benefits. As part of 

our commitment to eliminate access barriers, our Uncompensated Care program offsets the cost of 

bundled visits to ensure those without insurance are still able to receive the high-quality care they need.  

Community Need: According to San Diego County’s Community Health Needs Assessment, “access to 

health care” and “health insurance access” are among the top needs for community improvement. The 

North Inland region has the lowest rate of high school diplomas in the county and in the U.S, one in 

eight residents are living below the poverty line, one in three residents are living without adequate 

financial resources, and 9.1% of residents in San Marcos do not have health insurance. People living 

below the poverty threshold often must put the needs of their families over their own health, do not 

have the education to know how to exercise healthy routines nor teach their children, and are met with 

obstacles such as transportation or language barriers that prevent them from reaching a health center. 

San Marcos also has the highest percentage of linguistically isolated households in the North Inland 

Region, which creates significant barriers to accessing medical services, understanding health 

information, and acquiring health insurance.   

This places greater urgency on accessible prevention and intervention services. At TrueCare, we deliver 

health and enabling services to all where each of our initiatives has the goal to promote the wellbeing of 

those most in need. Moreover, 30 languages are shared across our organization and 62% of our 

workforce is able to translate. As a Level 3 Patient-Centered Medical Home and Migrant Center, 

preventative care that is linguistically and culturally sensitive is built into the foundation of our 

programming, in which we treat the whole person and strive to address root causes to intervene 

unhealthy habits that will in turn mitigate chronic conditions. Unfortunately, the misconceptions about 

how insurance affects the quality of care and where patients can go to receive treatment have 

decreased public confidence in the healthcare system, especially among marginalized demographics. 

However, TrueCare adheres to the principle that no patient who comes to our health centers is ever 

rejected for their ability to pay, and all will be given high-quality services no matter their income or 

insurance status. Our San Marcos patients experience homelessness, have limited transportation, were 

unable to work from home during the pandemic, and have little to no disposable income. Across 

demographics, all are in dire need of the health and outreach services that TrueCare offers. For 

uninsured patients, we offer a sliding fee of $25-45 that is based off their income and family size. Our 

patients in San Marcos have faced homelessness, experience language barriers, foster care, racism, or 

food or housing insecurity, often do not have a college education, and are all traditionally underserved. 

With 71.11% of TrueCare’s San Marcos patients living below the 200% federal poverty level and 23.73% 

uninsured, TrueCare’s sliding fee is often the only way such populations receive treatment, medications, 



San Marcos Community Foundation 
 Supplemental Proposal 

 
screenings, and procedures. Unfortunately, with the extreme financial losses due to the pandemic and 

ongoing social determinants, this fee is at times unfeasible for a family struggling to afford basic needs. 

Project Overview and Activities: To solve this, TrueCare’s Uncompensated Care program covers these 

bundled visits so low-income individuals and families in San Marcos who are unable to afford our sliding 

fee can still receive the care they seek without the burden of cost. A bundled visit includes the office 

visit and any needed labs, X-rays, immunizations, and services. Activities through a bundled visit can 

include adult and pediatric primary care, dental, behavioral health, obstetrics, gynecology, perinatology, 

cardiology, family planning, and a range of enabling services such as case management and assistance 

program enrollment.  

Funding Expenses: TrueCare respectfully requests $5,000 to cover 111 patients at an average $45 sliding 

fee who will use this uncompensated care option at our San Marcos Health Center, which also has a 

newly opened Quick Care clinic. 

Program Goals: TrueCare’s Uncompensated Care program helps families and individuals without 

insurance and who are undergoing extreme poverty or homelessness. Uncompensated Care is one of 

the many ways TrueCare is rebuilding trust and empowering patients to prioritize their health no matter 

their circumstances. 

Within the one-year grant period, we will:  

1. Serve 111 uninsured patients in San Marcos with uncompensated medical, dental, and/or 

behavioral health services 

2. Link uninsured residents in San Marcos to enabling services for sustained positive clinical 

outcomes such as insurance enrollment assistance, food distribution, and affordable housing 

3. Promote healthy lifestyles through educational, behavioral, medical, and dental programs 

regardless of a patient’s insurance status 

Measuring Outcomes: Success is quantified by the number of uninsured patients who receive health 

care services through our Uncompensated Care relief funds granted by the San Marcos Community 

Foundation that they otherwise could not afford. The goal is to increase health care access for 111 of 

our uninsured patients within the grant period. This will be measured by our Quality Improvement and 

Business Intelligence teams who will collaborate to deliver quarterly reports through the year. The 

reports will encompass the uninsured patient population data that quantifies the quality of care being 

delivered, patient satisfaction, and overall health with improvement range specifications.  

Advancing health equity: For 51 years, TrueCare has focused an intensive lens on the health equity 

issues cited in patient surveys, comprehensive needs assessments, focus groups, and key informant 

interviews that have built our programming upon the voices of those they impact. We continually strive 

to implement solutions with a diverse workforce whose demographics reflect our patient population 

with 80% a racial or ethnic minority and all trained in linguistic and cultural sensitivity. We also have 

several teams to monitor our impact and ways to improve our services, including a Social Determinants 

of Health Task Force, Patient Advisory Committee, and Belonging with Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 

Committee. We are also participating in the California Primary Care Association’s Leadership Equity 

program to develop organization-wide initiatives that will increase our workforce diversity and identify 

areas of improvement to bring further inclusivity and equity to all sectors.  
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7797 N. First Street #15, Fresno, California 93720 
Phone: 559.549.5400   Email: info@chwllp.org 

  Healthcare Audit, Tax & Consulting Services  
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
North County Health Project, Inc. 
 d/b/a TrueCare 
San Marcos, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a 
TrueCare, (the “Center”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the 
related statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a 
TrueCare and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but not absolute assurance, and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare’s internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 12, 2022 
on our consideration of the Center’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Center’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

CHW, LLP 
Fresno, California 
April 12, 2022 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 
Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
2021  2020 

Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 27,546,866   $ 27,299,567 
Short-term investments 15,378,910  14,798,406 
Patient accounts receivable, net 3,298,596  2,368,947 
Grant receivable 1,164,434  1,085,583 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 4,807,032  3,701,621 
Other receivables 21,044  55,527 
Inventories 599,080  789,121 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,091,344  1,430,496 

Total current assets 53,907,306  51,529,268 

Assets limited as to use:    
  Deferred compensation 7,544,902  6,173,958 

    
Property and equipment, at cost:    

Land and land improvements 6,532,196  5,191,633 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 39,742,572  39,392,722 
Equipment 11,909,220  11,052,513 
Construction in progress 557,821  308,345 

 58,741,809  55,945,213 
Less accumulated depreciation (29,416,202) (26,587,915) 

 29,325,607  29,357,298 
Other assets:    

Prepaid expenses and other long-term assets 291,761  81,374 

Total assets $ 91,069,576  $ 87,141,898 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 
Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 2021  2020 
Liabilities    

Current liabilities    
Current maturities of long-term debt  $   1,005,215   $    965,238 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 2,989,072  2,424,118 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 6,516,656  6,248,068 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 2,398,057  2,926,021 
Deferred revenue 2,914,473  16,265 

Total current liabilities 15,823,473  12,579,710 
    
Deferred compensation 7,544,902  6,173,958 
Long-term debt    

     Principal amount 6,124,426  7,184,988 
     Unamortized debt issuance costs (68,250)  (87,540) 
     Long-term debt, less unamortized debt issuance costs 6,056,176  7,097,448 

    
Total liabilities 29,424,551  25,851,116 

Net Assets    
Net assets without donor restrictions 61,335,390  60,862,727 

       Net assets with donor restrictions 309,635  428,055 
Total liabilities and net assets $    91,069,576  $    87,141,898 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Statements of Operations 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
 2021  2020 
Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions    

     Revenues and other support:    
Patient service revenue, net  $ 50,142,269   $ 48,847,714 
Capitation revenue 10,366,551  9,528,376 
Grant revenue 17,705,680  16,311,063 
Contributions 1,830,600  1,884,290 
Other 1,654,170  1,180,080 
Net assets released from restriction 1,167,692  1,065,639 

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support 82,866,962   78,817,162 

Expenses and losses:    
Salaries and wages 49,423,872  45,986,295 
Employee benefits 10,017,812  10,003,502 
Purchased services and professional fees 8,843,371  7,169,033 
Supplies and other 9,378,195  8,761,808 
Rent 658,706  732,528 
Insurance 440,628  434,358 
Client assistance 323,365  67,978 
Depreciation 2,923,508  2,887,917 
Interest 334,724  377,578 

Total expenses 82,344,181  76,420,997 

Excess of revenues over expenses 522,781  2,396,165 

  Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment (50,118)  609,827 
Change in net assets without donor restrictions 472,663  3,005,992 

Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:    
    Contributions 1,049,272  1,165,684 
    Net assets released from donor restriction (1,167,692)  (1,065,639)
    Change in net assets with donor restrictions (118,420)  100,045 
    
Change in net assets 354,243  3,106,037 
    
Net Assets:    
Beginning of year 61,290,782  58,184,745 
End of year  $ 61,645,025  $ 61,290,782 

 
 
 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 2021  2020 

Change in net assets $   354,243 $   3,106,037 
         Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets 

 to net cash provided by operating activities: 
   

Depreciation and amortization 2,923,508  2,887,917 
                  Unrealized (gains) losses (459,030) (321,290) 
                  Gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment 50,118 (609,827) 
                  Amortization of refundable loan (52,453) (49,900) 

     Amortization of debt issuance costs 19,290  19,291 
     Bad debt -  200,000 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Patient accounts receivable, net 737,911  579,037 
Grants receivable (78,851)  58,985 
Estimated third-party payor settlements (3,300,935) 2,690,460 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 353,289  (76,557) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 564,954  478,939 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 268,588  1,209,972 
Deferred revenue 2,898,208 11,015 
     Net cash provided by operating activities 4,278,840 10,184,079 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities    
Purchase of investments (25,524,987) (98,561) 
Sale/maturity of investments 25,403,513 - 
Purchase of property and equipment (2,941,935) (1,493,398) 

                    Net cash used in investing activities (3,063,409) (1,591,959) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities    
Principal payments on long-term debt (968,132)  (1,058,199) 

                 Net cash used in financing activities (968,132)  (1,058,199) 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 247,299  7,533,921 
   

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Assets Limited as to Use:    
Beginning of year 27,299,567   19,765,646 
End of year  $ 27,546,866  $ 27,299,567 

      Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:    
    Interest paid  $       334,724  $       377,578 
    In-kind donations $         82,492  $       181,372 

 
 
 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization and Operations  
North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare (the “Center”), is a federally qualified health center that 
works to further its mission to “improve the health status of our diverse communities by providing quality 
health care that is comprehensive, affordable and culturally sensitive.” The Center primarily earns revenues 
by providing medical, dental and mental health services through clinics located in Carlsbad, Encinitas, 
Oceanside, Ramona, San Marcos, and Perris California.  
 
The Center derives its support through grants and contracts with the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services ("DHHS"), US Department of Agriculture (“USDA”), the State of California, the County 
of San Diego, and various other entities. Additionally, revenues are derived from patient fees and third-
party charges. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Center considers all liquid investments, other than those limited as to use, with original maturities of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, cash equivalents consisted 
primarily of checking, savings, and money market accounts. Of the cash balances as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, $500,000 and $500,000 respectively was covered by federal depository insurance and 
$27,046,866 and $26,799,567, respectively, was uninsured. 
 
Patient Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are recorded at amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Center expects to 
be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. In evaluating the collectability of patient accounts 
receivable, the Center regularly analyzes its history and identifies and reviews trends for each of its major 
payor sources of revenue to estimate appropriate and sufficient implicit and explicit price concessions 
reflected in patient accounts receivable. 
 
For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the Center 
analyzes contractually due amounts and provides additional implicit and explicit price concessions, if 
necessary, based upon historical collection history for deductibles and copayments on accounts for which  
the third-party  payer had not yet paid, or for remaining payer balances. 
 
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, which include both patients without insurance and 
patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the 
bill, the Center records a significant implicit price concession in the period of service on the basis of its 
past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill 
for which they are financially responsible. The difference between the standard rates (or the discounted 
rates if negotiated or provided by policy) and the amounts collected after all reasonable collection efforts 
have been exhausted is reflected as a reduction in patient accounts receivable. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories consist of pharmaceutical, medical and office supplies and are stated at cost. Due to rapid 
turnover of supplies, cost approximates market value. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Assets Limited as to Use 
Assets limited as to use include assets set aside for deferred retirement benefits. 
 
Property and Equipment 
Land, building and equipment are carried at cost or estimated fair value at date of acquisition. The Center 
capitalizes all acquisitions greater than $5,000 and such assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful life of each asset. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term or their respective estimated useful lives. Certain property and equipment have been purchased 
with grant funds received from various federal agencies. Such items, or a portion thereof, may be 
reclaimed by the federal government if not used to further the grant’s objectives. Construction-in-progress 
is recorded at cost and is capitalized upon completion. Construction-in-progress at December 31, 2021 
consists primarily of costs for the buildout of two new mobile units, design costs for the San Marcos 
clinic elevator and mezzanine buildout, and implementation of a new telephone system. As of December 
31, 2021, the remaining commitments related to ongoing contracts totaled $2,063,263. Depreciation is 
recorded when construction is substantially complete, and the assets are placed in service.  Depreciation 
expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $2,923,508 and $2,887,917, respectively.  
 
Income Taxes 
The Center has been recognized as exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the State of California Revenue and taxation Code by the IRS and 
Franchise Tax Board, respectively. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the 
accompanying financial statements. The Center’s returns are subject to examination by federal and state 
taxing authorities generally for three years after they are filed.  
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Net assets, 
revenues, and expenses are classified on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, net assets of the Center and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are currently available for use and are not subject 
to donor-imposed stipulations. 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will 
be met, either by actions of the Center and/or the passage of time. When a restriction expires, net 
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in 
the statement of operations as net assets released from donor restrictions. Donor-restricted 
contributions whose restrictions expire during the same fiscal year are recognized as revenue without 
donor restrictions. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Revenue Recognition 
Net patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Center 
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-
party payers (including health insurers and government programs), and others and includes variable 
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. 
Generally, the Center bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the services are 
performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 
 
The Center provides medical, dental, mental health, health education and enabling services to eligible 
patients at a discounted rate or for a nominal fee, based on eligibility determined by the patient's 
household size and income. 
 
The Center has agreements with various plans to provide medical services to subscribing MediCal 
participants. Under the agreements, the Center received monthly capitation payments based on the 
number of participants, regardless of the services performed by the Center. Capitation payments are 
recognized as capitation revenue during the period in which the Center is obligated to provide services to 
participants. The Center also receives interim payments from the Medi-Cal program. These payments are 
reconciled on an annual basis to ensure the Center ultimately receives the established Medi-Cal payment 
rate for all visits under these contracts. 
 
Revenue from government grants and contracts restricted for use in specific activities is recognized in the 
period when expenditures have been incurred in compliance with the grantor's restrictions.  Capital grants 
and contributions consist of grants and contributions or resources that are restricted by the grantors or 
donors for capital asset purposes-to acquire, construct or renovate capital assets associated with the 
restricted purpose. Capital grants and contributions are recorded as increases to net assets with donor 
restrictions when cash is received in advance of acquisition of capital assets. In absence of donor 
stipulations to the contrary, capital grants and contributions are recorded as revenue during the fiscal year 
in which the assets are acquired.  Cash received in excess of revenue recognized is recorded as deferred 
revenue. 
 
Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are received or unconditionally pledged. Donor 
stipulations that limit the use of the donation are recognized as contributions with donor restrictions. 
When the purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to 
net assets without donor restrictions and reported as net assets released from donor restrictions. 
Absent donor-imposed restrictions, the Center records donated services, materials, and facilities as 
support without donor restrictions. It is the policy of the Center to encourage contributions. Donated 
services and facilities are valued at prevailing market rates. Certain immaterial services and facilities 
contributed to the Center have not been valued or recorded. 
 

Donated Supplies 
The Center recognizes donated pharmaceuticals and medical supplies at fair value. Donated 
pharmaceuticals and medical supplies totaling $82,492 and $181,372 are recorded as contribution revenue 
and supplies and other expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 
The statements of operations include the excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in net assets without 
donor restrictions which are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry 
practice, include permanent transfers to and from affiliates for other than goods and services and 
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions and grants to be used for 
the purpose of acquiring such assets). 
 
Reclassification 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2020 financial statements to conform to the 2021 financial 
statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the changes in net assets. 
 
Subsequent Events 
The Center has evaluated all events and transactions that have occurred after December 31, 2021 and 
through April 12, 2022 the date of the financial statements and notes to financial statement were available 
to be issued. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 2: Investments 
 
Investments include the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020: 
 

   2021    2020 
Cash and cash equivalents $       33,352  $       38,572 
CD 4,899,287  4,551,034 
Corporate bonds, domestic -  321,664 
Mutual funds 1,852,134  1,624,448 
US equities 1,436,304  1,251,725 
International equities  552,687  507,653 
Commercial paper 5,574,355  5,598,876 
Fixed income funds 1,030,791  904,434 
  Total $ 15,378,910  $ 14,798,406 

 

Income from investments consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020: 
 

   2021    2020 
Unrealized gains (losses) $   459,030  $   321,290 
Interest income 1,443  994 
Dividends 120,230  97,686 
  Total $   580,703  $   419,970 

 
 
Note 3: Grant Revenue 
 
The Center is the recipient of Consolidated Health Center (CHC) grants from the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services. The general purpose of the grants is to provide expanded health care service 
delivery for residents of San Diego and Riverside Counties, California. Terms of the grants generally 
provide for funding of the Center’s operations based on an approved budget. During the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Center recognized $14,353,754 and $12,958,208 in CHC grant 
revenue, respectively. Grant revenue is recognized as qualifying expenditures are incurred over the grant 
period. Approximately 81% and 79% of grant revenues are from the CHC grants for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
In addition to the CHC grants, the Center receives financial support from other federal, state and private 
sources. Generally, such support requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in grant 
agreements or award letters and must be renewed on an annual basis. Cash received in exchange 
transactions in excess of revenue recognized is recorded as deferred revenue. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 4: Fair Value of Financial Instruments  
 
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, requires the fair value of financial assets 
and liabilities to be determined using a specific fair-value hierarchy. In accordance with ASC 820, the 
following table presents the Center’s fair value hierarchy for its financials assets measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2021 and 2020: 
 

   Fair Value Measurement Using 
 Fair Value    Level 1   Level 2   Level 3 

December 31, 2021:      
Fixed income funds $   1,030,791  $               - $ 1,030,791 $                - 
Mutual funds 1,852,134  - 1,852,134 - 
Domestic equities 1,436,304  1,436,304 - - 
International equities 552,687  552,687 - - 
Total $   4,871,916  $ 1,988,991 $ 2,882,925 $               - 
      

December 31, 2020:      
Fixed income funds $      904,434  $               - $    904,434 $                - 
Mutual funds 1,624,448  - 1,624,448 - 
Corporate bonds, domestic 321,664  - 321,664 - 
Domestic equities 1,251,725  1,251,725 - - 
International equities 507,653  507,653 - - 
Total $   4,609,924  $ 1,759,378 $ 2,850,546 $               - 

 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for other financial assets and liabilities that are not 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis including patient accounts receivable, grant receivables, other 
receivable, estimated third-party payor settlements, accounts payable and other accrued expenses, accrued 
payroll and related liabilities, deferred revenue, and long-term debt approximate fair value. 
 
 
Note 5: Patient Service Revenue, Net 
 
Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the Center. 
Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in 
relation to total expected (or actual) charges. The Center believes that this method provides a faithful 
depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs 
needed to satisfy the obligation. 
 
Because all of its performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the 
Center has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Topic 606-10-50-14a and, 
therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to 
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 5: Net Patient Service Revenue (continued) 
 
The Center determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services provided, 
reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured 
patients in accordance with the Center's sliding fee policy, and implicit price concessions provided to 
uninsured patients. The Center determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on 
contractual agreements, its discount policies, and historical experience. The Center determines its 
estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection experience with this class of 
patients. 
 
Effective with the adoption of ASU 2014-09 on January 1, 2021, for changes in credit issues not assessed 
at the date of service, such as a payor files for bankruptcy or a patient defaults on a payment plan, the 
Center recognizes these write-offs as bad debt expense, which is presented on the accompanying 
statements of operations and changes in net assets as a component of other expenses. 
 
The Center is approved as a Federally Qualified Health Center ("FQHC") for both Medicare and Medi-
Cal reimbursement purposes. The Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for 
payments to the Center at amounts different from its established rates. These payment arrangements 
include: 
 
Medicare: Covered services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid based on a prospective 
payment system (PPS). Medicare payment under the FQHC PPS are 80% of the lesser of the health 
center’s actual charge or the applicable PPS rate (patient coinsurance will be 20% of the lesser of the 
health center’s actual charge or the applicable PPS rate). Accordingly, to the extent a health center’s 
charge is below the applicable PPS rate, Medicare FQHC reimbursement can be limited. 
 
Medi-Cal: Covered services rendered to Medi-Cal beneficiaries are paid under a Prospective Payment 
System, using rates established by the Center’s “Base Years” - fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and 
1999 cost reports filed under the previous cost-based reimbursement system. These rates are adjusted 
annually according to changes in the Medicare Economic Index and any approved changes in the Center’s 
scope of service. The Center is required to file a payment reconciliation report with the state. In the 
opinion of management, any reconciliation settlement of the payment reconciliation will not materially 
affect the financial statements of the Center. 
 
Other: Payments for services rendered to those payors other than Medicare or Medi-Cal are based on 
established rates or on agreements with certain commercial insurance companies, health maintenance 
organizations and preferred provider organizations which provide for various discounts from established 
rates. 
 
As of December 31, the following table reflects the net patient service revenue including capitation by 
major payor groups: 

 2021  2020 
 Medicare $   2,644,527   $   3,046,694  
 Medi-Cal 53,968,453  50,477,055 
 Other third-party payors 3,396,583  2,840,662 
 Private pay  499,257  2,011,679 
Net patient service revenue $ 60,508,820  $ 58,376,090 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 5: Net Patient Service Revenue (continued) 
 
Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medi-Cal, are complex 
and subject to varying interpretation. As a result of investigations by governmental agencies, various 
health care organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged 
noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations 
entering into significant settlement agreements. Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be 
subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action, including 
fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the related programs. There can be no assurance that 
regulatory authorities will not challenge the Center’s compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is 
not possible to determine the impact (if any) such claims or penalties would have upon the Center. In 
addition, the contracts the Center has with commercial payors also provide for retroactive audit and 
review of claims. 
 
Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews or 
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated 
transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the 
payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the payor and the Center’s historical settlement 
activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of 
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive 
adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments 
become known (that is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are no longer 
subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. 
 
The Center has recorded an estimated third-party payor receivable of $4,807,032 and $3,701,621 as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and estimated third-party payor liabilities of $2,398,057 and 
$2,926,021 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These balances comprise estimated 
settlements due to PPS Reconciliation Requests as well as Rate Setting Cost Reports and Change in 
Scope of Service Requests. Management periodically evaluates estimated third-party payor settlements 
based on the current information available and believes the final settlements will not materially affect the 
financial statements of the Center. 
 
 
Note 6: Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 
Financial instruments potentially subjecting the Center to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of 
bank deposits in excess of FDIC limits. Management believes, however, that the risk of loss is minimal 
due to the high financial quality of the banks. The Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, 
most of who are area residents and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The mix of 
receivables from patients and third-party payers at December 31, 2021 and 2020, was: 
 
 2021  2020 

Medicare 7%  6% 
Medi-Cal 69%  74% 
Other third-party payers  17%  7% 
Private Pay  7%  13% 

 100%  100% 
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Note 7: Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following programs at December 31, 2021 and 
2020: 

 2021  2020 
Tides Foundation $       5,767     $                -    
Sierra Foundation 75,341  135,888 
United Health Care 80,000  - 
Direct Relief – Health Network Development -  81,492 
Health Net Workforce Program 34,947  97,991 
Other 113,580  112,684 
 $   309,635   $    428,055 

 
As net assets with donor restrictions are expended, the net assets released from restrictions are recognized 
as revenue without donor restrictions. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, net assets released from donor 
restrictions consist of the following: 
 

 2021  2020 
Tides Foundation $         4,233     $       33,250    
Blue Shield of California Wellness Program 140,338  - 
Kaiser Permanente 100,066  - 
Ramona Clinic 8,388  - 
MAT (Access Points) -  111,622 
Health Net 71,289  128,651 
Price Philanthropies Foundation 20,442  29,558 
Sierra Foundation 3,220  118,779 
Direct Relief 87,992  168,508 
San Diego Foundation 42,500  100,000 
Community Health Group 98,442  - 
PHI-Together Toward Health 97,218  - 
Sierra Foundation-SUD 250,512  - 
Other 243,052  375,271 
 $   1,167,692  $    1,065,639 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

17 

North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 8: Long-Term Debt 

 2021  2020 

The Center entered into a loan agreement with City National Bank on 
December 1, 2010 in the amount of $4,500,000.  These funds were used 
to refinance existing debt in January 2011 and to purchase property that 
was formerly being leased.  This agreement consists of two loans in the 
amounts of $3,500,000 and $1,000,000.  Series A loan is in the amount of 
$3,500,000 and bears an interest rate of 4.32% with a maturity date of 
January 1, 2026.  The Series B loan in the amount of $1,000,000 and 
bears an interest rate of 4.1% and matured January 1, 2021.  Collateral for 
these loans include real property.  

$  1,189,865  $ 1,450,306 
The Center entered into a loan agreement with City National Bank on 
July 1, 2015 in the amount of $3,000,000 as Series C of the above loan.  
These funds were used for continued improvements to the Mission Mesa 
clinic site. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.94% per annum with 
a maturity date of June 1, 2024.  Collateral for this loan includes real 
property.  893,192  1,214,984 
The Center entered into a loan agreement with the City of Carlsbad on 
February 15, 2012 in the amount of $1,130,000.  These funds were 
allocated from a Community Block Development Grant (CDBG) as a no 
interest, deferred, and forgivable loan to be used for the acquisition of 
property for a health center to serve low income households. The loan has 
a term of 20 years and is forgivable upon the expiration of the term of the 
loan if the property has been maintained and operated as a health center 
consistent with the conditions of the loan. 712,104  764,557 
The Center entered into a loan agreement with City National Bank on 
February 1, 2016 in the amount of $4,598,702.  These funds were used to 
refinance a maturing New Market Tax Credit loan.  The loan bears an 
interest rate of 3.91% with a maturity date of March 1, 2031.  Collateral 
for this loan includes real property. 3,134,117  3,413,147 
The Center entered into a loan agreement with City National Bank on 
February 1, 2016 in the amount of $1,761,298.  These funds were used to 
purchase property for the Ramona clinic.  The loan bears an interest rate 
of 3.91% with a maturity date of March 1, 2031.  Collateral for this loan 
includes real property. 1,200,363  1,307,232 
Total long term debt 7,129,641  8,150,226 
Less: current portion  (1,005,215)   (965,238) 
 $ 6,124,426  $ 7,184,988 

 

The loan agreements contain various covenants, which among other things require approval for additional 
indebtedness in connection with the purchase or lease of equipment over $500,000, require unencumbered 
and unrestricted liquid assets of not less than $3,000,000 measured quarterly, and require the Center to 
maintain certain financial ratios.  As of December 31, 2021 the Center was in compliance with the 
various covenants associated with the above notes. 
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Note 8: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $334,724 and $377,578, respectively. 
Future principal payments are as follows for the years ended December 31: 
 

Year Principal 
2022 $  1,005,215 
2023 1,046,854 
2024 936,867 
2025 757,919 
2027 491,988 

Thereafter 2,890,798 
Total  $  7,129,641 

 
 
Note 9: Line-of-Credit 
 
The Center had a $2,000,000 line-of-credit which expires October 1, 2022. The line of credit was 
collateralized by receivables. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no balance outstanding on the 
line-of-credit. 

 
 
Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Pension Plan 
The Center has a 403(b) defined contribution pension plan covering substantially all employees who meet 
the eligibility requirements. The Center provides a discretionary match of eligible employee contributions 
to the plan up to 4% of employees’ salaries. Pension expense related to the 403(b) defined contribution 
pension plan was $1,279,020 and $1,142,793 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
The Center provides a 457(b) deferred compensation plan for certain providers and executive 
management as a retention benefit. Under the terms of this plan, the deferred compensation liability and 
related assets limited as to use are recorded by the Center and are subject to the general creditors of the 
Center. Expense related to the 457(b) deferred compensation plan was $687,869 and $629,134 for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Operating Leases 

Non-cancelable operating leases for the Center's facilities expire in various years through 2032. Future 
minimum lease payments are as follows: $637,815 in 2022, $679,813 in 2023, $408,179 in 2024, 
$204,941 in 2025, and $165,195 in 2026. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 
was $658,706 and $732,528, respectively. 
 
Contingencies 
The Center is the defendant in litigation claiming negligent hiring, supervision, and retention practices 
among other claims. While the Center believes it has meritorious defenses against the suits, the Center has 
estimated a potential liability of approximately $500,000. 
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Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Malpractice Claims 
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services has deemed the Center and its practicing 
physicians covered under the Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA) for damage for personal injury, including 
death, resulting from the performance of medical, surgical, dental and related functions. FTCA coverage is 
comparable to an occurrence policy without a monetary cap. Accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America require a health care provider to accrue the expense of its share of malpractice 
claim costs, if any, for any reported and unreported incidents of potential improper professional service 
occurring during the year by estimating the probable ultimate costs of the incidents. Based upon the Center’s 
claim experience, no such accrual has been made. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could change 
materially in the near term. 
 
 
Note 11: Information Regarding Liquidity and Availability of Resources 
 
The Center regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other 
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The 
Center has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents, investments, 
various receivables, and a line of credit. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general 
expenditures over a 12-month period, the Center considers all expenditures related to its ongoing 
activities of providing healthcare-related activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to 
support those activities to be general expenditures. 
 
The Center strives to maintain liquid financial assets sufficient to cover 90 days of general expenditures. 
The following table reflects the Center’s financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, reduced by 
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date. 
 

 2021  2020 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,546,866  $ 27,299,567 
Short-term investments 15,378,910  14,798,406 
Patient accounts receivable, net 3,298,596  2,368,947 
Grant receivable 1,164,434  1,085,583 
Other receivable 21,044  55,527 
  Total financial assets 47,409,850  45,608,030 
    

Deferred revenue (2,914,473)  (16,265) 
Restricted by donors (309,635)  (428,055) 
  Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general $ 44,185,742  $ 44,163,710 
    expenditures within one year    
 
In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Center 
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient patient service revenue to cover 
general expenditures not covered by grants or donor-restricted resources. The Center also has a line of 
credit available to meet short-term needs. See note 9 for information about this arrangement. 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
Note 12: Functional Expenses 
 
The Center provides healthcare services to residents within its service area. The financial statements report 
certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one program or supporting function. 
Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The 
expenses that are allocated include depreciation, interest, and office and occupancy, which are allocated 
on a square-footage basis, as well as salaries and benefits, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of 
time and effort. Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021 include: 
 

 
Healthcare 

services 
 

General and 
administrative  Fundraising  Total 

Salaries and wages $ 40,536,241   $   8,536,991   $     350,640   $ 49,423,872 
Employee benefits 8,936,417  1,028,988  52,407  10,017,812 
Purchased services and professional fees 5,873,908  2,563,038  406,425  8,843,371 
Supplies and other 7,285,168  1,685,378  407,649  9,378,195 
Rent 613,513  45,193  -  658,706 
Insurance 270,760  169,868  -  440,628 
Client assistance 323,365      323,365 
Depreciation 2,681,948  237,699  3,861  2,923,508 
Interest 312,574  21,756  394  334,724 
      Total $ 66,833,894   $  14,288,911   $  1,221,376   $ 82,344,181 

 
Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 include: 
 

 
Healthcare 

services 
 

General and 
administrative  Fundraising  Total 

Salaries and wages $  36,611,215  $  9,224,206  $    150,874  $ 45,986,295 
Employee benefits 8,316,766  1,657,894  28,842  10,003,502 
Purchased services and professional fees 4,309,911  2,848,591  10,531  7,169,033 
Supplies and other 7,010,309  1,708,680  42,819  8,761,808 
Rent 650,816  81,712  -  732,528 
Insurance 280,664  153,694  -  434,358 
Client assistance 67,635  343  -  67,978 
Depreciation 2,501,159  385,054  1,704  2,887,917 
Interest 351,125  26,071  382  377,578 
      Total $  60,099,600  $  16,086,245  $     235,152  $ 76,420,997 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

 Federal  Pass-Through  
 CFDA Identification  
Federal Grant / Program Title Number Number Expenditures 
    
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:    
Direct:     
    Health Center Cluster    

 Health Center Program – 330 93.224 N/A $ 9,856,729 
 COVID-19 – CADRE 93.224 N/A 49,200 
 COVID-19 – ARPA 93.224 N/A 4,125,376 
 COVID-19 – Expanded Capacity 93.224 N/A 307,193 
     Total Health Center Cluster           14,338,498 
    

Uninsured Covid-19 testing, treatment, and vaccination 93.461 N/A 289,993 
HHS Provider Relief Funds *93.498 N/A 1,294,734 
SAMHSA SBIRT 93.243 N/A 49,811 
            
Pass through:    

Health Quality Partners    
Connecting Kids to Coverage CHIPRA 93.767 1Y1CMS331690-01-00 73,202 
CSUSM    
Homie Up 93.910 92270-85066 13,292 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services   16,059,530 

 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development    
Pass through:    
       City of Carlsbad    
        CDBG Entitlement Grant Cluster 14.218 93-383  764,557 
       City of Perris    
        CDBG  14.218 152-5000-276-7731 2,116 
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

 

766,673 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

U.S. Department of Agriculture:    
Pass through:    

California Department of Health Care Services    
WIC Peer Counseling Breastfeeding *10.557 19-10157 168,404 
WIC Farmers Nutrition Market Program *10.557 19-10157 1,496 
Supplemental Nutrition Program for Woman, 
Infants and Children  

 
*10.557 19-10157 

 
2,253,555 

WIC Regional Breastfeeding *10.557 19-10157 136,313 
WIC Vendor Liaison *10.557 19-10157 36,702 
    
 San Diego Hunger Coalition    
SNAP Cluster - CalFresh Outreach Program 10.561 18-7013 23,970 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture   2,620,440 
    

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards   $ 19,446,643 

 
*Major Programs 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Note A:  Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) summarizes the 
expenditures of North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare (the “Center”) under programs of the 
federal government for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Center, it is not 
intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows for the 
Center. 
 
 
Note B:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  For CFDA 
93.498, the amount included on the Schedule is based on the Period 1 and Period 2 PRF report. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts 
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts 
reported as expenditures in prior years. The Center elected not to use the de minimis cost rate because it 
has a negotiated indirect cost rate in place. 
 
 
Note C: Loans 
 
The Center entered into a loan agreement with the City of Carlsbad on February 15, 2012 in the amount of 
$1,130,000.  These funds were allocated from a Community Block Development Grant (CDBG) as a no 
interest, deferred, and forgivable loan to be used for the acquisition of property for a health center to serve 
low income households. The loan has a term of 20 years and is forgivable upon the expiration of the term of 
the loan if the property has been maintained and operated as a health center consistent with the conditions of 
the loan. The balance as of December 31, 2021 was $712,104.
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CHWLLP 

 
 

7797 N. First Street #15, Fresno, California 93720 
Phone: 559.549.5400   Email: info@chwllp.org 

  Healthcare Audit, Tax & Consulting Services  

 
 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
Board of Directors 
North County Health Project, Inc. 
 d/b/a TrueCare 
San Marcos, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of North County Health 
Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare (the “Center”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 
and 2020 and the related statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
April 12, 2022. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Center’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Center’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Center’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Center's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a 
TrueCare’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Center’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 

CHW, LLP 
Fresno, California 
April 12, 2022 
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CHWLLP 

 
 

7797 N. First Street #15, Fresno, California 93720 
Phone: 559.549.5400   Email: info@chwllp.org 

  Healthcare Audit, Tax & Consulting Services  
 
 
Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program  
And Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  
Required by the Uniform Guidance 
  
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
Board of Directors  
North County Health Project, Inc. 
 d/b/a TrueCare 
San Marcos, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited North County Health Project, Inc., d/b/a TrueCare (the “Center”) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Center’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021. 
The Center’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
In our opinion, the Center complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2021.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“GAAS”); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government 
Auditing Standards”); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(“Uniform Guidance”). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the Center and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Center’s compliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Center’s 
federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Center’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is 
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 
the Center’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we 
 
• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the Center’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• obtain an understanding of the Center’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center’s internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

CHW, LLP 
Fresno, California 
April 12, 2022 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 
 

I. Summary of Auditor’s Results   
   

Financial Statements   
   

Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified  

Internal Control over financial reporting:                    
Material weakness(es) identified?            Yes      X    No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?            Yes      X    None Reported 
Noncompliance material to financial 
   statements noted?            Yes      X    No 

Federal Awards   

Internal control over major programs: 
   Material weakness(es) identified?            Yes     X     No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?             Yes     X     None Reported 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance  
  for major programs: Unmodified 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
  be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?             Yes      X     No 
   
 
 
Major Programs 

 
 

CFDA Number 

 

   
HHS Provider Relief Funds 93.498  
WIC Peer Counseling Breastfeeding 10.557  
WIC Farmers Nutrition Market Program 10.557  
Supplemental Nutrition Program for Woman, Infants 
and Children  

10.557  

WIC Regional Breastfeeding 10.557  
WIC Vendor Liaison 10.557  

    
Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
   Types A and B programs $ 750,000  
   
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?      X    Yes            No 
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North County Health Project, Inc. 
d/b/a TrueCare 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

II. Current Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
Financial Statement Findings:   
 
None Reported 
 
Federal Award Findings And Questioned Costs:  
 
None Reported 
 
 
 
 
Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs: 
 
None Reported 
 
 
 



  
(Choose one)   MINI-GRANT     (Choose one) X REGULAR GRANT  

Project Name: Twin Oaks Elementary School 

Date Submitted: 10/4/22 

Total # of people served: 627 (plus) 

Total # of San Marcos 
 residents served: 627 (plus) 

Amount  
Requested: $10,000 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 
 
Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO 
1 Cassou Rd., 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
 
https://twinoakselementary.smusd.org/p_t_o/about_the_p_t_o 
 

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email 
 
Wendy Barksdale,  
Volunteer Grants Coordinator for Twin Oaks 
Elementary School PTO 
 
(310) 920-8946 
toesgrants@gmail.com 
 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
 
We are seeking funding for a STEM-based learning opportunity to bring ‘Mad Science’ events into our school 
to showcase science to our TK, K, and 1st thru 5th grade student populations in a fun and entertaining way. The 
events are intended to promote STEM, educate students, and may influence students to consider STEM-based 
careers in the future.  
 
We plan to host several ‘Mad Science’ assemblies along with STEM-based experiment booths where students 
can complete and learn from hands on science experiments hosted by professional science instructors.  
 
Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
 
In partnership with parents and the community, we are committed to developing responsible, resourceful, life-long 
learners in an atmosphere of mutual respect, pride and cooperation. With your help, we can continue to shape the 
hearts and minds of our students through education regardless of their personal circumstances, socioeconomic 
backgrounds, status, or privilege while maintaining equity and striving for a greater San Marcos community – our 
students are the San Marcos community.  
 
Funding is an investment in our students, specifically supporting STEM activities for TK, and Kindergarten 
through 5th grade students roughly the ages of 4-11 years old. Our school supports over 627 students K-5 with an 
additional 33 students in TK, where 39.9% are socioeconomically disadvantaged students and 22% are new 
English language learners as of 2021 data.  
 
Please attach the following items.  
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 
2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 
5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

Expected date project will begin/end: 
January 2023 

Date by which funds will be expended: June 
2023 
 
Signature of President or Authorized Officer 
 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Grant Cover Page 

https://twinoakselementary.smusd.org/p_t_o/about_the_p_t_o


c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including any 
management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 
Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

_________________________     10/3/2022____ 
Name, Title                                    Date  
Wendy Barksdale, 
TOES PTO Volunteer Grants Coordinator 
 
Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 
San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA  92069 
Email (PDF Format): cityclerk@san-
marcos.net  

 

mailto:jcadima@san-marcos.net
mailto:jcadima@san-marcos.net


Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 

Mad Science Assembly Show #1 – Day 1_(TK – K)______________________ $____450____ 

Mad Science Assembly Show #2 – Day 1_(G1 – G2)_____________________ $_____400___ 

Experiment Make & Take Booths – Day 1 (3 stations per 100 students x 3hrs) _    $___4050__ 

Instructor Travel Fees – Day 1______________________________________ $_____75___ 

Mad Science Assembly Show #3 – Day 2_(G3 – misc)_____________________ $____450____ 

Mad Science Assembly Show #4 – Day 2__(G4 + G5)___________________ $____400____ 

Instructor Travel Fees – Day 2 day______________________________________ $_____75___ 

Experiment Make & Take Booths – Day 2 (3 stations per 100 students x 3 hrs)      $____4050_ 

Miscellaneous fees _______________________________________________ $____50_____ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

Total budget for this PROJECT:   $__10,000___ 

Grant Request Amount:    $__________ 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? No 

Please list any other funding sources for this project.  
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 



22-23 22-23 22-23 22-23 22-23 22-23

BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD

Neon Night $3,500 $3,500 $1,134 $0 ($1,134)

Boo Bash $3,500 $3,500 $0 $0 

Someone Special Dance $1,500 $1,500 $0 $0 

Spring Dance $2,000 $2,000 $0 $0 

Snowman Shuffle $1,000 $500 $500 $0 

Raise Craze $35,000 $150 $7,500 $1,198 $27,500 ($1,048)

Jog A Thon $25,000 $7,500 $17,500 $0 

Coyote Howl $20,000 $10,000 $10,000 $0 

Coyote Contributions/Donations $3,500 $167 $3,500 $167 

Dine Out $4,000 $232 $4,000 $232 

Passive Earnings $1,200 $160 $1,200 $160 

Banners $1,000 $350 $650 $0 

Spirit Wear $10,000 $3,421 $9,000 $7,513 $1,000 ($4,092)

Student Store $7,500 $5,000 $1,267 $2,500 ($1,267)

Holiday Store $3,000 $2,500 $194 $500 ($194)

Yearbook $1,500 $1,500 $0 

Art Staff $27,500 ($27,500) $0 

Art Supplies $2,000 ($2,000) $0 

PE & Recess $3,500 $2,093 ($3,500) ($2,093)

Library $1,000 $294 ($1,000) ($294)

Garden $13,200 $8,726 ($13,200) ($8,726)

Poster Maker & Cutter Supplies $4,000 ($4,000) $0 

Music, Choir & Talent Show $750 ($750) $0 

Staff Appreciation $4,500 $1,023 ($4,500) ($1,023)

Student Awards & Birthdays $1,000 $468 ($1,000) ($468)

Track Meet $750 ($750) $0 

5th Grade Celebrations & Promotion $3,500 ($3,500) $0 

MHHS Scholarship $1,000 ($1,000) $0 

Rock Your School $250 ($250) $0 

Read Across America $600 ($600) $0 

Assemblies $3,000 ($3,000) $0 

Custodial Supplies $300 ($300) $0 

Fine Art Fair $300 ($300) $0 

ELAC $250 ($250) $0 

Teacher/Admin Grants $7,500 $744 ($7,500) ($744)

Teacher Reimbursement $5,000 $400 ($5,000) ($400)

PTO Operating Expense & Supplies $1,500 ($1,500) $0 

Taxes $500 ($500) $0 

Insurance $300 $255 ($300) ($255)

Bank Fees, Supplies & Quickbooks $450 $384 ($450) ($384)

Marketing $150 ($150) $0 

Donor thank yous & community 

support
$500 ($500) $167 

$123,200 $4,130 $136,150 $25,694 ($12,950) ($21,397)

Date 8/21/2022

Current Bank Accout Balance $36,474.94 

Book Fair Holding $5,633.80 

Music/Choir Holding $0.00 

Field Trip/Activity Holding $0.00 

PTO Balance $30,841.14 

REVENUE EXPENSE NET

PTO Budget July 1- August 21, 2022
Annual Budget for 
2022-2023



Tax ID #33-0814839 – Facebook @TOESPTO – Instagram @TwinOaksPTO 

Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO 
1 Cassou Road 
San Marcos, CA 92069 

Federal & State Tax ID numbers 
33-0814839

We are an official 501(c)(3) organization. 



Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO Request 

Program Narrative 

Project Summary 

The Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO is submitting a request for a REGULAR GRANT to the San Marcos 
Community Foundation for $10,000 to fund STEM education for our students by funding ‘Mad Science’ 
assemblies and hands on experiment booths for all grades.   

Background 

We are a parent organization of volunteers who supports Twin Oaks Elementary School students and 
families in San Marcos, a Title 1 school, with a 39.9% socioeconomically disadvantaged student 
population. We help drive fundraising and support towards school programs, art teacher staff, 
community donation drives, activities such as art program, student award programs / scholarships, 
school upgrades, library funding, music, assemblies, teacher supplies support, and field trips to ensure 
every student has an equal opportunity to learn and grow while promoting kindness in our larger 
community. 

Twin Oaks Elementary School is a unique offering to the community of San Marcos as it is the 1st dual 
immersion school in the district. We are now in our 4th year of the program and by 2025, we will be a 
100% dual immersion school. Though our school focuses on dual language development amongst other 
subjects, we have observed a need to increase opportunities for STEM in education. According to 
Edweek.org, general studies have shown that “…K-3 students spend an average of 57 minutes a day on 
math and 18 minutes on science, compared to 89 minutes dedicated to reading/language arts. In grades 
4-6, this number increases to 63 minutes on math and 27 minutes on science.” (Jones 2019). We as
parents of the PTO want to increase the accessibility to the sciences and encourage STEM for all
students at our school.

Request for Funds 

We are seeking funding for a STEM-based learning opportunity to bring ‘Mad Science’ events into our 
school to showcase science to our TK, K, and 1st thru 5th grade student grade levels in a fun and 
entertaining way. The events are intended to promote STEM, educate students, and potentially 
influence students to consider STEM-based careers in the future.  

• Budget
A $10,000 budget will support over 600 students in 4 assemblies (about 1 hour), 6 hands-on
experimentation sessions each with 3 booths in the rotation (about 1 hour) and cover
miscellaneous fees.

• Proposed Program Activities
The funds will go towards a customized one-hour assembly for each student to attend. We will
work with the staff at ‘Mad Science’ to create the appropriate assembly for each age/grade
level. We will also give each student access to one hour of hands-on experimentation where
they can rotate across three different experimentation booths and complete experiments to
take home.  Please note breakdown in the table below.



Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO Request 

Activity Cost Grades Notes 
Day 1: Mad Science Assembly Show #1 $450 (TK – K) 
Day 1: Mad Science Assembly Show #2 $400 (G1-G2) 
Day 1: Experimentation Booths 3 sessions $4050 Day 1 

students 
Recommended breakout is 100 
students per session. Each booth is 
$450. Three booths recommended 
per hour per session (3 sessions 
total) 

Day 1: Instructor Travel Fees $75 - 
Day 2: Mad Science Assembly Show #3 $450 (G3 – misc.) Students that missed/other 
Day 2: Mad Science Assembly Show #4 $400 (G4 – G5) 
Day 2: Instructor Travel Fees $75 
Day 2: Experimentation Booths 3 sessions $4050 Day 2 

students 
Recommended breakout is 100 
students per session. Each booth is 
$450. Three booths recommended 
per hour per session (3 sessions 
total) 

Miscellaneous fees $50 - Additional fees once final quote / 
contract is completed.  

• Timing
We are targeting the activities to take place during the latter part of this school year in 2023. We
will be working with our principal to schedule the most appropriate if we are fortunate to
acquire funding.

Administration 

The Twin Oaks Elementary School PTO volunteers, teachers, principal, and administrative staff will 
support this activity. We will be using our multi-purpose room amongst other areas onsite at no 
additional cost. Because ‘Mad Science’ is mostly a self-contained experience, we do not anticipate 
additional resources to support the events outside of simple volunteering efforts.  

Closing Remarks 

Though we would love for our teachers to be empowered to develop amazing programs in STEM for our 
students, our school has been impacted by district-wide reductions in workforce primarily caused by the 
aftermath of Covid-19. As a PTO we are looking for alternative ways to support our students through 
ready-to-go programs such as those ‘Mad Science’ can offer us to not only to give more accessibility to 
STEM, but to reduce the workload on our teachers, boost morale on our campus, and inspire our 
students to continue to achieve greatness.  

We thank you for considering us for your grant and look forward to hearing from you soon. 
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Short Form 0MB No. 1545-1150 

Form99QEZ 

� 

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 2020 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to 
Department of the 

Treasury 
Public 

Internal Revenue Service 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990EZ for instructions and the latest information. Inspection 

A For t h e 2020 ca en d ar year, or tax year b egmnmg 07-01-2020 , an en mg 06-30-2021 d d" 
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization D Employer identification number 
D Address change TWIN OAKS ELEMENTARY PTO 
D Name change 33-0814839 

Number and street (or P. 0. box, if mail is not delivered to street address) 
I
Room/suite E Telephone number D Initial return 1 CASSOU RD 

D Final return/terminated (760) 290-2588 
D Amended return City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code 

SAN MARCOS, CA 92069 F Group Exemption 
D Application pending Number ► 

G Accounting Method: 0 Cash □ Accrual Other (specify) ► H Check ► 0 if the organization is not 
required to attach Schedule B 
(Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

I Website: ►NIA 
J Tax-exempt status (check only one) - 0 501(c)(3)� D 501(c)( ) ◄ (insert no.) D 4947(a)(1) or D 527 

K Form of organization: 0 Corporation □ Trust □ Association □ Other ________________________ _ 
L Add lines 5b, 6c, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if total assets (Part II, column (B) below) 
are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ ••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ► $ 51,833 

■@•i Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I) 
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part I • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 0 

1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received 1 2,339 
2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 2 
3 Membership dues and assessments 3 

4 Investment income 4 
Sa Gross amount from sale of assets other than inventory I Sa I

b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses I Sb I 0 
C Gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (Subtract line 5b from line 5a) Sc 

6 Gaming and fundraising events 
i;., a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than $15,000) I 6a I..., 

i;., b Gross income from fundraising events (not including $ of contributions from -· 
i;., fundraising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the 0:: 

sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) � I 6b I 49,494 

C Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events I 6c 1 15,831 
d Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a and 6b and subtract line 6c) 6d 33,663 

7a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances I 1a I
b Less: cost of goods sold I 7b I 0 
C Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (Subtract line 7b from line 7a) 7c 

8 Other revenue (describe in Schedule 0) 8 
9 Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5c, 6d, 7c, and 8 ► 9 36,002 

10 Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule 0) 10 
11 Benefits paid to or for members 11 

,, 12 Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits 12 
c.• 
,, 13 Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors 13 485 ,... 

c.• 
14 Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance 14 
15 Printing, publications, postage, and shipping • 15 
16 Other expenses (describe in Schedule 0) 16 39,697 
17 Total expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 ► 17 40,182 
18 Excess or (deficit) for the year (Subtract line 17 from line 9) 18 -4,180 

C.• 19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with 
.,, 
.,, end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) • 19 50,878 <( 

20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0) 20 c.• 

21 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20 21 46,698 
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate mstruct1ons. Cat. No. 106421 Form 990-EZ (2020) 





21-22 21-22 21-22 21-22 21-22 21-22

New Budget YTD
New 

Budget
YTD

New 

Budget
YTD Notes

Kindergarten Social $85 $85 $483 $483 ($398) ($398)

Neon Night $3,740 $3,740 $3,386 $3,386 $354 $354 

Boo Bash $5,416 $5,416 $1,769 $1,769 $3,647 $3,647 

Snowman Shuffle $1,138 $1,138 $682 $682 $456 $456 

Apex Turkey Trot $39,207 $39,207 $15,097 $15,097 $24,110 $24,110 

Holiday Store $3,146 $3,146 $2,401 $2,476 $745 $670 
Increased expense by $750 to make purchases for next 

year

Special Someone Dance $1,920 $1,920 $1,370 $1,370 $550 $550 

Coyote Howl $23,400 $19,083 $11,321 $8,278 $12,079 $10,806 

Spring Fiesta $2,000 $1,819 $3,500 $1,138 ($1,500) $681 

Spirit Wear $10,428 $10,443 $8,490 $9,281 $1,938 $1,162 

Student Store $5,750 $8,112 $5,500 $4,687 $250 $3,425 
Increased expense by $500 to make purchases for next 

year

Yearbook $2,000 $1,402 $600 $30 $1,400 $1,372 

Approx $5/book profit, refund from last year.  Josten's 

owes us approx $180 in overpayment.  Will roll to next 

year.

Spirit Drive $9,796 $9,796 $817 $817 $8,979 $8,979 

Dine Out $4,500 $4,159 $0 $4,500 $4,159 Handel's check not included - will hit next year

Passive Earnings $1,200 $1,434 $0 $1,200 $1,434 Shutterfly, box tops, escrip, ralphs…

Banners $1,000 $1,000 $302 $302 $698 $698 

Art To Remember $2,500 $1,294 $0 $2,500 $1,294 

Teacher Experience Auction $2,000 $1,848 $0 $2,000 $1,848 

Donations $17,032 $5,017 $0 $17,032 $5,017 
Includes donation for 5th grade yard signs, garden grant, 

track meet t-shirt

Restricted Donations $0 $0 $0 $0 

Thanksgiving Gift Card Drive $550 $550 $1,025 $1,025 ($475) ($475)

Art Staff $0 $25,000 $22,601 ($25,000) ($22,601)

Art Supplies $0 $2,000 $1,948 ($2,000) ($1,948)

PE $0 $2,500 $2,546 ($2,500) ($2,546)

Library $0 $1,000 $688 ($1,000) ($688)

Garden $0 $13,200 $0 ($13,200) $0 $12,000 donation plus $1,200 donated at Howl 

Poster Maker & Cutter Supplies $0 $4,000 $3,994 ($4,000) ($3,994) Includes $1000 1 year warranty 

Music, Choir & Talent Show $0 $750 $511 ($750) ($511)

Staff Appreciation $0 $4,700 $4,107 ($4,700) ($4,107)

Student Awards & Lanyards $0 $1,070 $1,070 ($1,070) ($1,070)

Track Meet $0 $750 $936 ($750) ($936)
$400 donation for tshirts, bus $75, had old money in 

account

5th Grade Celebrations & Promotion $100 $3,600 $4,116 ($3,500) ($4,116)
Roush sponsor yard signs (donation above), tshirts early 

in the year, field day, photo booth 

MHHS Scholarship $0 $1,000 $1,000 ($1,000) ($1,000)

Rock Your School $0 $169 $169 ($169) ($169)

Read Across America $0 $500 $563 ($500) ($563)

Assemblies $0 $2,500 $2,094 ($2,500) ($2,094) 2nd assembly used some old money in account

Custodial Supplies $0 $300 $85 ($300) ($85)

Fine Art Fair $0 $300 $198 ($300) ($198) Custodian

ELAC $0 $250 $157 ($250) ($157)

Grants: School Enrichment & Modernization $0 $13,322 $15,154 ($13,322) ($15,154) Additional end of year spending approved

Teacher Reimbursement $0 $5,943 $5,028 ($5,943) ($5,028)

PTO Operating Expense & Supplies $0 $1,500 $1,233 ($1,500) ($1,233)

Taxes $0 $485 $475 ($485) ($475)

Insurance $0 $255 $255 ($255) ($255)

Bank Fees & Quickbooks & Bank Supplies $0 $450 $425 ($450) ($425)

Marketing $0 $400 $119 ($400) ($119)

Donor thank yous & community support $0 $500 ($500) $0 

$136,908 $120,609 $143,186 $120,294 ($6,279) $315 

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL 

Date 7/1/2022

Current Bank Accout Balance $58,275.64 

Book Fair Holding $5,633.80 

Music/Choir Holding $0.00 

Author Signings/Field Trip/Activity Holding $0.00 

PTO Balance $52,641.84 

Garden Commitment $13,200

Updated PTO Balance $39,441.84 

REVENUE EXPENSE NET

Year-end report / statement
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(Choose one) 0 MINI-GRANT (Choose one) � REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Urban Corps North County Total # of people served: 50 

Total # of San Marcos Center Ice Machine and Stove

 Date Submitted: 1/18/2022 residents served: 20 

Amount 
Requested: $4,598 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website Contact Person - Name, Title & Phone, email 
Urban Corps of San Diego County Lauren Welch 
3127 Jefferson Street San Diego CA 92010 (main Development Director 
office) 619-629-0884
2200 Micro Place Escondido CA 92029 (North County lwelch@urbancorps.org 
Center) 
www .urbancorpssd.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 
In January of 2020, Urban Corps expanded their operations into North County where they can now serve North 
County disconnected young adults (ages 18-26 years old) and better serve the community through fee-for-service 
contracts and grants. Urban Corps' model is a dual focus work and learn program giving young adults a second 
chance for their high school diploma while at the same time earning a paycheck on projects that support the 
community such as invasive plant removal, bottles and cans recycling, tree planting, trail building and graffiti 
removal, just to name a few. This facility, located in Escondido but within a mile or so of San Marcos. The 
property will serve all North County young adults and is located right next door to the Nordahl St Sprinter Station 
making it the perfect location for our program population who primarily rely on public transportation. This 
building will be used for training of program participants ( called Corpsmembers) and as a location for daily work 
crews to leave from as it will have work supplies, equipment and vehicles. We are estimating that we will be able 
to recruit and serve out of the North County Center in its first full year (7/1/2022-6/30/2023) 50 program 
participants and estimate around 20 of those participants will live in San Marcos. Additionally, through our 
community improvement projects we serve thousands a year by planting a tree in their city right of way providing 
shade and other co-benefits to the street and their homeowners, removing graffiti from public buildings and by 
creating a trail that hundreds if not thousands of nearby residents can enjoy. 

We are requesting $4,598 to pay an ice machine and stove to finish up the Corpsmember kitchen in the building. 
The ice machine is critical to the success of the Corps to keep lunches cool in the field. All Corpsmember crews 
go into the field to work everyday and  need safe lunches kept cool during the day.  

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 
This funding request is significant to the local community as the ice machine and stove are critical for the success 
of Corpsmembers at the Urban Corps North County Center. The building, as a whole, constitutes the ability for us 
to bring our program to a community that historically has not had the opportunity. By providing a high school 
education, paid work experience and supportive services, like one-on-one case management, trauma informed 
counseling and assistance with career and college readiness after graduation, we are providing a unique experience 
to the community to help the communities young people get their diploma and set up for a job in the community 
they live in. Additionally, having the building in the community allows us to work with North County 
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San Marcos Community Foundation 
c/o City of San Marcos 
1 Civic Center Drive 
San Marcos, CA  92069 
 
 
 
Urban Corps of San Diego County serves 18-26-year-old young adults in need of a high school 
education and paid work experience. Urban Corps’ program has been open in Old Town San Diego 
for just over 32 years. Our new Escondido location will serve our population through our program in 
North County. This center will help us solve the problem of disconnected youth, neither in school or 
working, in the Escondido and surrounding communities, putting young people to work to help earn a 
wage and take care of their families. Urban Corps program participants called Corpsmembers face 
barriers that reduce their chances of finding and retaining stable living wage employment. Urban 
Corps enables economically disadvantaged youth to overcome these personal and professional 
barriers and succeed in the workforce and higher education. Our students are a diverse blend of local 
youth who didn’t thrive in a traditional high school setting, along with refugees and immigrants from 
countries such as Ethiopia, Syria, Cambodia, and Mexico who are striving to advance their English 
acquisition. Without a high school diploma, youth have limited access to the job market and face 
discrimination, poor health, low wages, and higher rates of incarceration.   
 
We enroll around 220 young people at a time, with over 400 served annually on a rolling basis. The 
program is open to youth living anywhere in San Diego County, including the participants served in 
our new Escondido center.  All youth served qualify as LMI with income below 80% of Area Median 
Income (AMI), and many have incomes below 50% AMI. In addition to needing education and job 
skills, our students face challenges such as lack of reliable transportation, need for childcare, past 
gang involvement, traumatic history, limited English proficiency, previous substance abuse, and aging 
out of the foster care system without a diploma. About 30% of our population has been incarcerated 
or court-involved and around 35% struggle with homelessness or unstable housing. Half of our 
current participants at the Escondido center are homeless or transitioning and 15% are former foster 
youth. 
 
Through this grant-funded project and grant period, we expect to serve approximately 50 young adults 
who will utilize this space as their program home, providing them the services we provide our over 
200 students in San Diego. This project allows us to give back to the local community, the city of 
Escondido and its surrounding cities. We estimate that we will be able to keep 5-10 ongoing 
environmental and conservation projects on crews, estimating 100 projects we can complete in the 
first year of being open.  
 
In San Diego County, Urban Corps is the only dual work-learn focused program, helping to provide a 
high school education and paid on the job experience, for our community’s young people. This allows 
program participants the opportunity to go to school while bringing money home to their families. 
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Urban Corps also provides wrap around and supportive services to act as the glue between work and learning, keeping the barriers 
to success as low as possible. There are programs in the local community that help young people get an education or work skills, 
but not both at the same time. We are also unique in our ability to help participants take the skills learned into jobs in the same 
sector through career readiness practices. 

 
Urban Corps forms partnerships with a wide array of public and private entities to create job training projects which give 
Corpsmembers work experience and benefit local disadvantaged communities. Primary work project partners include the City of 
San Diego, Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation, Price Charities, San Diego Gas & Electric, and the San Diego Unified 
School District. In North County, we have established relationships with Nonprofit organization ProduceGood, Oceanside Kitchen 
Collaborative, and many North County cities to include Escondido, San Marcos, Oceanside, Vista, Carlsbad, and Encinitas. 
 
 Corpsmembers are referred to the program through recruitment partners like the International Rescue Committee, ACCESS Inc., 
Interfaith Community Services, school districts, and by word of mouth. The Corps-to-Career team builds strong relationships with 
local employers and colleges to improve student transition outcomes and help us focus our training to meet regional labor market 
needs. We will not be working with other agencies for this community improvement project, but have many community partners in 
our program including the one-on-one mentoring and tutoring to help Corpsmembers achieve their educational and career goals, 
such as the Catholic Charities Foster Grandparents Program and math and literacy tutors from READ/San Diego.  We also work 
with Mission Federal Credit Union who provides banking and financial education for all program participants.  
 
Lastly, our federal ID number is 33-0352148 and our state ID number is C1560528. If you have any questions about our program, 
this funding request of our new North County Center, please reach out to me by email lwelch@urbancorps.org or by phone 619-
629-0884. 
 

 

 
 
 
Lauren Welch 
Development Director 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project: 
(example – 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax  = $561.60) 
 
___Ice Machine _____________________________________________ $__$3,899___ 

______Stove__________________________________________________ $___$699___ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

____________________________________________________________ $___________ 

 
Total budget for this PROJECT:               $ 4,598 

 

Grant Request Amount:          $4,598 
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.) 
 
 
Is this a challenge grant? no    Could it be?  I don’t believe so 
 
 
Please list any other funding sources for this project.  
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 
 
$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

$_____________ (Name of source)__________________________________________ **_____ 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 
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